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of 111 (the ''111 Loan") and Loan #089712-01 in the case of 101 (the "101 Loan"). Attached
hereto and marked as Exhibits "A" and "B" respectively are true copies of the Commitment
Letters.

7. The 111 Loan is secured by a charge on lands located In Drayton Valley, Alberta legally described
as Lot 8, Block 151, Plan 0720020 (the "Alberta Lands") In the principal amount of $5,500,000
dated July 30, 2015 (the "Alberta Mortgage") and a general security agreement dated July 30,
2015 (the "111 GSA"). Attached hereto and marked as Exhibits "C", "D" and "E" respectively
are true copies of the Alberta Mortgage, the 111 GSA and Standard Mortgage Terms registered at
the Alberta Land Titles Office as document number 112 052 406.

8. The 111 Loan is further supported by a guarantee by 101 In the principal amount of $2,750,000
dated July 30, 2015 (the "101 Guarantee"), secured by a mortgage over lands legally described
as Lots 11 8i 12, Parcel 7, Plan 99Y06931 Extension 0 located in Yorkton, Saskatchewan (the
"Saskatchewan Lands) in the principal amount of $5,500,000 dated July 30, 2015 (the
"Saskatchewan Mortgage"). 101 further provided a general security agreement in favour of
BDC as security for performance of its guarantee obligations dated July 30, 2015 (the "101
GSA"). Attached hereto and marked as Exhibits "F", "G" and "H" respectively are true copies
of the 101 Guarantee, the Saskatchewan Mortgage and the 101 GSA.

9. The 111 GSA and the 101 GSA were registered in accordance with law, and attached hereto and
marked as Exhibits "I" and "J" respectively are true copies of Personal Property Registry search
results evidencing the same from each of Alberta and Saskatchewan Personal Property Registries.

10. The Alberta Mortgage and the Saskatchewan Mortgage have been duly registered as against the
Alberta Lands and the Saskatchewan Lands respectively, and attached hereto and marked as
Exhibit "K" and "L" respectively are true copies of search results from the relevant Land Titles
Offices evidencing the same.

11. The proceeds of the 111 Loan were utilized to pay out existing financing on the Alberta Lands in
the approximate amount of $800,000, with the balance of approximately $1,950,000 being
utilized to enable 101 to acquire the Saskatchewan Lands.

12. The 101 Loan is secured by the Saskatchewan Mortgage and the 101 GSA.

13. As further security for the 101 Loan, 111 has provided a guarantee in the principal amount of
$2,750,000 dated July 30, 2015 to BDC (the "111 Guarantee") secured by the Alberta Mortgage
and the 111 GSA. A true copy of the 111 Guarantee is attached hereto and marked as
Exhibit "M".

14. Default has been made in performance of obligations owed to BDC by the Borrowers, and by
letters dated August 23, 2018, BDC demanded payment on the Borrowers and Maan. Attached
hereto and marked collectively as Exhibit "N" to this my Affidavit are true copies of such
demands.

15. The Saskatchewan Lands are a 1.63 acre parcel in Yorkton, Saskatchewan upon which has been
built a hotel known as the Quality Inn 8t Suites Yorkton (the "Saskatchewan Hotel").

16. The Alberta Lands are a 2.0 acre parcel in Drayton Valley, Alberta upon which has been
constructed a hotel known as the Westwood Inn (the "Alberta Hotel").
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17. As at August 23, 2018, 111 was indebted to BDC in the amount of $2,638,265.67 on the 111
Loan, and interest continues to accrue due on such indebtedness from that date. 101 is indebted
to BDC in such amount by virtue of the 101 Guarantee.

18. As at August 23, 2018, 101 was indebted to BDC in the amount of $2,610,487.29 on the 101
Loan, and interest continues to accrue due on such indebtedness from that date. Ill is indebted
to BDC in such amount by virtue of the 111 Guarantee.

19. The 101 GSA, the 111 GSA, the Alberta Mortgage and the Saskatchewan Mortgage entitle BDC to
recover its costs of review and enforcement of its security, on a solicitor and his own client basis.

20. 101 was incorporated specifically to acquire the Saskatchewan Lands, and to the best of my
knowledge the Saskatchewan Lands are the only substantive asset of 101.

21. Ill has owned the Alberta Lands since 2006, and has operated the Alberta Hotel during that
timeframe. To the best of my knowledge the Alberta Lands are the only substantive asset of
111.

22. Searches conducted with the municipal tax authorities in Drayton Valley, Alberta and Yorkton,
Saskatchewan reveal that tax arrears of $37,423.46 are owed on the Alberta Lands and tax
arrears of $406,656.80 are owed on the Saskatchewan Lands. Attached hereto and marked as
Exhibit "O" and respectively are true copies of such search results.

23. Both the Saskatchewan Hotel and the Alberta Hotel (collectively, the "Hotels") had experienced
a material drop in revenue and suffered material losses in the two years leading up to May 2017.
On or about May 18, 2017, BDC issued notices of default to 111 and 101, and true copies of such
notices of default are attached hereto and marked as Exhibit "Q".

24. On or about June 7, 2017, BDC and the Borrowers entered into standstill agreements pursuant to
which BDC agreed to forbear in taking further steps to recover the Loans until November 23,
2017, provided that:

(a) The Borrowers paid regular monthly payments of principal, interest and asset
maintenance and upgrade reserve accounts during the term of the forbearance;

(b) Payments toward principal arrears and asset maintenance and upgrade reserve account
arrears were paid to BDC in June 2017;

(c) Copies of current year-to-date financial statements including cashflow statements,
operating statements and statements of accounts payable and receivable as at month
end of June 2017 and September 2017, were provided within 10 days of each month
end;

(d) All property taxes were paid in full by July 30, 2017;

(e) A copy of a sales listing agreement for the Saskatchewan Hotel at a list price of
$5,750,000 was provided to BDC by June 17, 2017, with regular updates from the listing
realtor to be provided to BDC thereafter;

(f) During the term of the forbearance, the Borrowers paid all government priority claims
including employee source deductions and GST;
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(g) Property taxes and operating costs for the Hotels were paid as those amounts fell due
during the forbearance term, without arrears accruing.

25. Defaults by the Borrowers with respect to their obligations under the foregoing standstill
agreements, included failure to pay property taxes, failure to pay appraisal fees and failure to
provide information with respect to the status of the vendor takeback financing of the
Saskatchewan Hotel

26. Notwithstanding these defaults, the forbearance agreements v/ere extended through to May 23,
2018, on terms reflecting further compromises by BDC including Interest only payments and
waiver of asset reserve account payments, but the Borrowers committed further breaches of
these agreements including allowing an increase in the Saskatchewan Hotel tax arrears from
$197,652 in 2017 to $398,196 in 2018 and breach of covenants to pay GST/HST as they fell due.
While BDC was considering whether to grant a further forbearance, the Borrowers ceased making
payments In July 2018, and became non-responsive to BDC's communications. As a result, the
demand letters referenced in paragraph 14 above were issued.

27. Even following issuance of the demand letters, Carolyn McConnell, Regional Director of Special
Accounts for BDC, and I met with the Borrowers In October in an attempt to avoid litigation, at
which meeting the Borrowers agreed to an arrangement pursuant to which BDC could have an
independent insolvency practitioner monitor the Hotels and report to BDC. Following such
meeting, the Borrowers again became non-responsive, as a result of which the monitoring
arrangement was never Implemented.

28. Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit "R" are true copies of the most recent financial
statements for 111 provided to BDC, and attached hereto and marked as Exhibit "S" are true
copies of the most recent financial statements for 101 provided to BDC.

29. Hardie & Kelly Inc. Is qualified to act as a receiver and manager of the assets of the Borrowers,
and has consented to act in such capacity. Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit "T" Is a true

copy of such consent.

30. Based on the foregoing, 1 do verily believe it would be just and equitable that a receiver and
manager be appointed over the property and assets of the Borrowers, and I make this Affidavit in
support of an application for such relief.

SWORN BEFORE ME at the

City of Calgary, in the Province of Alberta
the day of November, 2018

A Commissioner for Oaths in and

for the Province of Alberta

diH>,
in ano ror the Province c ' '

--omTiission expires
Oo

)

Hard Tngh

Hardeep Singh
Senior Account Manager
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This is Exhibit "A" referred to in the Affidavit of

Hardeep Singh sworn before me on the ^
day of November, 2018.

j
A Commissioner for Oaths In and )
for the Province of Alberta )

y
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BOCID: 10002698321

Letter of Offer dated July 8, 2015

1119658 Alberta Ltd.

P.O. Box 79202 Rpo Nottingham
Sherwood Park, AS
T8A 583

Attention Ms. Kuldeep (Kelly) Maan

Re: Loan(s) No. 089654-01

In accordance with this letter of offer of credit as amended from time to time (the "Letter of Offer"),
Business Development Bank of Canada ("BDC") is pleased to offer you the following loan(s)
(hereinafter individually or collectively referred to as the "Loan"), The Letter of Offer is open for
acceptance until July 18, 2015 (the "Acceptance Date") after which date it shall become null and
void.

LOAN PURPOSE AND FUNDING

Loan Purpose

Advance to Related Co.

Refinance ATB Mortgage

Funding
BDC 089654-01

1,950,000.00
800,000.00

2,750,000.00

2,750.000.00

2,750,000.00

No change to the Loan Purpose or Funding may be made without BDC's prior written consent. The
proceeds of the Loan may only be used for the Loan Purpose.

OEFINITIONS

In the Letter of Offer, capitalized terms have the meanings described In Schedule "A" - Section I or
are defined elsewhere in the text of the Letter of Offer.

LENDER

BDC

J Business Deveioptnem Benk of Canada
Find Edmonton Ptaca. 10665 Jaspar Avenue Suite 200
Edmonton. AS T5J3S9

VAvwbdccs

CanadS

EN LOO-I VI S n f\
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LETTER OF OFFER 1119658 Alberta Ltd. - 089654. July 8. 2015
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BORROWER

1119658 Alberta Ltd. (the "Borrower")

GUARANTOR

Yorkton Best Western TBl

(Hereinafter individually or collectively referred to as the "Guarantor"). The terms of each
guarantee are set forth in the Security section below.

LOAN AMOUNT

J  Loan 089654-01: $2,750,000.00

INTEREST RATE

The Loan and all other amounts owing by the Borrower pursuant to the Loan Documents shall bear
interest at the following rate:

Loan 089654-01

i  Floating Rate
ul BDC's Floating Base Rate plus a variance of 0.00% per year (the "Variance 01"). On the date

hereof. BDC's Floating Base Rate is 4.85% per year.

U  INTEREST CALCULATION

j  Interest shall be calculated monthly on the outstanding principal, commencing on the date of the
J  first disbursement, both before and after maturity, Default and judgement.

Arrears of interest or principal and all other amounts owing by the Borrower pursuant to the Loan
Documents shall bear interest at the rate applicable to the Loan and shall be calculated and

"  compounded monthly.

REPAYMENT

w

Principal of the Loan is repayable according to the following. The balance of the Loan in principal
and interest and all other amounts owing pursuant to the Loan Documents shall become due and

yj payable on the Maturity Date (the "Maturity Date").

Page|2
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Loan 089654-01

Regular

Payments
Stall bats End Date

Number Frequency Amount ($)

1 Once 8,170.00 23-08-2015 23-08-2015

299 Monthly 9,170.00 23-09-2015 23-07-2040

In addition, interest is payable monthly on the 23"" day of the month (the "Payment Date 01")
commencing on the next occurring Payment Date 01 following the first advance on the Loan.

Maturity Date: July 23. 2040 (the "Maturity Date 01").

PREPAYMENT

Annual Prepayment Privilege: Provided that the Borrower is not in default of any of its obligations
to BDC, the Borrower may, once in any 12 month period, prepay up to 15% of the outstanding
principal on any Loan without indemnity. The first prepayment can be made at any time more than
one year after July 8, 2015. The prepayment privilege is not cumulative and each prepayment on
an individual Loan must be at least 12 months subsequent to the last prepayment on that same
loan. The prepayment privilege is not transferable from one individual Loan to another and is not
applicable if any Loan is being repaid in full.

In addition to the annual privilege, the Borrower may prepay at any time all or part of the principal
provided that the Borrower pays the interest owing up to the time of the prepayment together with
an indemnity equal to:

If the interest rate on the Loan is a floating rate:
-  three months further interest on the principal prepaid at the floating interest rate then

applicable to the Loan.

If the Interest rate on the Loan is a fixed rate:

-  the sum of (a) three months further interest on the principal prepaid at the fixed interest rate
then applicable to the Loan; and (b) the Interest Differential Charge.

Partial prepayments shall be applied regressively on the then last maturing instalments of principal.

Page j 3
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SBCURITY

The Loan, interest on the Loan and ail other amounts owing pursuant to the Loan Documents shall
be secured by the following (the "Security"):

Loan 089654-01

1. Rrst readvanceable mortgage in the principal amount of $5,500,000 on land (approximately
2.0 acres) legall described as Lot 8, Block 151, Plan 0720020, and building located at
5002-34 Avenue, Drayton Valley, Alberta, owned by 1119658 Alberta Ltd. Building location

Ij survey or title insurance required.
2. General Security Agreement from 1119658 Alberta Ltd. providing a first security interest In

alt present and after-acquired personal property, except consumer goods, subject only to
priority on inventory and receivables to lender extending line of credit.

3. Guarantee of Yorkton Best Western TBI for the full amount of the Loan, supported by:
a) a first readvanceable mortgage in the principal amount of $5,500,000 on land (approx.

\  1.63 acres) legally described as Lots 11 & 12, Block 7, Plan 99Y06931 and building located
^  at 2 Kelsey Bay, Yorkton, Saskatchewan, to be owned by Yorkton Best Western TBI.

Building location survey or title insurance required. Concurrent mortgage from BDC Loan
I  089712-01 will stand as security for this Loan,
u  b) a first security interest in all present and after-acquired personal property, except

consumer goods, subject only to priority on Inventory and receivables to lender extending
,  line of credit. Concurrent General Security Agreement from BDC Loan 089712-01 will
1  stand as security for this Loan.
^  The guarantor agrees that it is directly responsible for the payment of the cancellation,

standby and legal fees.

4. Personal guarantee of Kuldeep (Kelly) Kaur Maan for $250,000. The guarantor agrees that
she is directly responsible for the payment of the cancellation, standby and legal fees.

5. Assignment of shareholder's loans in 1119658 Alberta Ltd. totalling $1,138,496 from
J  Kuldeep Maan. Providing the BDC Loan Is In good standing, interest may be paid at 5%

per annum.

disbursement

The Loan funds shall be disbursed as follows:

Loan 089654-01

1. BDC Funds of $2,750.CKK) on this loan will be disbursed after security is in place, and after
satisfaction of conditions precedent, as follows:
a) $800,000 to payout existing ATB Financial Loan
b) $1,950,000 to be advanced to external solicitor to assist in the purchase of the hotel
property to be owned by Yorkton Best Western TBI (being financed concurrently by BDC
Loan 089712-01).

For each loan being refinanced as described h the Loan Purpose, written confirmation of
the payout balance mist be obtained directly from the refinanced lender or from the
external soiicltof/notary.

C'\ n
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^  Unless otherwise authorized, funds for each Loan account number shall be disbursed to the
solicitor or notary who shall confirm to BDC the execution, delivery and registration of the Security
relating to the Loan.

^  CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

j  Any obligation to make any advance under the Letter of Offer is subject to the following conditions
^  being fulfilled to the satisfaction of BDC:

,  1. Receipt of the Security In form and substance satisfactory to BDC registered as required to
!  perfect and maintain the validity and rank of the security, and such certificates,
^  authorizations, resolutions and legal opinions as BDC may reasonably require.

2. Satisfactory review of all financial information relating to the Borrower and any corporate
I  Guarantor and their respective business as BDC may reasonably require.

3. No Default or Event of Default shall have occurred.

I  4, No Material Adverse Change shall have occurred.

^  5. Provision of documents evidencing expenditures under the Loan Purpose, if applicable.

6. Satisfaction of all applicable disbursement conditions contained in the Disbursement
section of this Letter of Offer.

7, Where this Loan is to be guaranteed by a corporation not yet incorporated (Yorkton Best
Western TBI), that corporation will have provided its written adoption and ratification of its

; j guarantee of the Loan and the obligations contained in this Letter of Offer. The Borrower
^  and the Guarantor agree that the shareholder of the corporation shall be only that person

who has been represented to BDC as the proposed shareholder.

!  8. Provide written confirmation from Best Westem indicating that the hotel being purchased,
^  located at 2 Kelsey Bay, Yorkton, Saskatchewan, will be flagged as a Best Western hotel.

Documentation to be deemed satisfactory in the sole opinion and judgment of BDC.

UNDERLYING CONDITIONS

The following conditions shall apply throughout the term of the Loan:

iJ 1, Annually, and on demand, you agree to provide BDC with written proof of your payment of
the property, school or similar taxes which are assessed against the mortgaged land and
Improvements (the "taxes"), within thirty (30) days following the due date of each required

,  instalment. Should you default in paying any such instalment of the taxes when due, you
^  will pay BDC monthly payments as calculated by BDC to establish a tax reserve account.

These payments will be collected by the pre-authorized debit plan and the funds in the
I  account will earn interest in accordance with BDC's policy then in effect. You authorize
^  BDC to pay the relevant taxing authorities. Should there be insufficient funds to satisfy the

taxes owing, you will pay the shortfall. BDC will not be responsible for funding the shortfall
or any arrears, including interest and other charges. You will instruct the taxing authority to

I  forward a copy of the tax notice to BDC, or you will deliver a copy to BDC upon receipt.

2. Your agree to make capital and/or repair and maintenance expenditures of at least 3% of
annual revenues for the purpose of maintaining the hotel asset. Should these expenditures
not be made, and the hotel requires asset upgrades, you will pay BDC, monthly payments

^  as calculated by BDC to establish an asset management reserve account. These payments
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will be collected by the pre-authorized debit plan and the funds in the account will earn
interest in accordance with BDC's policy then in effect.

3. Cross Default Clause - This loan is in default if the loan to Yorkton Best Western TBI, BDC
loan # 089712-01, is in default and vice versa.

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

The Borrower makes the representations and warranties in Schedule "A" - Section II. These
representations and warranties shall survive the execution of the Letter of Offer and shall continue
in force and effect until the full payment and performance of ail obligations of the Borrower
pursuant to the Loan Documents.

COVENANTS

So long as any amount owing pursuant to the Loan Documents remains unpaid, the Borrower and
any corporate Guarantor shall perform the covenants in Schedule "A" - Section III.

REPORTING OBLIGATIONS

The Borrower (and if applicable the corporate Guarantor) shall provide to BDC within 90 days of its
(their) fiscal year end the following financial statements:

Company Type -y -'i-
i'?rr * ■ • ' * ■ -

1119658 Alberta Ltd. Review Engagement Annual June

Yorkton Best Western TBI Review Engagement Annual June

and such other finandal and operating statements and reports as and when BDC may reasonably
require.

EVENTS OF DEFAULT

The occurrence of any of the events listed in Schedule "A" - Section IV constitutes an event of
default under the Letter of Offer (each an "Event of Default"). If an Event of Default occurs, any
obligation of BDC to make any advance, shall, at BDC's option, terminate and BDC may, at its
option, demand immediate payment of the Loan and enforce any Security.

FEES

Cancellation Fee

If the Borrower does not draw on the Loan by the Lapsing Date indicated below (the "Lapsing
Date"), the Loan shall lapse and be cancelled and the Borrower and the Guarantor shall pay BDC
the applicable cancellation fee indicated below. If the Loan is partially disbursed on the Lapsing
Date, the Borrower and Guarantor shall pay BDC a percentage of the cancellation fee in proportion
to the percentage of the Loan that is cancelled. No cancellation fee will be payable if 50% or more
of the Loan has been disbursed.

Page)6
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LETTER OF OFFER 1119658 Alberta Ltd.. 089654, July 8. 2015

The cancellation fee is payable on demand and Is liquidated damages, not a penalty, and
represents a reasonable estimate of BDC's damages should the Loan be cancelled or allowed to
lapse in whole or in part.

Loan 08d654-01

Lapsing Date: July 8, 2016 (the "Lapsing Date 01").
Cancellation Fee: $82,500.00 (the "Cancellation Fee 01").

Standby Fee

The Borrower and the Guarantor shall pay BDC a non-refundable standby fee calculated at a rate
as indicated below on the portion of the Loan which has not been advanced or cancelled excluding
the Consulting portion and/or Future Interest Reserve. This fee shall be calculated daily and be
payable in arrears commencing on the date Indicated below and on each Payment Date thereafter.

Loan 089654-01

Rate: 1.50% per annum
Date: January 8, 2016

Legal Fees and Expenses

The Borrower and the Guarantor shall pay, on demand, all legal and other out-of-pocket costs of
BDC incurred In connection with the Loan and the Loan Documents including the enforcement of
the Loan and the Loan Documents, whether or not any documentation is entered into or any
advance Is made to the Borrower. All legal and other out-of-pocket expenses of BDC in connection
with any amendment or waiver related to the Loan and the Loan documents shall also be for the
account of the Borrower.

Loan Management Fee

^  The Borrower shall pay BDC an annual management fee as indicated below. This management
fee is payable annually on the Payment Date immediately following each anniversary of the first
advance of the specific Loan account number. This fee is non-refundable and is subject to change.

IJ

J

J
Loan 089654-01

$750.00 per year (the "Management Fee 01")

Transaction Fees

The Borrower shall pay BDC loan amendment and Security processing fees charged for the
administrative handling of the Loan.

CONFLICTS

The Loan Documents constitute the entire agreement between BDC and the Borrower. To the
extent that any provision of the Letter of Offer is inconsistent with or in conflict with the provisions
of the other Loan Documents, such provision of the Letter of Offer shall govern.

Page 17
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LETTER Of OFFER 1119658 Alberta Ltd. - 089654, July 8.2015

INDEMNITY

The Borrower shall indemnify and hold BDC harmless against any and all claims, damages,
losses, liabilities and expenses incurred, suffered or sustained by BDC by reason of or relating
directly or indirectly to the Loan Documents save and except any such claim, damage, loss, liability
and expense resulting from the gross negligence or wilful misconduct of BDC.

GOVERNING LAW

This Letter of Offer shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
jurisdiction in which the Business Centre of BDC is located as shown on the first page of this Letter
of Offer.

SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

The Letter of Offer shall extend to and be binding on the Borrower and BDC and their respective
successors and assigns. BDC, in its sole discretion, may assign, sell or grant participation in (a
"transfer") all or any part of its rights and obligations under this Letter of Offer or the Loan to any
third party, and the Borrower agrees to sign any documents and take any actions that BDC may
reasonably require in connection with any such transfer. Upon completion of the transfer, the third
party will have the same rights and obligations under this Letter of Offer as if it were a party to it,
with respect to all rights and obligations included in the transfer and BDC will be released to the
extent of any interest under this Letter of Offer or the Loan it assigns. BDC may disclose
information it has in connection with the Borrower or any Guarantor to any actual or prospective
transferee. No Borrower or Guarantor shall have the right to assign any of its rights or obligations
under or pursuant to the Loan Documents without BDC's prior vmtten consent.

Page j 8
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LETTER OF OFFER 1119858 Alberta Ltd. • 089654, July 8. 2015

ACCEPTANCE

The Letter of Offer and any modification of it may be executed and delivered by original signature,
fax, or any other electronic means of communication acceptable to BOG and in any number of
counterparts, each of which is deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall
constitute one and the same Letter of Offer.

SCHEDULE

The Letter of Offer includes Schedule "A" which contains Definitions. Representations and
Warranties, Covenants, Events of Default and General Terms and Conditions. Schedule "A" has
been inserted after the signature page and forms an integral part of the Letter of Offer.

LANGUAGE CLAUSE

The parties hereby confirm their express wish that the Letter of Offer and all related documents be
drawn up in the English language. Les parties reconnaissent leur vo(ont6 expresse que la pr6sente
lettre d'offre ainsi que tous les documents qui s'y rattachent soient redigds en langue anglaise.

Should you have any questions regarding the Letter of Offer, do not hesitate to communicate with
one of the undersigned.

*eter Webster

Manager. Major Accounts
Phone: (780) 495-2723
Fax: (780) 495-6616
peter.webster@bdc.ca

Heather Kenneth

Client Relationship Officer
Phone; (780) 495-2800
Fax: (780) 495-6616
heather.kenneth@bdc.ca
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LETTER OF OFFER 1119658 Alberta Ltd. - 089654, July 8.2015

ACCEPTANCE

The parties accept the terms and conditions set forth atX)V6 and in the attached Schedule "A"

This \ day of _3ZvJU^ ^015.
1119658 Alberta Ltd.

Authorized Signing Officer

Name: i:, v? f^P -
Phase pnni name ol s^n/ng party

GUARANTOR

YorWon Best Western TBI

e.

Tie: KP i' I'Tip ^Vv'iV^v^•Name:
Phase print name of signing party

JvJ , Authorized Signing Officer

J  w-,
kiildeep (Kelly) Maan
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1119658 Alberta Ltd. SCHEDULE "A"

July 8,2015

SECTION I - DEFINITIONS _

"Available Funds" - means in respect of the Borrower and any corporate Guarantor for any period of 12 months,
ttie sum of the net profits before non-recurring or non-operating items that are not related to normal operations (as
designated by the external accredited accountant) plus depreciation and amortization; plus defemed income
taxes; and minus dividends.

"Available Funds Coverage Ratio" - means the ratio of Available Funds over the current portion of Term Debt.

"BDC's Base Rate" - means the annual rate of interest announced by BDC through its offices from time to time
as its base rate and, as the case may be, subject to a discount for the duration, applicable to each of BDC's fixed
interest rate plans than in effect for determining the fixed interest rates on Canadian dollar loans.

I  "BDC's Floating Base Rate" - means the annual rate of Interest announced by BDC through its offices from
time to time as Its floating rate then in effisct for determining the floating interest rates on Canadbin dollar loans.
The interest rate applicable to the Loan shall vary automatically without notice to the Borrower upon each change
in BDC's Floating Base Rate.

I  "BDC's US Dollar Floating Base Rate" - means the 1-month US Doliar floating base rate set the last business
^  day of each month for the following month for determining the floating interest rates on US Dollar loans. The

interest rate applicable to the Loan shall vary automatically without notice to the Borrower upon each change in
I  BDC's US Dollar Floating Base Rate. BDC's US Dollar Floating Base Rate for the period from the date of the first

t  advance on the Loan to the first business day of the following month will be the 1-month US Dollar floating base
M  rate as established by BDC on the first business day of the month in which the funds are disbursed. Thereafter,

the 1-month US Dollar Floating Base Rate may vary on the first business day of each month.

I  "Corresponding Fixed Interest Rate Plan" - means, at any time in respect of a prepayment, the fixed Interest
^  rate plan than being offered by BDC to its clients equal to the number of years, rounded to the nearest year

(minimum of one year), from the date such prepayment is received to the next scheduled interest Adjustment
Date (or the fVlalurity Date If earlier).

!  "Default" - means an Event of Default or any condition that, with the giving of notice, the passage of time or
»  otherwise, Is susceptible of being an Event of Default.

"GAAP" - means generally accepted accounting principles in Canada applied consistently.

'  "GAAP for Private Enterprises" - means generally accepted accounting principles approved by the Accounting
^  Standards Board for financial reporting for private companies in Canada who have elected not to adopt IFRS.

"IFRS" - means International Financial Reporting Standards approved by the Accounting Standards Board for
accounting for publicly accountable enterprises and private enterprises who have voluntarily decided to adopt this
set of standards.J

J

"Interest Adjustment Date" - means, in respect of any fixed interest rate plan, the day after the Interest
I  Expiration Date of such fixed interest rate plan.

^  "Interest Differential Charge" - means, in respect of the prepayment of the Loan or any ptMtlon of the Loan on a
fixed Interest rate plan, if, on toe date of toe prepayment, toe BDC's Base Rate fCMr the Corresponding Fixed
Interest Rate Plan is lower than the BDC's Base Rate in effect when the Bomower entered or renewed the fixed
Interest rate plan, whichever is most recent, the amount calculated as follows:

(I) the difference between the two rates;

(ii) such interest differential is multiplied by toe principal that would have been outstanding at each future
Payment Date until the next Interest Adjustment Date (or the maturity of the principal If earlier);

(ill) the interest Differential Charge is the present value of those monthly amounts calculated using BDC's
Base Rate for the Corresponding Fix^ interest Rate Plan as the discount rate. In the case of pattia!
prepayment, toe Interest Differential Charge will be reduced In the same proportion as the amount
prepaid bears to the principal outstanding on the Loan at the time prepayment is received. If the Loan is
secured by a mortgage or a hypothec on real estate and the Loan is prepaid in full after 5 years from toe

* date of toe mortgage or hypothec, the Interest Differential Charge shall not be payable if the mortgage or
hypothec is given by an tndirriduai and shall only be payable if permitted under the Interest Act.

M
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Ij  "Interest Expiration Date" - means the date on which a fixed Interest rate plan expires.
"Loan" - shall have the meaning indicated In the Letter of Offer, or, as the context may require, at any time the
unpaid prtncipal balance of the Loan.

^  "Loan Documents" - means, collectively, the application for financing, the Letter of Offer, the security
contemplated by the Letter of Offer and all other documents, instruments and agreements delivered In connection
with the foregoing.

"n/)ateriai Adverse Change" - means:

(i) a material adverse change in, or a material adverse effect upon, the financial condition, operations,
assets, business, properties or prospects of the Borrower or any corporate Guarantor,

'  (ii) a material Impairment of the ability of the Borrower or any corporate Guarantor to perform any of their
obligations under any Loan Document, or

(iii) a material adverse effect upon any substantial portion of the assets subject to security in favour of BOC
or upon the legality, validity, binding effect, rank or enforceablllty of any Loan Document.

(

M

"Person" - includes any natural person, corporation, company. Limited Liability Company, trust, joint venfere,
association, incorporated organization, partnership, govemmental authority or other entity.

,  "Tangible Equity" - means the sum of the share capital [owners' capital for non'incorporated businesses]; plus
*** retained earnings [accumulated net Income]; plus subordinated loans or advances from the shareholders [owners]

and related businesses; minus loans or advances to the shareholders [owners], directors, related or non-related
,  businesses.

"Term Debt" - means the sum of the long-term debt plus the capital leases including the current portion to be
paid over the next 12 months; plus the book value of preferred shares subject to a formal redemption agreement,
if any.

^  "Term Debt to Tangible Equity Ratio" - means the rallo of the Term Debt over the Tangible Equity.
"Working Capital Ratio" - means the ratio of the total current assets over the total current liabilities. Current
assets Include the following: cash on deposit accounts receivable (trade and other), Inventory and prepaid
expenses. Current liabilities include the following: bank advances, cheques in transit, accounts payable (trade and

iJ other) and the current portion due within the next 12 months of all long term debts.

J  SECTION II - REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES '

The Borrower hereby represents and warrants to BDC that:

1. it is a partnership, trust or corporation, as the case may be, duly constituted, validiy existing and duly
registered or qualified to carry on business in each jurisdiction vrhere It Is required by applicable laws to
be so registered or qualified.

I  2. The execution, delivery and performance of Its obligations under the Letter Offer and the other Loan
***■ Documents to which It Is a party have been duly authorized and constitute legal, valid and binding

obligations enforceable in accordance with their respective terms.
I  3. It Is not in violation of any applicable law, which violation could lead to a Material Adverse Changs,

yj 4. No Material Adverse Change exists and there are no circumstances or events that constitute or would
constitute, with the lapse of time, the giving of notice or otherwise, a Material Adverse Change.

^  5. No Default or Event of Defeult exists.
I  6. All information provided by It to BOC is complete and accurate and does not omit any material fact and,

^  without limiting the generality of the foregofeg, all financial statements delivered by It to BDC fairly
present Its financial condition as of the date of such finandai statements and the results of its operations
for the period covered by such financial statements, all In accordance with GAAP.

I  7. There is no pending or threatened claim, action, prosecution or proceeding of any kind Including but not
limited to non-compliance with environmental law or arising from tha presence or release of any
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contaminant against it or its assets before any court or administrative agency whicti, if adversely
determined, could lead to a Material Adverse Ctiange.

8. In respect of properties and assets charged to BDC, It has good and marketable title, free and clear of
any encumbrances, except those encumbrances which BDC has accepted in writing.

The foregoing representations and warranties shall remain in force and true until ttre Loan is repaid in full.

SECTION til - COVENANTS

The Borrower and each corporate Guarantor shall:

j

J

J

i

J

J

Perform their obligations and covenants under the Loan Documents.

Maintain in full force and effect and enforceable the Security contemplated by this Letter of Offer.
Notify BDC immediately of the occurrence of any Default under the Letter of Offer or any other Loan
Documents.

Comply with all applicable laws and regulations.

Keep all secured assets Insiu-ed for physical damages and losses on an "All-Rlsi^s" basis, Including
Equipment Breakdown (or Boiler & Machinery) where at^licabie, for their full replacement value and
cause alt such insurance policies to name BDC as toss payee as its interests may appear. The policies
shall also name BDC as mortgagee and include a standard mortgage clause In respect of buildings over
which BDC holds Security: and

as further Security, assign or hypothecate all insurance proceeds to BDC; and

if requested by BDC, maintain adequate general liability Insurance and environmental insurance to
protect it against any losses or claims arising from pollution or contamination Incidents, or any other type
of insurance it may reasonatity require, and to provide copies of such policies; and maintain all policies
of insurance in effect for the duration of the Loan.

Notify BCXJ immediately of any loss or damage to their property.

Without limiting the generality of paragraph 4 above, in relation to their business operations and the
assets and projects of their business, operate in conformity with all environmental laws and regulations;
make certain that their assets are and shall remain free of environmental damage; inform BDC
Immediately upon becoming aware of any environmental issue and promptly provide BDC with copies of
all communications with environmental authorities and all environmental assessments; pay the cost of
any extemal environmental, consultant engaged by BDC to effect an environmental audit and the cost of
any environmental rehat>illtation or removal necessary to protect, preserve or remediate the assets,
Including any fine or penalty BDC is obligated to Incur by reason of any statute, order or directive by a
competent authority.

Promptly pay all government remittances, assessments and taxes including real estate taxes and
provide BDC with proof of payments as BOC may request from time to lime.
Promptly furnish to BOO such information, reports, certlficales arid other documents concerning the
Borrower and any corporate Guarantor as BDC may reasonably request from time to time.

10. Not, wilhout the prior written consent of BDC,

Change the nature of their business.

Annalgamate, merge, acquire or otherwise restructure their business, or create an affiliated
corripany, or sell or otherwise transfer a substantial part of their business or any substantial part
of their assets, or grant any operating license.

Permit any Person holding Equity Interests in the Borrower or any corporate Guarantor or in any
Person that controls directly or indirectly the Borrower or any corporate Guarantor, to sell or
transfer their Equity Interests in such Borrower or corporate Guarantor, or permit the Bonower or
any corporate Guarantor or any Person that directly or indirecUy controls the Borrower or any
corporate Guarantor to issue any Equity Interests to any Person which is not a Borrower or a
corporate Guarantor.

"Equity Interests" means, vwth respect to any Person, any and ail shares, interests, participations,
lights in, or other equivalents (however designated) of such Person's capital, including any interest in a
partnership, limited partnership or other similar Person and any beneficial interest In a trust, which carry

8.

9.

a.

b.

c.
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1119658 Alberta Ltd, SCHEDULE "A"

^  the right to vote on the election of directors or individuals exercising similar functions in respect of such
~  Person and/or which entitle their holder to participate in the profits of such Person.

This provision shall not apply to any Borrower or any corporate Guarantor who Is a Public Issuer.
"Public Issuer" means any Borrower or any corporate Guarantor whose Equity Interests are listed or
posted for trading on the Toronto Stock Exchange or the TSX Venture Exchange or any other stock
exchange or over-the-counter market acceptable to BDC.

11. Not engage in, or permit their premises to be used by a tenant or other Person, for any activity v^ich
I  BDC, from time to time, deems ineligible, including without limitation any of Ihe following ineligible

Lj' activities:

a. businesses that are sexually exploltive or that are inconsistent with generally accepted community
standards of conduct and propriety, including those that feature sexually explicit entertainment,

I  products or services; businesses that are engaged in or associated with illegal acb'vitJes;
^  businesses trading In countries that are proscribed by the Federal GovemmenL*

b. businesses that operate as stand-alone nightclubs, bars, lounges, cabarets, casinos,
discotheques, video arcades, pool and billiard hails, and similar operations; or

^  c. businesses that promote nudism and naturism.

BDC's finding that there is an ineligible activity shall be final and binding between the parties and will not be
subject to review. The prohibitions set out in this paragraph 11 shall also apply to any entity that controls, is
controlled fay, or that is under the common control with, any Borrower and any corporate Guarantor.

I  SEaiON IV • EVENTS OF DEFAULT

taj

1. The Borrower fails to pay any amount owing under or pursuant to fî e Loan Documents.

!  2. The Borrower falls to comply with or to perform any provision of the Letter of Offer or the other Loan
j  Documents.

3. The Borrower and/or the Guarantor is in default under any other agreonent with BDC or any third party
for the granting of a loan or other financial assistance and such default remains unremedi^ after any

1  cure period provided in such other agreement.

4. Any representation or warranty made by the Borrower or any corporate Guarantor in any Loan Document
Is breached, false or misleading in any material respect or becomes at any time false.

5. Any schedule, certificate, financial statement, report, notice or oUrer writing fumlshed by the Borrower or
^  corporate Guarantor to BDC in connection with the Loan is false or misleading in any material respect on

the date as of which the facts therein set forth are stated or certified.

6. The Borrower or corporate Guarantor becomes insolvent or generally fails to pay, or admits in writing
their inability or refusal to, pay their debts as they become due; or any Borrower or corporate Guarantor
appties for, consents to, or acquiesces in tî e appointment of a trustee, receiver or ottwr custodian for
such Borrower or corporate Guarantor or any property thereof, or makes a genera) assignment for the
benefit of creditors; or, in the absence of such application, consent or acquiescence, a trustee, receiver
or other custodian Is appointed for the Borrower or corporate Guarantor for a substantial part of the
property of such party; or any bankruptcy, reorganization, debt arrangement, or other case or proceeding
under any bankmptcy or insolvency law, or any dissolution or liquidation proceeding, is commenced in
respect of such parfy, or any Borrower or corporate Guarantor takes any action to authorize, or In
furtherance of, any of the foregoing.

7. The Borrower ceases or threatens to cease to carry on all or a substantial part of their business.

8. Without the prior written consent of BDC, the occurrence of a change of control of the Borrower (as
determined by BDC) who is not a Public Issuer.

9. The Borrower or any corporate Guarantor is in violation of any applicable law relating to terrorism or
money laundering, Induding the Proceeds of Crime (Money Laundering) and Terrorist Financing Act
(Canada).

10. in the event that either a) any Person or group of Persons, acting jointly or In concert, that already owns
20% or more of the outstanding Equity Interests of a Public issuer, acquires a number of Equity interests
from such Public Issuer or from any third party that would result in such Person or group of Persons
owning more than 50% of the outstanding Equity Interests of such Public issuer or b) any Person or
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group of Persons, acting jointly or In concert, that does not already own 20% or rhore of the outstanding
Equity Interests of a Public Issuer, acquires a number of Equity interests from such Public issuer or from
any third party that would result in such Person or group of Persons owning at least 20% of the
outstanding Equity Interests of such Public Issuer, BDC may reNrfew the Loan and may require that the
Loan, together with Interest and any other anounts then outstanding, be repaid within sixty (60) days.
Should the Borrower fail to repay the Loan, accoied interest, and all other amounts outstanding within
sixty (60) days of the demand by BDC under this provision, the Borrower shall be in Default and same
shall constitute an Event of Default. -

SECTiON V - GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The Borrower and each Guarantor agree to the foilov/lng additional provisions:

Other Available Interest Rate Plans

Upon acceptance of the Letter of Offer, the Borrower can select one of BOC's other available fixed or floating
interest rate plans, if the selection is made before the Acceptance Date, there is no fee and the selected
piari shall be based on BOC's Base Rate in effect on the Loan Authorization Date. If the selection is made after
the initiai Acceptance Date, there is a fee and an Interest Differential Charge may apply. The new rate shall
become effective on the fourth day following receipt of the request by BDC. However, in the event of a period of
increased Interest rate volatility, vvhich will be determined by a fluctuation of greater than 0.5% during the same
transaction day of the yield to maturity of the five-year Canada bond benchmark, the Bank reserves the right to
suspend the borrower's right to switch from a floating interest rate plan to a fixed Interest rate plan.

Standby Fee Date Change When Switching From Floating to Fixed Rate Plans

If the Borrower changes to a fixed interest rate plan within 2 months after the Loan Authorization Date, the
standby fee shall be effective two months after the Loan Authorization Date. If the change to a fixed interest rate
plan occurs later than two months after the Loan Authorization Date, the standby fee shall be effective on the date

^  the new fixed interest plan takes effect.

Interest Adjustment Date
i

^  Provided no Default has occurred and Is continuing, prior to each Interest Adjustment Date, BDC shall advise the
Borrower of BDC's Base Rates then in effect for the fixed interest rate plans available. Not later than on the
current Interest Expiration Date, the Borrower shall select a new interest rate plan. If ttie Borrower selects a new
fixed interest rate plan, effective on the Interest Adjustment Date, the Interest rate for the Loan shall be BDC's
Base Rate applicable to the fixed Interest rate plan selected by the Borrower adjusted by the Variance which new
rate shall be applicable until the next Interest Expiration Date. If the Loan Is on a fixed interest rate plan with
blended payments of principal and interest, the repayment schedule shall be adjusted on each interest

j  Adjustment Dale. If the Borrower has not advised BDC in writing of its choice before an Interest Adjustment Date,
M  the Loan shall automatically s\Mtch to BDC's floating interest rate plan on the Interest Adjustment Date with an

interest rate being BOC's Floating Base Rate as adjusted by the V^ance. Outstanding principal for blended
payment loans shall then be divided in equal monthly instalments to be paid until Maturity Date.

i  In the event BDC should demand repayment of the Loan by reason of an Event of Default, any fixed Interest rate
^  applicable at the time of demand shall continue to apply to the Loan until full repayment and shall not be adjusted

at the next Interest Adjustment Date.

I  Pre-Authorized Payment System

w  All payments provided for in the Letter of Offer must be made by pre-authorized debits from the Borrower's bank
account. The Borrower shall sign all documentation required to that effect and provide a sample cheque marked
void.

i
J  Application of Payments

All payments shall be applied in the following order

;  1. any prepayment Indemnity (including the monthly Interest and Interest Differential Charge)

U  2, protective disbursements;
3. standby fees (arrears and current);
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4. arrears, in the following order: transaction fees, administration fees, management fees, interest ai d
principal;

5. current balances, in the following order; transaction fees, management fees, interest and principal;
6. cancellation fees;

7. credits to the tax reserve account and asset maintenance and upgrade account, if applicable; and
8. other amounts due and payable.

Other than regular payments of principal and interest, BDC may apply any other monies received by it, before or
after Default, to any debt the Borrower may owe BDC under or pursuant to the Letter of Offer or any other
agreement and BDC may change those applications from time to time.

Consent to Obtaining Information

The Borrower and any corporate Guarantor authorize BDC, from time to time, to obtain financial, compliance,
account status and any other information about a Bonower and any corporate Guarantor and their respective
business from their accountants, their auditors, any financial institution, creditor, credit reporting or rating agency,
credit bureau, govemmental department, body or utility.

Notices

Notices must be In writing and may be given in person, or by letter sent by fax, mail, courier or electrDnically; If to
the Borrower, at the Bomowar's address above or such other addresses as the Bomower may advise BDC in
writing, or if to BDC, at BOC's address above.

Joint and Several Liability

Where In the Loan Documents, any covenant, agreement, warranty, representation or obligation Is made or
imposed upon two or more Persons or a party comprised of more than one Person, each such covenant,
agreement, warranty, representation or obligation shall be deemed to be and be read and construed as a joint
and several (solidary in Quebec) covenant, agreement, warranty, representation or obligation of each such
Person or party, as the case may be. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, each Borrower shall be
jointly and severally (soiidarily) liable with each other to BDC for the full performance of alt obligations under the
Loan Documents.

Anti- Money Laundering/Know Your Client

The Borrower and each Guarantor acknowledge that, pursuant to prudent banking practices in respect of
"knowing your client', 000, in compliance with its internal policies, is required to verify and record infomnation
regarding the Borrower and each Guarantor, theb* directors, authorized signing officers, shareholders and other
Persons In control of the Borrower and each Guarantor. The Borrower and each Guarantor shall promptly provide
all such information, including supporting documentation and other evidence, as may be reasonably requested by
BDC or any prospective assignee or other financial institution participating in the Loan with BDC, in order to
comply with intemal policies and applicable laws on anti-money laundering and anti-terrorist financing.

Confidentiality

The Borrower and each Guarantor shall not disclose the contents of this Letter of Offer to anyone except its
professional advisors.

Changes in Accounting Standards

In the event that a Borrower or any Guarantor adopts any changes In accounting standards, Including but not
limited to GAAP for Private Enterprises and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), which have an
effect on any provision in the Letter of Offer relying on financial statement calculations, BOG may amend such
provision to reflect the original intent of the provision.
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This Is Exhibit "B" referred to in the Affidavit of

Hardeep Singh sworn before me on the
day of November, 2018.

)
)

A Commissid'ner for Oaths in and )
for the Province of Alberta )
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Letter of Offer dated July 8,2015

Yorkton Best Western TBi

P.O. Box 79202 Rpo Nottingham
Sherwood Park, AB
ISA 583

Attention Ms. Kuldeep (Kelly) Maan

Re: Loan(5) No. 089712-01

BDCIO: 10002698164

J

i

U

/

u

J

J

;  f

Lj

J

J

J

In accordance with this letter of offer of credit as amended from time to time (the "Letter of Offer"),
Business Development Bank of Canada ("EDO") is pleased to offer you the following loan(s)
(hereinafter individually or collectively referred to as the "Loan"). The Letter of Offer is open for
acceptance until July 18, 2015 (the "Acceptance Date") after which date it shall become null and
void.

LOAN PURPOSE AND FUNDING

Loan Purpose

Purchase Existing ICQ Unit Hotel
Building Improvements

Funding
BOG 089712-01

Advance from 1119658 Alberta Ltd,

4.600,000,00
400,000.00

5.000.000.00

2,750.000.00

2,250.000.00

5.000,000,00

No change to the Loan Purpose or Funding may be made without EDO's prior written consent. The
proceeds of the Loan may only be used for the Loan Purpose.

DEFINITIONS

In the Letter of Offer, capitalized terms have the meanings described in Schedule "A" - Section I or
are defined elsewhere in the text of the Letter of Offer.

LENDER

BOG

BuslneM Oev^iopmsnt Bankol Cavda
First Edmonton Place, 10665 Jasper Avenue Suits 200
Edmonton, ABT5J^$9
wwbdeca
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BORROWER

Yorkton Best Western TBI (the "Borrower")

GUARANTOR

1119658 Alberta Ltd.

Kuldeep (Kelly) Kaur Maan

(Hereinafter individually or collectively referred to as the "Guarantor"). The terms of each
guarantee are set forth in the Security section below.

LOAN AMOUNT

Loan 089712-01: $2,750,000.00

INTEREST RATE

The Loan and all other amounts owing by the Borrower pursuant to the Loan Documents shall bear
interest at the following rate:

Loan 089712-01

Floating Rate
J  BDC's Floating Base Rate plus a variance of 0.00% per year (the "Variance 01"). On the date

hereof, BDC's Floating Base Rate is 4.85% per year.

;  INTEREST CALCULATION !
kJ

Interest shall be calculated monthly on the outstanding principal, commencing on the date of the
first disbursement, both before and after maturity. Default and judgement.

Arrears of interest or principal and all other amounts owing by the Bomower pursuant to the Loan
I  Documents shall bear interest at the rate applicable to the Loan and shall be calculated and
J  compounded monthly.

j  REPAYMENT
J

Principal of the Loan is repayable according to the following. The balance of the Loan in principal
and interest and all other amounts owing pursuant to the Loan Documents shall become due and

J  payable on the Maturity Date (the "Maturity Date").
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J LETTER OF OFFER Yorkton Best Western TBI - 089712. July 8. 2015

Loan 089712-01

Regular

J
I

J

J

J

(

U

I

J

I

u

J

Li

kJ

Payments
Start^ate Endibke

Number; Frequency Amountdf

1 Once 8,170.00 23-05-2016 23-05-2016

299 Monthly 9,170.00 23-06-2016 23-04-2041

In addition, interest is payable monthly on the 23"^ day of the month (the "Payment Date 01")
commencing on the next occumng Payment Date 01 following the first advance on the Loan.

Maturity Date: April 23, 2041 (the "Maturity Date 01").-

PREPAYMENT

Annual Prepayment Privilege: Provided that the Borrower is not In default of any of its obligations
to BDC, the Borrower may. once in any 12 month period, prepay up to 15% of the outstanding
principal on any Loan without indemnity. The first prepayment can be made at any time more than
one year after July 8, 2015. The prepayment privilege is not cumulative and each prepayment on
an individual Loan must be at least 12 months subsequent to the last prepayment on that same
loan. The prepayment privilege is not transferable from one individual Loan to another and is not
applicable if any Loan is being repaid In full.

In addition to the annual privilege, the Borrower may prepay at any time all or part of the principal
provided that the Borrower pays the interest owing up to the time of the prepayment together with
an Indemnity equal to:

If the interest rate on the Loan Is a floating rate:
-  three months further interest on the principal prepaid at the floating interest rate then

applicable to the Loan.

If the interest rate on the loan is a fixed rate:
-  the sum of (a) three months further Interest on the principal prepaid at the fixed interest rate

then applicable to the Loan; and (b) the Interest Differential Charge.

Partial prepayments shall be applied regressively on the then last maturing Instalments of principal.

J

J
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SECURITY j

The Loan, Interest on the Loan and all other amounts owing pursuant to the Loan Documents shall
be secured by the following (the "Security"):

Loan 089712-01

1. First readvanceable mortgage in the principal amount of $5,500,000 on land (approx. 1.63
acres) legally described as Lots 11 & 12, Block 7, Plan 99Y06931 and building located at 2
Kelsey Bay, Yorkton, Saskatchewan, to be owned by Yorkton Best Western TBI. Building
location survey or title Insurance required.

2. General Security Agreement Yorkton Best Westem TBI providing a first security interest in
J  all present and after-acquired personal property, except consumer goods, subject only to
^  priority on inventory and receivables to lender extending line of credit.

3. Guarantee of 1119658 Alberta Ltd. for the full amount of the Loan, supported by:
a) a first readvanceable mortgage in the principal amount of $5,500,000 on land

^  (approximately 2.0 acres) legally described as Lot 8, Block 151, Plan 0720020, and
building located at 5002-34 Avenue, Drayton Valley, Alberta, owned by 1119658 Alberta

I  Ltd. Building location survey or title Insurance required. Concurrent mortgage from BDC
J  Loan 089654-01 will stand as security for this Loan.

b) a first security interest in all present and after-acquired personal property, except
consumer goods, subject only to priority on inventory and receivables to lender e^dending
line of credit. Concurrent General Security Agreement from BDC Loan 089654-01 will
stand as security for this Loan.
The guarantor agrees that it is directly responsible for the payment of the cancellation,
standby and legal fees.

4. Personal guarantee of Kuldeep (Kelly) Kaur Maan for $250,000. The guarantor agrees that
she is directly responsible for the payment of the cancellation, standby and legal fees.

J  5. Assignment of shareholder's loans/Due to Related totalling $2,250,000 from Kuldeep
^  (Kelly) Kaur Maan and/or 1119658 Alberta Ltd. Interest may not be paid.

DISBURSEiy9ENT |

The Loan funds shall be disbursed as follows:

Loan 089712-01

1. Once all required Security Is completed and applicable Condition Precedent have been
met, funds of $2,250,000 on this loan will t^e disbursed to the appointed solicitor/notary
when requested to close the transaction, along with $1,950,000 from the BDC 089654-01
loan and $400,000 Advanced from 1119656 Alberta Ltd.

2. BDC \Mii disburse the final $400,000 of this loan for Building Improvements after
satisfaction of applicable conditions precedent, and upon receipt of invoices evidendng
expenditures under the Loan Purpose. The amount disbursed shall not exceed 100% of the
project element BDC Is financing of the total dollar amount of Invoices submitted (excluding
applicable taxes) less any applicable holdbacks.

A physical inspection by a BDC representative of the expenditures under the Loan Purpose
is to be done at the mid-way point of Building Improvement project completion.
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LETTER OF OFFER Yorkton Best Western TBI - 089712, Jgly 8, 2015

Unless otherwise authorized, funds for each Loan account number shall be disbursed to the
solicitor or notary who shall confirm to BDC the execution, delivery and registration of the Security
relating to the Loan.

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

Any obligation to make any advance under the Letter of Offer is subject to the following conditions
being fulfilled to the satisfaction of BDC:

1. Receipt of the Security in form and substance satisfactory to BDC registered as required to
perfect and maintain the validity and rank of the security, and such certificates,
authorizations, resolutions and legal opinions as BDC may reasonably require.

2. Satisfactory review of all financial information relating to the Borrower and any corporate
Guarantor and their respective business as BDC may reasonably require.

3. No Default or Event of Default shall have occurred.

4. No Material Adverse Change shall have occurred.

5. Provision of documents evidencing expenditures under the Loan Purpose, If applicable.

6. Satisfaction of all applicable disbursement conditions contained in the Disbursement
section of this Letter of Offer.

7. The Borrower will have incorporated a company which will have provided its written
adoption, ratification and assumption of the Loan and the obligations contained in this
Letter of Offer. The undersigned principal and the Guarantor agree that if the principal
does not incorporate a company, she is responsible for the payment of the Cancellation
and Standby Fees as well as the Legal fees and Expenses referred to In this Letter of
Offer. The Borrower agrees that the shareholder of the corporation shall be only that
person who have been represented to BDC as the proposed shareholder.

:  8. Provide written confirmation from Best Western indicating that the hotel being purchased,
^  located at 2 Kelsey Bay, Yorkton, Saskatchewan, will be flagged as a Best Western hotel.

Documentation to be deemed satisfactory in the sole opinion and judgment of BDC.

j  9. Prior to disbursement of the final $400,000 of this loan, obtain a construction contract
J  acceptable to BDC from a general contractor supporting the construction costs of no more

than $400,000. Documentation to be deemed satisfactory in the sole opinion and judgment
of BDC.

U  UNDERLYING CONDITIONS

The following conditions shall apply throughout the term of the Loan:

1. Annually, and on demand, you agree to provide BDC with written proof of your payment of
the property, school or similar taxes which are assessed against the mortgaged land and
improvements (the "faxes"), within thirty (30) days following the due date of each required
instalment Should you default in paying any such instalment of the taxes when due, you
will pay BDC monthly payments as calculated by BDC to establish a tax reserve account.
These payments will be collected by the pre-authorized debit plan and the funds in the
account will earn interest in accordance with BDC's policy then in effect. You authorize
BDC to pay the relevant taxing authorities. Should there be insufficient funds to satisfy the
taxes owing, you will pay the shortfall. BDC will not be responsible for funding the shortfall
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or any arrears, including interest and other charges. You will instruct the taxing authority to
forward a copy of the tax notice to BDC, or you will deliver a copy to BOC upon receipt.

2. Cross Default Clause - This loan is in default if the loan to 1119858 Alberta Ltd., BDC loan
# 08965401, is in default and vice versa.

ASSET MAINTENANCE AND UPGRADE RESERVE ACCOUNT

Loan 089712-01

The Borrower shall pay BDC monthly, or at such other frequency as BDC may require, payments
of ̂ 000.00 to establish an asset maintenance and upgrade reserve account sufficient to pay the
coil of future renovations/ expansions/ maintenance of premises.

Payments to the asset maintenance and upgrade reserve account are based on a forecast of the
cost of a structured asset maintenance and/or upgrade programme submitted prior to first
disbursement and adjusted by BDC thereafter, from time to time, during the life of the Loan, These
payments shall be collected by the pre-aulhorlzed payment system. Upon completion of scheduled
maintenance and/or upgrades under the programme, the Borrower shall provide documentation,
satisfactory to BDC, evidencing the actual expenditures paid or to be paid. BDC will then release
funds from this reserve account to the extent of such expenditures. Funds in this reserve account
are held by BDC as Security for the Loan and BDC may. after Default, apply funds in this reserve
account towards any amounts owing to BDC.

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

The Borrower makes the representations and warranties in Schedule "A" - Section II. These
representations and warranties shall survive the execution of the Letter of Offer and shall continue
in force and effect until the full payment and performance of all obligations of the Bonower
pursuant to the Loan Documents.

COVENANTS

So long as any amount owing pursuant to the Loan Documents remains unpaid, the Borrower and
any corporate Guarantor shall perfonn the covenants in Schedule "A" - Section ill.

REPORTING OBUGATIONS

The Borrower (and If applicable the corporate Guarantor) shall provide to BDC within 90 days of its
(their) fiscal year end the following financial statements:

w j Conipahy Typa Frequency Period Ending

i
1 j Yorkton Best Western TBl Review Engagement Annual June

j 1119658 Alberta Ltd. Review Engagement Annual June

UJ and such other financial and operating statements and reports as and when BDC may reasonably
require.
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LETTER OF OFFER Yorkton Best Western TBI - 089712, July 8,2015

EVENTS OF DEFAULT

The occurrence of any of the events listed In Schedule "A" - Section IV constitutes an event of
default under the Letter of Offer (each an "Event of Default"). If an Event of Default occurs, any
obligation of BDC to make any advance, shall, at BDC's option, terminate and BDC may, at its
option, demand Immediate payment of the Loan and enforce any Security.

FEES
j

i

U  Cancellation Fee

If the Borrower does not draw on the Loan by the Lapsing Date indicated below (the "Lapsing
J  Date"), the Loan shall lapse and be cancelled and the Borrower and the Guarantor shall pay BDC
^  the applicable cancellation fee indicated below. If the Loan is partially disbursed on the Lapsing

Date, the Borrower and Guarantor shall pay BDC a percentage of the cancellation fee in proportion
to the percentage of the Loan that is cancelled. No cancellation fee will be payable If 50% or more

U  of the Loan has been disbursed.

The cancellation fee is payable on demand and is liquidated damages, not a penalty, and
represents a reasonable estimate of BDC's damages should the Loan be cancelled or allowed to
lapse in whole or in part.

Loan 089712-01

Lapsing Date: July 8, 2016 (the "Lapsing Date 01").
Cancellation Fee: $82,500.00 (the "Cancellation Fee 01").

Standby Fee

The Borrower and the Guarantor shall pay BDC a non-refundable standby fee calculated at a rate
as indicated below on the portion of the Loan which has not been advanced or cancelled excluding
the Consulting portion and/or Future Interest Reserve. This fee shall be calculated daily and be
payable in arrears commencing on the date indicated below and on each Payment Date thereafter.

Loan 089712-01

Rate: 1.50% per annum
Date: July 8, 2016

Legal Fees and Expenses

The Borrower and the Guarantor shall pay, on demand, all legal and other out-of-pocket costs of
BDC incurred in connection with the Loan and the Loan Documents including the enforcement of
the Loan and the Loan Documents, whether or not any documentation is entered Into or any

J  advance is made to the Borrower. All legal and other out-of-pocket expenses of BDC in connection
with any amendment or waiver related to the Loan and the Loan documents shall also be for the
account of the Borrower.
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Loan Management Fee

I  The Borrower shall pay BDC an annual management fee as indicated below. This management
J  fee is payable annually on the Payment Date Immediately following each anniversary of the first

advance of the specific Loan account number. This fee is non-refundable and is subject to change.

J  Loan 089712-01
$750.00 per year (the "Management Fee 01")

J  Transaction Fees

The Borrower shall pay BDC loan amendment and Security processing fees charged for the
administrative handling of the Loan.

CONFLICTS

J  The Loan Documents constitute the entire agreement between BDC and the Borrower. To the
extent that any provision of the Letter of Offer is inconsistent with or in conflict with the provisions
of the other Loan Documents, such provision of the Letter of Offer shall govern.

INDEMNITY

The Borrower shall indemnify and hold BDC harmless against any and ail claims, damages,
losses, liabilities and expenses incurred, suffered or sustained by BDC by reason of or relating
directly or Indirectly to the Loan Documents save and except any such claim, damage, loss, liability
and expense resulting from the gross negligence or wilful misconduct of BDC.

GOVERNING LAW j

This Letter of Offer shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
jurisdiction In which the Business Centre of BDC is located as shown on the first page of this Letter
of Offer.

SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

The Letter of Offer shall extend to and be binding on the Borrower and BDC and their respective
successors and assigns. BDC, in its sole discretion, may assign, sell or grant participation in (a
"transfer") all or any part of its rights and obligations under this Letter of Offer or the Loan to any

(  third party, and the Borrower agrees to sign any documents and take any actions that BDC may
reasonably require in connection with any such transfer. Upon completion of the transfer, the third
party will have the same rights and obligations under this Letter of Offer as if it were a party to it,
with respect to all rights and obligations included in the transfer and BDC will be released to the
extent of any interest under this Letter of Offer or the Loan it assigns. BDC may disclose
information it has in connection with the Borrower or any Guarantor to any actual or prospective

,  transferee. No Borrower or Guarantor shall have the right to assign any of its rights or obligations
J  under or pursuant to the Loan Documents without BDC's prior written consent.
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ACCEPTANCE

The Letter of Offer and any modification of it may be executed and delivered by original signature,
fax, or any other electronic means of communication acceptable to BDC and in any number of
counterparts, each of which is deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall
constitute one and the same Letter of Offer.

SCHEDULE _

The Letter of Offer Includes Schedule "A" which contains Definitions, Representations and
Warranties, Covenants, Events of Default and General Terms and Conditions. Schedule "A" has
been inserted after the signature page and forms an integral part of the Letter of Offer.

LANGUAGE CLAUSE

The parties hereby confirm their express wish that the Letter of Offer and all related documents be
drawn up in the English language. Les parties reconnaissent leur volont6 expresse que la prdsente
lettre d'offre ainsi que tous les documents qui s'y rattachent soient rediges en langue anglaise.

Should you have any questions regarding the Letter of Offer, do not hesitate to communicate with
one of the undersigned.

Peter Webster

Manager, Major Accounts
Phone: (780) 495-2723
Fax: (780) 495-6616
peter. webster@bdc. ca

Heather Kenneth

Client Relationship Officer
Phone: (780) 495-2800
Fax: (780) 495-6616
heather.kenneth@bdc.ca

I

J
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ACCePTANCE

The parties accept the terms and conditions set forth at«Dve and In the attached Schedule "A".

This I ^ day of - J L7 k, 2015.

J

J

Yorkton Best Western TBI

c.

Name; ijCu t^b U. I ̂ .p \V.\ yWV
Please print name of signing party

Authorized Signing Officer

guarantors

1119658 Alberta Ltd.

Name: Cr
Please print name of signing party

Authorized Signing Officer

Kuldeep (Kelly) Kaur Maan
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Yorkton Best Western TBI SCHEDULE "A"

July 8,2015

SECTION I - DEFINITIONS _ _ !

"Available Funds" - means In respect of the Borrower and any corporate Guarantor for any period of 12 months,
the sum of the net profits before non-recurring or non-operat'mg items that are not related to normal operations (as
designated by the external accredited accountant) plus depreciation and amortization; plus deferred income
taxes; and minus dividends.

"Available Funds Coverage Ratio" - means the ratio of Available Funds over the current portion of Term Debt.

"BDC's Base Rate" - means the annual rate of Interest announced by BDC through its offices from time to time
as its base rate and, as the case may be, subject to a discount for the duration, applicabie to each of BDC's fixed
interest rate plans then in effect for determining the fixed interest rates on Canadian dollar loans.

"BDC's Floating Base Rate" - means the annual rate of interest announced by BDC through its offices from
time to time as Its floating rate then in effect for determinir^g the floating interest rates on Canadian dollar loans.
The Interest rate applicable to the Loan shall vary automatically wittiout notice to the Borrower upon each change
in BDC's Floating Base Rate.

"BDC's US Dollar Floating Base Rate" - means the 1-month US Dollar floating t>asa rate set the last business
day of each month for the following month for determining the floating interest rates on US Dollar loans. The
interest rate applicable to the Loan shall vary automaticany without notice to the Borrower upon each change in
BDC's US Dollar Floating Base Rate. BDC's US Dollar Floating Base Rate for the period from the date of the first
advance on the Loan to the first business day of the following month will t>e the 1-month US Dollar floating base
rate as established by BDC on the first bua'ness day of the month in which the funds are disbursed. Thereafter,
the 1-month US Dollar Floating Base Rate may vary on the first business day of each month.

"Corrasponding Fixed Interest Rate Plan" - means, at any time in respect of a prepayment, the fixed interest
rate plan then being offered by BDC to Its clients equal to the number of years, rounded to the nearest year
(minimum of one year), frcxn the date such prepayment Is received to the next scheduled Interest Adjustment
Date (or the Maturity Date If eariier).

"Default" - means an Event of Default or any condition thaL with the giving of notice, the passage of time or
othennrise, is susceptible of being an Event of Default.

"6AAP" - means generally accepted accounting principles in Canada applied consistently.

"GAAP for Private Enterprises" - means generally accepted accounting principles approved by the Accounting
Standards Board for financial reporting for private companies in Canada who have elected not to adopt IFRS.

"IFRS" - means International Financial Reporting Standards approved by the Accounting Standards Board for
accounting for publicly accountable entenprlses and private enterprises who have voluntarily decided to adopt this
set of standards.

"Interest AcQustment Date" - means, in respect of any fixed interest rate plan, the day after the Interest
Expiration Date of such fixed Interest rate plan. •

"Interest Differential Charge" - means, in respect of ttie prepayment of the Loan or any portion of the Loan on a
fixed Interest rate plan, if, on the date of the prepayment, the BDC's Base Rate for the Corresponding Fixed
Interest Rate Plan is lower than the BDC's Base Rate in effect when the Borrower entered or renewed the fixed
interest rate plan, whichever is most recent, the amount calculated as follows:

(i) the difrerence between the two rates;

(ii) such interest differential is multiplied by the principal that would have t>een outstanding at each future
Payment Date until the next Interest Adjustment Date (or the maturity of the principal If earlier);

(iil) the Interest Differential Charge is the present value of those monthly amounts calculated using BDC's
Base Rate for the Corresponding Fixed interest Rate Plan as the discount rate. In the case of partial
prepayment the interest Differential Charge will be reduced In the same proportion as the amount
prepaid bears to the principal outstanding on the Loan at the time prepayment is received. If the Loan is
secured by a mortgage or a hypothec on real estate and the Loan is prepaid in ̂ 11 after 5 years from the
date of the mortgage or hypothec, the Interest Differential Charge shall not be payable If the mortage or
hypothec is given by en individual and shall only be payable if permitted under the interest Act.
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"Interest Explratl^ Date" - means the date on which a fixed interest rate plan expires.

)  "Loan" - shall have the meaning indicated in the Letter of Offer, or, as the context may require, at any time the
I  unpaid principal balance of the Loan.

"Loan Documents" - means, collectively, the application for financing, the Letter of Offer, the security
contemplated by the Letter of Offer and all other documents, instmments and agreements delivered In connection
with the foregoing.

"Material Adverse Change" - means:

(i) a material adverse change In, or a material adverse effect upon, the financial condition, operations,
assets, business, properties or prospects of the Borrower or any corporate Guarantor,

(li) a material Impairment of the ability of the Borrower or any corporate Guarantor to perform any of their
obligations under any Loan Document, or

(ill) a material adverse effect upon any substantial portion of the assets subject to security in favour of BDC
or upon the legality, validity, binding effect, rank or enforceability of any Loan Document.

"Person" - includes any natural person, corporation, company, Limited Liability Company, trust, joint venture,
association, incorporated organization, partnership, governmental authority or other entity.

"Tangible Equity" - means the sum of the share capital [owners' capital for non-incorporated businesses]: plus
retained earnings [accumulated net income]; plus subordinated loans or advances from the shareholders [owners]
and related businesses; minus loans or advances to the shareholders [owners], directors, related or non-related
businesses.

"Term Debt" - means the sum of the long-term debt plus the capital leases including the current portion to be
paid over the next 12 months: plus the book value of preferred shares subject to a fbnnal redemption agreement,
If any.

"Term Debt to Tangible Equity Ratio" - means the ratio of the Term Debt over the Tangible Equity.

"Working CapUal Ratio" - means the ratio of the total current assets over the total current liabilities. Current
assets Include the following: cash on deposH, accounts receivable (trade and other), Inventory and prepaid
expenses. Current liabilities include the foDowing: bank advances, cheques in transit, accounts payable (tirade and
ottier) and the current portion due within the next 12 months of all long term debts.

SECTION II - REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

The Borrower hereby represents and warrants to BDC that:

1. It Is a partnership, trust or corporation, as the case may be, duly constituted, validly existing and duly
registered or qualified to carry on busir^ss In each jurisdiction where it is required by appllcabie taws to
be so registered or qualified.

2. The execution, delivery and performance of its obligations under the Letter of Offer and the other Loan
Documents to which it is a party have been duly authorized and constitute legal, valid and binding
obligations enforceable in accordance with their respective terms.

3. It Is not in violation of any applicable law. which violation could lead to a Material Adverse Change.

4. No Material Adverse Change exists and there are no circumstances or events that constitute or would
constitute, with the lapse of time, the giving of notice or otherwise, a Material Adverse Change.

5. No Default or Event of Default exists.

6. All information provided by it to BDC Is complete and accurate and does not omit any material fact and,
without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all financial statements delivered by it to BDC fairly
present its financial condition as of the date of such financial statements and the results of its operations
for the period covered by such financial statements, all in accordance with GAAP.

7. There is no pending or threatened claim, action, prosecution or proceeding of any kind Including but not
limited to non-compliance with environmental law or arising frem the presence or release of any
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contaminant against it or Its assets t^efore any court or administrative agency which, If adversely
determined, could lead to a Material Adverse Change.

8. in respect of properties and assets charged to BOO, it has good and marketable title, free and clear of
any encumbrances, except those encumbrances which BDC has accepted In writing.

The foregoing representations and watranlies shall remain in force and true until the Loan is repaid in full.

SECTION III - COVENANTS

J

J

I

J

The Borrower and each corporate Guarantor shall:

1. Perform their obligations and covenants under the Loan Documents.

2. Maintain in full force and effect and enforceable the Security contemplated by this Letter of Offer.

3. Notify BDC immediately of the occurrence of any Default under the Letter of Offer or any other Loan
Documents,

4. Comply with all applicable laws and regulations.

5. Keep all secured assets insured for physical damages and losses on an "All-Risks" basis, including
Equipment Breakdown (or Boiler & Machinery) where applicable, for their full replacement value and
cause all such insurance policies to name BDC as loss payee as its interests may appear. The policies
shall also name BDC as mortgagee and include a standard mortgage clause in respect of buildings over
which BDC holds Security: and

as further Security, assign or hypothecate all Insurance proceeds to BDC: and
if requested by BDC, maintain adequate general liability Insurance and environmental insurance to
protect it against any lossas or claims arising from pollution or contamination Incidents, or any other type
of insurance (t may reasonably require, and to provide copies of such policies; and maintain ail policies
of insurance in effect for the duration of the Loan.

6. Notify BDC immediately of any loss or damage to tiieir property.
7. Without limiting the generality of paragraph 4 above. In relation to their bu^'ness operations and the

assets and projects of their business, operate in conformity with all environmental laws and regulations;
make certain that their assets ate and shall remain ^e of environmental damage; inform BDC
immediately upon becoming aware of any environmental Issue and promptly provide BDC with copies of
ail communications with environmental authorities and all environmental assessments; pay the cost of
any extemal environmental consultant engaged by BDC to effect an environmental audit and the cost of
any environmental rehabllltation or removal necessary to protect, preserve or remediate the assets,
including any fine or penalty BDC is obligated to incur by reason of any statute, order or directive by a
competent authority.

8. Promptly pay all government-remittances, assessments and taxes including real estate taxes and
provide BDC with proof of payments as BDC may request from time to time.

9. Promptly fumish to BDC such information, reports, certificates and other documents concemir^ the
Borrower and any corporate Guarantor as BDC may reasonably request from time to time.

10. Not, without the prior written consent of BDC,

a. Change the nature of their business.

b. Amalgamate, merge, acquire or otherwise restructure their business, or create an affiliated
company, or sell or otherwise transfer a substantial part of their business or any substantial part
of their assets, or grant any operating license.

c. Permit any Person holding Equity Interests in the Borrower or any corporate Guarantor or in any
Person that controls directly or indirectly the Borrower or any corporate Guarantor, to sell or
transfer their Equity interests in such Borrower or corporate Guarantor, or permit the Borrower or
any corporate Guarantor or any Person that directly or indirectly controls the Borrower or any
corporate Guarantor to issue any Equity Interests to any Person which Is not a Borrower or a
corporate Guarantor.

"Equity Interests" means, with respect to any Person, any and all shares, interests, participations,
rights in, or other equivalents (however designated) of such Person's capital. Inclucfing any Interest in a
partnership, limited partnership or other similar Person and any beneficial interest in a trusL which cany
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the right to vote on the election of directors or Individuals exercising similar functions in respect of such
Person and/or which entitle their holder to participate in the profits of such Person.

This provision shall not apply to any BcMTower or any corporate Guarantor who is a Public Issuer.
"Public issuer" means any Borrower or any corporate Guarantor whose Equity Interests are listed or
posted for trading on the Toronto Stock Exchange or the TSX Venture Exchange or any other stock
exchange or over-the-counter market acceptable to BDC.

11. Not engage in, or permit their premises to be used by a tenant or other Person, for any activity which
BDC, from time to time, deems ineligible, including without limitation any of the following ineligible
activities:

a. businesses that are sexually exploitlve or that are inconsistent with generally accepted community
standards of conduct and propriety, including those that feature sexually explicit entertainment,
products or services; businesses that are engaged in or associated with illegai activities;
businesses trading in countries that are proscribed by the Federal Qovemment;

b. businesses that operate as stand-alone nightclubs, bars, lounges, cabarets, casinos,
discotheques, video arcades, pool and billiard halls, and similar operations; or

c. businesses that promote nudism and naturlsm.

BOC's finding that there Is an ineligible activity shall be final and binding between the parties and will not t>e
subject to review. The prohibitions set out in this paragraph 11 shall also apply to any entity that controls. Is
controlled by, or that Is under the common control with, any Borrower and any corporate Guarantor.

SECTION IV - EVENTS OF DEFAULT

J
1, The Borrower fails to pay any amount owing under or pursuant to the Loan Documents.

2. The Borrower falls to comply with or to perform any provision of the Letter of Offer or the other Loan
Documents.

I  3. The Borrower and/or the Guarantor is in default under any other agreement with BDC or any third party
M  for the granting of a loan or other financial assistance and such default remains unremedled after any

cure period provided in such other agreement.

4. Any representation or vrarranty made by the Borrower or any corporate Guarantor In any Loan Document
is breached, false or misleading In any material respect, or incomes at any time false.

tiJ 5. Any schedule, certificate, financial statement, report, notice or other writing furnished by the Borrower or
corporate Guarantor to BDC in connection with the Loan is false or misleading in any material respect on
the date as of which the facts therein set forth are stated or certified.

6. The Borrower or corporate Guarantor becomes insolvent or generally fails to pay, or admits In writing
their Inability or refusal to pay their debts as they become due; or any Borrower or corporate Guarantor
applies for, consents to. or acquiesces in the appointment of a trustee, receiver or otiier custodian for
such Borrower or corporate Guarantor or any property thereof, or makes a general assignment for the
benefit of creditors; or, in the absence of such application, consent or acquiescence, a trustee, receiver
or other custodian is appointed for the Borrower or corporate Guarantor for a substantial part of the
property of such party: or any bankruptcy, reorganization, debt arrangement, or other case or proceeding
under any bankmptcy or insolvency law, or any dissolution or liquidation proceeding, is commenced In
respact of such party, or any Borrower or corporate Guarantor takes any action to authorize, or in
furtherance of, any of the foregoing.

7. The Borrower ceases or threatens to cease to carry on all or a substantial part of their business.

8. Without the prior written consent of BDC, toe occurrence of a change of control of the Borrower (as
determined by BOO) who is not a Public Issuer.

9. The Borrower or any corporate Guarantor is in violation of any applicable law reialing to terrorism or
money laundering, including the Proceeds of Crime (Money Laundering) and Tenorist Financing Act
(Canada).

10. In toe event that either a) any Person or group of Persons, acting jointly or in concert, that already owns
20% or more of the outstanding Equity Interests of a Public Issuer, acquires a number of Equity interests
from such Public Issuer or from any third party that would result in such Person or group of Persons
owning more than 50% of the outstanding Equity Interests of such Public Issuer or b) any Person or
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group of Persons, acting jointly or in concert, that does not already own 20% or more of the outstanding
Equity Interests of a PutJic Issuer, acquires a number of Equity Interests from such Public Issuer or from
any third party that would result in such Paeon or group of Persons owning at least 20% of the
outstanding Equity Interests of such Public Issuer, BDC may review the Loan and may require frtat the
Loan, together with interest and any other amourits then outstanding, be repaid unthln sixty (60) days.
Should the Borrower fei) to repay the Loan, accrued interest, and all other amounts outstanding within
sixty (60) days of the demand by BDC under this provision, Borrovrer shall be in Default and same
shall constitute an Event of Default.

SECTION V - GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The Borrower and each Guarantor agree to ttie following additional provisions:

Other Available Interest Rate Plans

Upon acceptance of the Letter of Offer, the Borrower can select one of BDC's other available fixed or floating
,  interest rate plans. If the selection is made before the Acceptance Date, there Is no fee and the selected
j  plan shall be based on BDC's Base Rate in effect on the Loan Authorization Date, if the selection is made after
U  the initial Acceptance Date, there Is a fee and an Interest Differential Charge may apply. The new rate shall

become effective on the fourth day following receipt of the request by BOO. However, in the event of a period of
increased Interest rate volatility, which will be determined Isy a fluctuation of greater ̂ an O.SVo during the same

J  transaction day of the yield to maturity of the five-year Canada bond benchmark, the Bank reserves the right to
suspend the borrower's right to switch from a floating Interest rate plan to a fixed Interest rate plan.

Standby Fee Date Change When Switching From Roating to Fixed Rate Plans

I  If the Borrower changes to a fixed interest rate plan within 2 months after the Loan Authorization Date, the
^  standby fee shall be effective two months after the Loan Autticrization Date. If the change to a fixed interest rate

plan occurs later than two months after the Loan Authorization Date, the standtry fee shall be effective on the date
the new fixed interest plan takes effect.

Interest Adjustment Date

Provided no Debuit has occurred and is continuing, prior to each Interest Adjustment Dale, BDC shall advise the
Borrower of BDC's Base Rates then in effect for the fixed interest rate plans available. Not later than on the
current Interest Expiration Date, the Borrower shall select a new Interest rate plan. If the Borrower selects a new
fixed interest rate plan, effective on the interest Adjustment Date, the interest rate for the Loan shall be BDC's
Base Rate applicable to the fixed Interest rate plan selected by the Borrower adjusted by the Variance which new
rate shall be applicable until the next Interest Expiration Date. If the Loan Is on a fixed Interest rate plan wifrt
blended payments of principal and interest, the repayment schedule shall be adjusted on each Interest
Adjustment Date. If the Borrower has not advised BDC in writing of its choice t>efore an Interest Adjustment Date,
the Loan shall automattcaliy sv^tch to BDC's floating Interest rate plan on the Interest Adjustment Date with an
Interest rale being BDC's FloaUng Base Rate as adjusted by the Variance. Outstanding principal for blended
payment loans shall then be divided in equal monthly Instalments to tie paid until Maturity Date.

In the event BDC should demand repayment of the Loan by reason of an Event of Default, any fixed interest rate
applicable at the time of demand shall continue to apply to the Loan until full repayment and shall not be adjusted
at the next Interest Adjustment Date.

Pre-Authorlzed Payment System

All payments provided for In the Letter of Offer must be made by pre-authorized debits from the Borrower's bank
account. The Borrower shall sign all documentation required to that effect and provide a sample cheque marked
void.

Application of Payments

All payments shall be applied In the following order

1. any prepayment Indemnity (including the monthly interest and Interest Differential Charge)

2. protective disbursements;

3. standby fees (arrears and current);
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4. arrears, in the following order; transaction fees, administration fees, manegement fees, Interest and
principal;

5. current balances, in the following order: transaction fees, management fees, interest and principal;
6. cancellation fees;

7. credits to the tax reserve account and asset maintenance and upgrade account, If applicable; and

8. other amounts due and payable.

Other than regular payments of principal and Interest, BDC may apply any other monies received by It, before or
after Default, to any debt the Borrower may owe BDC under or pursuant to the Letter of Offer or any other
agreement and BDC may change those applications from time to time.

Consent to Obtaining information

The Borrower and any corporate Guarantor authorize BDC, from time to time, to obtain financial, compliance,
account status and any other Information about a Borrower and any corporate Guarantor and their respective

,  business from their accountants, their auditors, any financial institution, creditor, credit reporting or rating agency,
^  credit bureau, governmental department, body or utility.

Notices

!  Notices must be in writing and may be given In person, or by letter sent by fax, mail, courier or electronlcaily; if to
*** the Borrower, at the Borrower's address above or such other addresses as the Borrower may advise BDC in

writing, or if to BDC, at BDC's address above.

!  Joint and Severai Liability

^  Where in the Loan Documents, any covenant, agreement, warranty, representation or obligation Is made or
imposed upon two or more Persons or a party comprised of more than one Person, each such covenant.

I  agreement, warranty, representation or obligation shall be deemed to be and be read and construed as a joint
I  and several (solidary In Quebec) covenant, agreement, warranty, representation or obligation of each such

Person or party, as the case may be. Without limiting ttie generality of the foregoing, each Borrower shall tie
jointly and severally (solidarily) liable with each other to BDC for the full performance of all obligations under the
Loan Documents.

I

U  Anti- Money Laundering/Know Your Client

The Borrower and each Guarantor acknowledge that, pursuant to prudent banking practices in respect of
j  "knowing your client", BCXJ. In compliance with Its internal poUcles, Is required to verify and record Information
^  regarding the Borrower and each Guarantor, their directors, authorized signing officers, shareholders and other

Persons in control of the Borrower and each Guarantor. The Borrower and each Guarantor shall promptly provide
all such information, including supporting documentation and other eviderwe, as may be reasonably requested by
BDC or any prospective assignee or other financial Institution participating in the Loan with BDC, in order to

^  comply with internal policies and applicable laws on anti-money laundering and anti-terrorist financing.
Confidentiaiity

j  The Borrower and each Guarantor shall not disclose the contents of this Letter of Offer to anyone except Its
^  professional advisors.

Changes in Accounting Standards

I  In the event that a Borrower or any Guarantor adopts any changes in accounting standards, Including liiut not
^  limited to GAAP for Private Enterprises and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), which have an

effect on any provision in the Letter of Offer relying on financial statement calculations, BDC may amend such
provision to reflect the original Intent of the provision.
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Hardeep Singh sworn before me on the
day of November, 2018.
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P«ge I tf■

MORTGAGE
LAND TITI,ES ACT (Alberta)

(1) Mortgagor(s)/Borrower(s): II19658 ALBERTA LTD.

(2) Address of Mortga8or(s)/Borrower(s); 155.52304 RANGE ROAD 233
SHERWOOD PARK AB T8B IC9

(3) How Properly Held - Nature of Tenancy: FEE SIMPLE

(4) Mortgagee/Bank: BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT BANK OF CANADA incorporated by Special Act of the Parliament of Canada,
having its bead oflicc at the City of Montreal, in the Province of Quebec with business centres in the Province of
Alberta, (sometimes referred to as the ''Lender")

(5) Address .And Postal Code Of Mortgagee 200,10665 JASPER AVENUE
EDMONTON AB T5J 3S9

(6) Legal Description of Mortgaged l.and/Lands: PLAN 0720020
BLOCK 151
LOTS
EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES ANT) MINERALS

(7) Principal Amount Secured/Amount of Secured Obligations/Principal Sum: SS,SOO,000.00

(8) Payment Provisions:

(a) Due Date ON DEMAND

(b) interest Rale floating base rate of the Lender
announced from to time to time
plus 10.00% per year

(c) Calculation Period Monthly

(9) STANDARD FORM MORTGAGE

The Mortgagor(s) acknowledges this charge/mortgage of land consists of the terms contained herein and is subject to the terms contained in the
Standard Form Mortgage that was filed with the Registrar under the Land Tides Act in Alberta as number 112052406.The Mortgagorfs) acknowledge
that he/she understand the nature of the foregoing statement and that the mortgage consists of the terms set out herein and the terms set out in the
Standard Form Mortgage refened to herein

(10) ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The Mortgagor(s) acknowledge that:

the MortgagoT(s) understands the nature of the statements set out in box 9 hereof,
the Mortgagor(s) have been given a copy of the Standard Form Mortgage referred to in box 9 hereof,
the Mortgagorfs) are the registered owncr(s) of the land being mortgaged, and
the Mortgagorfs) mortgage all of tlie Mortgagorfs) estate aitd interest in the land.s described in box 6 hereof for the purpose: of securing tlic
payment of the principal amount, interest and all other amounts secured by this charge/mortgage.

(II) ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS:

NIL

Any additional terms and provisions arc contained in Schedule " " annexed hereto and forming part hereof.
(121 EXECUTION

The Mortgagor has signed this mortgi^c on .2015.

11 58 ALBERTA LTD.

'.Vitness

0
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GENERAL SECURITY AGREEMEN'

THIS AGREEMENT datedf.^Vy . 2015.
FROM: ^

1119658 ALBERTA LTD.

(the "Borrower")

TO:

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT BANK OF CANADA, incorporated by Special Act of the Parliament
of Canada, and having its head office in Montreal. Quebec, with a branch at 200, 10665 Jasper
Avenue, Edmonton, Alberta T5J 389

("BOG")

1. SECURITY INTEREST
(You. as the Borrower, will grant to BDC a charge, referred to as a security interest, over all personal properly now held or in the future
held or acquired by you. You v/ill also grant a charge, referred to as a floating charge, over your complete undertaking and real property
interests. These charges are the security BDC will hold in consideration of fending you funds or providing the credit facility to you.)

1.1 For consideration the Borrower;

(a) mortgages and charges as a fixed and specific charge, and assigns and transfers to BDC, and grants
to BDC a general and continuing security interest in all of the Borrower's present and after acquired
personal property including, without limitation:

(i) all office, trade, manufacturing and all other equipment and all goods, including, without
limitation, machinery, tools, fixtures, computers, furniture, furnishings, chattels, motor vehicles
and other tangible personal property that is not Inventory, and all parts, components,
attachments, accessories, accessions, replacements, substitutions, additions and
improvements to any of the above (all of which is collectively called the "Equipment");

(11) ail inventory, including, without limitation, goods acquired or held for sale or lease or furnished
or to be furnished under contracts of rental or service, all raw materials, work in process,
finished goods, returned goods, repossessed goods, all livestock and their young after
conception, all crops and timber, and all packaging materials, supplies and containers relating
to or used or consumed in connection with any of the foregoing (all of which Is collectively
called the "Inventory");

(iii) all debts, accounts, claims, demands, monies and choses in action which nov./ are. or which
may at any time be, due or owing to or owned by the Borrower and all books, records,
documents, papers and electronically recorded data recording, evidencing or relating to the
debts, accounts, claims, demands, monies and choses in action (all of which is collectively
called the "Accounts");

(iv) all documents of title, chattel paper, instruments, securities and money, and all other personal
property, of the Borrower that is not Equipment, Inventory or Accounts;

{Eo914303.D0CX; l}General Security Agreement - Western
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(v) all patents, trade-marks, copyrights, industrial designs, plant breeder's rights, integrated circuit
topographies, trade-names, goodwill, confidential information, trade secrets and know-how.
including without limitation, environmental technology and bio-technology, sof^ware and any
registrations and applications for registration of the foregoing and all other intellectual and
industrial property of the Borrower (all of which is hereinafter collectively called the "Intellectual
Property"):

(vi) all the Borrower's contractual rights, licenses and all other choses in action of every kind which
now are. or which may at any time be due or ov/Ing to or owned by the Borrower, and all other
intangible property of the Borrower, that is not Accounts, chattel paper, instruments, documents

M  of title, Intellectual Property, securities or money;

(vli) the personal property described in Schedule A attached to this Security Agreement:

ij (viii) all proceeds of every nature and kind arising from the personal property referred to in this
Security Agreement;

j  (b) grants to BDC a general and continuing security interest and charges by way of a floating charge:
w

(i) all of the Borrower's right, title and interest in all its present and after acquired real, immovable
I  j and leasehold property, and all easements, rights-of-way, privileges, benefits, licences,

improvements and rights whether connected with or appurtenant to this property or separately
owned or held, including all structures, plant and other fixtures and including all mineral claims,
mineral rights and leases, all oil, gas and hydrocarbon rights and interests (all of which is

!  collectively called the "Real Property") and excluding the personal property described in Clause
^  1.1(a): and

I  (ii) all of the undertaking and assets of the Borrower, of every nature or kind and wherever situate,
^  whether presently owned or hereafter acquired, and all their proceeds, other than its assets and

undertakings that are otherwise validly and effectively subject to the charges and security
interests in favour of BDC created pursuant to this Clause 1.1.

;  1

^  1.2 The security interests, mortgages, transfers, assignments, charges, grants and conveyances created
pursuant to Clause 1.1 shall be collectively called the "Security Interests", and the property subject to the

i  I Security Interests and all property, assets and undertaking charged, assigned or transferred or secured by
jj any instruments supplemental to or in implementation of this Security Agreement are collectively called the

'Collateral".

i  I 1.3 The schedules, including definitions, form part of this Security Agreement.
U

2. EXCEPTIONS
,  i (With few exceptions, all of your personal property and real property interests are subject to the security interests and charges described
J in Clause 1.1. Only the last day of any lease term and possibly your consumer goods are excepted. Corporations do not hold

consumer goods.)

I  2.1 The last day of the term created by any lease or agreement is excepted out of any charge or the Security
^  Interests but the Borrower shall stand possessed of the reversion and shall remain upon trust to assign and

dispose of it to any third party as BDC shall direct.

J
2.2 All the Borrower's consumer goods are excepted out of the Security Interests; provided that for the purposes

of Collateral in the Yukon the Security Interests shall include Special Consumer Goods as that term is
defined in the Persona! Property Security Act (Yukon); provided further that for the purposes of Collateral in
Saskatchewan the Security Interests shall include consumer goods of the Borrower.

{E6914303.OOCX; iiGeneral Security Agreement - Western
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3. ATTACHMENT
(Value or consideraiion has flowed between you and BDC and the Security Interests in your personal property are complete once you
sign this Security Agreement.)

The Borrower agrees that the Security Interests attach upon the signing of this Security Agreement (or in the
case of after acquired property, upon the date of acquisition), that value has been given, and that the
Borrower has (or in the case of after acquired property, will have upon the date of acquisition) rights in the
Collateral and the Borrower confirms that there has been no agreement between the Borrower and BDC to
postpone the time for attachment of the Security Interests and that it is the Borrovyer's understanding that
BOG intends the Security Interests to attach at the same time.

4. PURCHASE MONEY SECURITY INTEREST
(To the extent that BDC helps you acquire an interest in any personal property, you grant a special security interest to BDC over that
personal property. The special security interest is knov/n as a " Purchase Money Security Interest".)

The Borrower acknowledges and agrees that the Security Interests constitute and are intended to create
Purchase Money Security Interests in Coilateral to the extent that monies advanced by BDC, including all
future advances and re-advances, are used or are to be used. In whole or in part, to purchase or otherwise
to acquire rights in Collateral.

5. OBLIGATIONS SECURED
(The Security Interests and charges you have granted to BDC secure all indebtedness and all obligations to BDC.)

This Security Agreement is in addition to and not in substitution for any other security interest or charge now
or in the future held by BDC from the Borrower or from any other person and shall be general and
continuing security for the payment and performance of all indebtedness, liabilities and obligations of the
Borrower to BDC (including interest thereon), v/hether incurred prior to, at the time of or after the signing of
this Security Agreement including extensions and renewals, and all other liabilities of the Borrower to BDC,
present and future, absolute or contingent, joint or several, direct or indirect, matured or not, extended or
renewed, wherever and however incurred, including all advances on current or running account, future
advances and re-advances of any loans or credit by BDC and the Borrower's obligation and liability under
any contract or guarantee now or in the future in existence whereby the Borrower guarantees payment of
the debts, liabilities and/or obligations of a third party to BDC, and for the performance of all obligations of
the Borrower to BDC, whether or not contained in this Security Agreement (all of which indebtedness,
liabilities and obligations are collectively called the "Obligations").

6. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
(You state that you are able to legally gran! this Security Agreement to BDC. it v/i!l be binding and the Coilateral Is not subject to any
encumbrances that have not been approved by BDC. You own the Collateral and nothing prevents you from granting the Security
Interests and charges in favour of BDC. BDC will rely on al! of the followring representations and warranties.)

5.1 The Borrower represents and warrants to BDC that;

(a) if a corporation, it is a corporation incorporated and organized and validly existing and in good
standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation; it has the corporate power to own or
lease its property and to carry on the business conducted by it; it is qualified as a corporation to carry
on the business conducted by it and to own or lease its property and is in good standing under the
laws of each jurisdiction in which the nature of its business or the property owned or leased by it
makes such qualification necessary; and the execution, delivery and performance of this Security
Agreement are within Its corporate pov/ers, have been authorized and do not contravene, violate or
conflict with any law or the terms and provisions of its constating documents or its by-laws or any
shareholders agreement or any other agreement, indenture or undertaking to which the Borrov/er is a
party or by which it is bound;

(b) if it is a corporation, its name as set forth on page 1 of this Security Agreement is its full, true and
correct name as stated in its constating documents and if such name is in English, it does not have or
use a French language form of its name or a combined English language and French language form
of its name and vice versa, and the Borrower has provided a written memorandum to BDC accurately
setting forth all prior names under which the Borrower has operated;
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(c) if it is a partnership, its name as set forth on page 1 is its full, true and correct, and where required or
voluntarily registered its registered, name; it is a partnership validly created and organized and validly
existing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its creation; it has the power to carry on the business
conducted by it; it is qualified as a partnership to carry on the business conducted by it and is in good
standing under the laws of each jurisdiction in which the nature of its business makes such
qualification necessary; and the execution, delivery and performance of this Security Agreement are
within its powers, have been authorized, and do not contravene, violate or conflict with any law or the
terms of its partnership agreement or any other agreement, indenture or undertaking to which the
Borrower is a party or by which it is bound, and a complete list of the names, addresses and {if
individuals) the dates of birth of the partners of the partnership are set forth on a Schedule attached to

I  this Security Agreement;

(d) if the Borrower is an individual, that individual's full name and address as set forth on page 1 of this
I  Security Agreement are the individual's full and correct name and address and the individual's date of
j  birth as described on the individual's birth certificate a true copy of v.'hich has been provided to BDC

or, if no birth certificate issued from any jurisdiction in Canada exists, as described on the documents
provided to BDC is the individual's correct birth date;

t

•• (e) there is no litigation or governmental proceedings commenced or pending against or affecting the
Collateral or the Borrower, in which a decision adverse to the Borrower would constitute or result in a
material adverse change in the business, operations, properties or .assets or in the condition, financial

J  or otherwise, of the Borrower; and the Borrower agrees to promptly notify BDC of any such future
litigation or governmental proceeding;

j  (f) it does not have any information or knowledge of any facts relating to its business, operations,
^  property or assets or to its condition, financial or otherwise, which it has not disclosed to BDC in

writing and which, if knovm to BDC. might reasonably be expected to deter BDC from extending credit
;  or advancing funds to the Borrower;

j
(g) it has good title and lawfully owns and possesses all presently held Collateral, free from all security

interests, charges, encumbrances, liens and claims, save only the Security Interests and the charges
!  or security interests consented to in writing by BDC, and it has not granted any licenses in or of its
d  Intellectual Property other than as disclosed and consented to by BDC;

/  (h) to the extent that any of the Collateral includes serial numbered goods and motor vehicles which
require serial number registration by virtue of the Act and Its regulations including motor vehicles,
trailers, manufactured homes, mobile homes, boats, outboard motors for boats or aircraft, the
Borrower has given the full and correct serial numbers and any Ministry of Transport designation
marks or other relevant licensing authority marks of all such Collateral to BDC;

(i) the Collateral Is and/or will be located at the place(s) described in Schedule A and will not be removed
from such location(s) without the prior written consent of BDC;

(j) this Security Agreement is granted in accordance with resolutions of the directors (and of the
shareholders as applicable) of the Borrower, if the Borrower is a corporation, or, if the Borrower is a
partnership, of the partners of the Borrower, and all other requirements have been fulfilled to authorize
and make the execution and delivery of this Securih/ Agreement, and the performance of the
Borrower's obligations valid and there is no restriction contained in the constating documents of the
Borrower or in any shareholders agreement or partnership agreement v^rhich restricts the powers of
the authorized signatories of the Borrower to borrow money or give security: and

(k) the Borrower's place(s) of business and chief executive office are correctly described in Schedule A.

U
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7. COVENANTS OF THE BORROWER
(  1 {The Security Interests and the Collateral must be protected while the Security Agreement remains in effect. These covenants are your
J  promises to BDC describing hov/ BDC's Security Interests will be attended to. You will also covenant to maintain accurate books and

records and allow BDC's inspection. Your promises are found in the Security Agreement and Schedules.)

7.1 The Borrower covenants with BDC that while this Security Agreement remains in effect the Borrower will:

(a) promptly pay and satisfy the Obligations as they become due or are demanded:

(b) defend the title to the Collateral for BDC's benefit, against the claims and demands of all persons;

(c) fully and effectually maintain and ensure that the Security Interests are and continue to be valid and
effective;

(d) maintain the Collateral in good condition and repair and provide adequate storage facilities to protect
the Collateral and not permit the value of the Collateral to be impaired;

(e) observe and conform to all valid requirements of any governmental authority relative to any of the
Collateral and all covenants, terms and conditions upon or under which the Collateral is held;

(f) promptly pay and satisfy;

(i) all taxes, assessments, rates, duties, levies, government fees, claims and dues lawfully levied,
assessed or imposed upon it or the Collateral when due. unless the Borrower shall in good faith
contest its obligations so to pay and shall furnish to BDC such security as BDC may require;

(ii) all security interests, charges, encumbrances, liens and claims which rank or could rank in
priority to, or on an equal basis with, any of the Security Interests; and

{iii) all fees from time to time chargeable by BDC arising out of any term of the commitment letter or
the Loan Agreement between BDC and the Borrower including, without limitation, inspection,
administration and returned cheque handling fees;

(g) promptly pay and satisfy all costs, charges, expenses and legal fees and disbursements (on a solicitor
and its own client basis) v^hich may be incurred by BDC In connection with granting loans or credit to
the Borrower, including for;

(i) inspecting the Collateral;

(11) negotiating, preparing, perfecting, registering or renewing the registration of this Security
Agreement and the Security Interests, any Financing or Financing Change Statement, any
modification or amending agreement and other documents relating to the Borrower's
obligations, whether or not relating to this Security Agreement;

(iii) complying with any disclosure requirements under the Act;

(iv) investigating title to the Collateral;

(v) taking, recovering, keeping possession and disposing of the Collateral:

(vi) maintaining the Collateral in good repair, storing the Collateral and preparing the Collateral for
disposition;

(vii) any inspection, appraisal, investigation or environmental audit of the Collateral and the cost of
j  any environmental rehabilitation, treatment, removal or repair necessary to protect, preserve or
^  remedy the Collateral including any fine or penalty BDC becomes obligated to pay by reason of

any statute, order or direction of competent authority;

J
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(viii) any sums BDC pays as fines, clean up costs because of contamination of or from your assets.
Further you will indemnify BDC and its employees and agents from any liability or costs
incurred including legal defence costs. Your obligation under this paragraph continues even
after the Obligations are repaid and this Security Agreement is terminated;

(ix) all other actions and proceedings taken to preserve the Collateral, enforce this Security
Agreement and of any other security interest held by BDC as security for the Obligations,
protect BDC from liability in connection with the Security Interests or assist BDC in its loan and
credit granting or realization of the Security interest, including any actions under the Bankruptcy
and Insolvency Act (Canada) and all remuneration of any Receiver (as defined in Article 15
hereof) or appointed pursuant to the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada);

(h) at BDC's request, execute and deliver further documents and instruments and do all acts as BDC in
its absolute discretion requires to confirm, register and perfect, and maintain the registration and
perfection of, the Security interests;

(i) notify BDC promptly of:

(i) any change in the information contained in this Security Agreement relating to the Borrower, its
business or the Collateral, including, without limitation, any change of name or address
(including any change of trade name, proprietor or partner) and any change in the present
location of any Collateral;

(ii) the details of any material acquisition of Collateral, including the acquisition of any motor
vehicles, trailers, manufactured homes, boats or aircraft;

!

J  (iii) any material loss or damage to the Collateral;

(iv) any material default by any account debtor in the payment or other performance of its
1  obligations to the Borrower respecting any Accounts;

(v) any claims against the Borrower including claims in respect of the Intellectual Property or of any
.  actions taken by the Borrower to defend the registration of or the validity of or any infringement
y  of the Intellectual Property:

(vi) the return to or repossession by the Borrov;er of Collateral that was disposed of by the
!  Borrower; and

(vii) all additional places of business and any changes in its place(s) of business or chief executive
office;

(]) prevent the Collateral, other than Inventory sold, leased, or otherwise disposed of as permitted by this
Security Agreement, from being or becoming an accession to property not covered by this Security
Agreement;

(k) carry on and conduct its business and undertaking in a proper and businesslike manner so as to
preserve and protect the Collateral and the earnings, income, rents, issues and profits of the
Collateral, including maintenance of proper and accurate books of account and records;

(I) permit BDC and its representatives, at all reasonable times, access to the Collateral including all of
I  i the Borrower's property, assets and undertakings and to all its books of account and records, whether
U  at your premises or at your financial advisors, for the purpose of inspection and the taking of extracts,

and the Borrower will render all assistance necessary;

y  (m) permit and does consent to BDC contacting and making enquiries of the Borrowers lessors as well as
assessors, municipal authorities and any taxing body;
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(n) observe and perform ail its obiigations under:

(1) leases, licences, undertakings, and any other agreements to Vv'hich it is a party;

(il) any statute or regulation, federal, provincial, territorial, or municipal, to which it is subject:

(o) deliver to BDC from time to time promptly upon request:

(i) any documents of title, instruments, securities and chattel paper constituting, representing or
relating to the Collateral;

(ii) all books of account and all records, ledgers, reports, correspondence, schedules, documents,
statements, lists and other writings relating to the Collateral to allow BDC to inspect, audit or
copy them;

(ill) all financial statements prepared by or for the Borrower regarding the Borrower's business;

(iv) such information concerning the Collateral, the Borrower and the Borrower's business and
affairs as BDC may reasonably require;

(p) with respect to the Intellectual Property, take all necessary steps and initiate all necessary
proceedings, to maintain the registration or recording of the Intellectual Property, to defend the
Intellectual Property from infringement and to prevent any licensed or permitted user from doing
anything that may invalidate or otherwise impair the Intellectual Property;

(q) with respect to copyright forming part of the intellectual Property, provide to BDC waivers of the moral
rights thereto executed by ail contributors or authors of the copyrighted work;

(r) receive and hold in trust on behalf of and for the benefit of BDC all proceeds from the sale or other
disposition of any Collateral; and

(s) observe and perform the additional covenants and agreements set out in any schedules to this
Security Agreement, including Schedule B, if any.

7.2 Any amounts required to be paid to BDC by the Borrower under this Clause 7 shall be immediately payable
with interest at the highest rate borne by any of the Obligations until all amounts have been paid.

^  7.3 This Security Agreement shall remain in effect until it has been terminated by BDC by notice of termination
to the Borrower and all registrations relating to the Security Agreement have been discharged.

J  8. INSURANCE
*  (U is your obligation to thoroughly insure the Collateral in order to protect your interests and those of BDC. You will follow the specific

requirements of the insurance coverage described in this Clause.)

1

y  8.1 The Borrower covenants that while this Security Agreement is in effect the Borrower shall:

(a) maintain or cause to be maintained insurance on the Collateral with a reputable insurer, of kinds, for
;  I amounts and payable to such person or persons, all as BDC may require, and in particular maintain
wJ insurance on the Collateral to Its full insurable value against loss or damage by fire and all other risks

of damage, including an extended coverage endorsement and in the case of motor vehicles,
,  insurance against theft;

u

J

^  (c) pay all premiums respecting such insurance, and deliver all policies to BDC, if required,

(b) cause the insurance policy or policies required by this Security Agreement to be assigned to BDC,
including a standard mortgage clause or a mortgage endorsement, as BDC may require;
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8.2 If proceeds of any required insurance becomes payable, BDC may. in its absolute discretion, apply these
!  proceeds to the Obligations as BDC sees fit or release any insurance proceeds to the Borrower to repair,
M  replace or rebuild, but any release of insurance proceeds to the Borrower shall not operate as a payment on

account of the Obligations or in any way affect this Security Agreement or the Security Interests.

i  8 3 The Borrower will promptly, on the happening of loss or damage to the Collateral, notify BDC and furnish to
^  BDC at the Borrower's expense any necessary proof and do any necessary act to enable BDC to obtain

payment of the insurance proceeds, but nothing shall limit BDC's right to submit to the insurer a proof of loss
!  on its own behalf.

8.4 The Borrower authorizes and directs the insurer under any required policy of insurance to include the name
,  of BDC as loss payee on any policy of insurance and on any cheque or draft which may be issued

. 1 respecting a claim settlement under and by virtue of such.insurance, and the production by BDC to any
insurer of a notarial or certified copy of this Security Agreement (notarized or certified by a notary public or
solicitor) shall be the insurer's complete authority for so doing.

w  8.5 If the Borrower fails to maintain insurance as required, BDC may, but shall not be obliged to, maintain or
effect such insurance coverage, or so much insurance coverage as BDC may wish to maintain.

9. OTHER PROHIBITIONS
(You agree to not encumber your property so as to interfere with the security interests or charges granted to BDC and you will not
dispose of any of the Collateral except inventory disposed of in Ihe ordinary course of your business.)

i  Without the prior written consent of BDC the Borrower will not;

J

u

(a) create or permit to exist any security interest in, charge, encumbrance or lien over, or claim against
any of its property, assets, undertakings including without limitation the Collateral which ranks or could
in any event rank in priority to or on an equal basis with any of the Security Interests created by this
Security Agreement;

(b) grant, sell, or otherwise assign any of its chattel paper or any of the Collateral except only Inventory
that is disposed of in accordance with Clause 10.2;

(c) v/here the Borrower is a corporation:

(i) issue, purchase or redeem its shares;

(ii) change its voting control;

(iii) permit any of its shareholders to sell, transfer or dispose of its shares;
;  !

J  (iv) declare or pay any dividends on any of its shares; or

(v) repay or reduce any shareholders loans or other debts due to its shareholders;

^  (d) change its name, merge v^ith or amalgamate with any other entity.

I  10. RESTRICTIONS ON SALE OR DISPOSAL OF COLLATERAL
,  (You will preserve and protect all of ttie Collateral and not dispose of it v/ithout the consent of BDC. Any sales or other disposition will

result in you holding the proceeds in trust for BOG. Your responsibilities towards the Collateral and any trust proceeds are important to
BDC.)

I

^  10.1 Except as provided by this Security Agreement, without BDC's prior written consent the Borrower will not:

(a) sell, lease, license or otherwise dispose of the Collateral;

taj (b) release, surrender or abandon possession of the Collateral; or
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(c) move or transfer the Collateral from the jurisdictions in which the Security Interests have been
perfected.

10.2 So long as the Borrower is not in default under this Security Agreement the Borrower may lease, sell,
•  I license, consign or otherwise deal with items of Inventory only in the ordinary course of its business and for
y  the purposes of carrying on its business.

10.3 Any disposition of any Collateral, excepting sales of inventory in the ordinary course, shall result in the
I  Borrower holding the proceeds in trust for and on behalf of BDC and subject to BDC's exclusive direction
^  and control. Nothing restricts BDC's rights to attach, seize or otherwise enforce its Security Interests in any

Collateral sold or disposed, unless it is sold or disposed with BDC's prior written consent.

J  11. PERFORMANCE OF OBLIGATIONS
(if you do not strictly do all those things that you have agreed to do in this Security Agreement. BDC may perform those obligations but
you will be required to pay for them.)

If the Borrower fails to perform its covenants and agreements under this Security Agreement, BDC may, but
shall not be obliged to, perform any or all of such covenants and agreements without prejudice to any other
rights and remedies of BDC, and any payments made and any costs, charges, expenses and legal fees and

'  disbursements (on a solicitor and its own client basis) incurred by BDC shall be immediately payable by the
^  Bomower to BDC with interest at the highest rate borne by any of the Obligations and shall be secured by

the Security Interests, until all such amounts have been paid.
r

^  12. ACCOUNTS
(Any dealing with the Collateral that results in an account being created, or proceeds arising, is of particular importance to BDC. The
account, or proceeds, acts in substitution for the Collateral that has been sold, usually inventory. You will protect the account or

I  proceeds in favour of BDC.)

u
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Security Agreement, BDC may collect, realize, sell or otherwise
deal with all or a portion of the Accounts in such manner, upon such terms and conditions and at any time,

1  whether before or after default, as may seem to it advisable, and without notice to the Borrower, except in
yJ the case of disposition after default and then subject to the applicable provisions of the Act, if any. All forms

of payment received by the Borrower in payment of any Account, or as proceeds, shall be subject to the
Security Interests and shall be received and held in trust for BDC.

13. APPROPRIATION OF PAYMENTS
(BDC has the right to determine how funds it receives will be applied In relation to your loan facility.)

J  Any and all payments made respecting the Obligations and monies realized from any Security Interests
(including monies collected in accordance with or realized on any enforcement of this Security Agreement)
may be applied to such part or parts of the Obligations as BDC sees fit, and BDC may at any time change

1  any appropriation as BDC sees fit.
w

14. DEFAULT
I  (You must comply with the payment and ottier obligations that you have made in favour of BDC. You must also strictly satisfy the

:  j covenants and agreements that you have made in this Security Agreement. Failure to do so will be considered a default and BDC will
*  consider its legal remedies and possibly pursue them. This Clause defines the defaults and outlines your obligations.)

14.1 Unless waived by BDC, the Borrovi/er shall be in default under this Security Agreement and shall be deemed
to be in default under all other agreements between the Borrower and BDC In any of the following events:

^  (a) the Borrower defaults, or threatens to default, in payments when due of any of the Obligations; or

tJ (b) the Borrower is in breach of, or threatens to breach, any term, condition, obligation or covenant made
by it to or with BDC, or any representation or warranty of the Borrower to BDC is untrue or ceases to

,  be accurate, whether or not contained in this Security Agreement; or

(c) the Borrower or a guarantor of the Borrower declares itself to be insolvent or admits in writing its
inability to pay its debts generally as they become due, or makes an assignment for the benefit of its
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creditors, is declared Bankrupt, makes a proposal or otherwise takes advantage of any provisions for
!  relief under the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada), the Companies Creditors' Arrangement Act

(Canada) or similar legislation in any jurisdiction, or makes an authorized assignment; or

,  (d) a receiver, manager, receiver and manager or receiver-manager of all or a part of the Collateral is
J  appointed; or

,  (e) an order is made or a resolution is passed for the winding up of the Borrower or a guarantor of the
i  Borrov^er; or

ui

(f) the Borrower or a guarantor of the Borrower ceases or threatens to cease to carry on all or a
I  substantial part of its business or makes or threatens to make a sale of all or substantially all of its
J  assets; or

(g) distress or execution is levied or issued against all or a part of the Collateral; or

^  (h) if the Borrower is a corporation and any member or shareholder:

i  (i) commences an action against the Borrower; or
I  )

kml
(ii) gives a notice of dissent to the Borrower in accordance with the provisions of any governing

legislation; or

^  (i) if the Borrower is a corporation and its voting control changes without BDC's prior written consent; or

1  (j) the Borrower uses any monies advanced to it by BDC for any purpose other than as agreed upon by
J  BDC; or

(k) without BDC's prior written consent, the Borrower creates or permits to exist any security interest.
'  charge, encumbrance, lien or claim against any of the Collateral which ranks or could in any event

rank in priority to or on an equal basis with any of the Security Interests; or

I  (I) the holder of any other security interest, charge, encumbrance, lien or claim against any of the
J  Collateral does anything to enWce or realize on such security interest, charge, encumbrance, lien or

claim; or

I  (m) the Borrower enters into an amalgamation, a merger or other similar arrangement with any other
person without BDC's prior written consent or, if the Borrower is a corporation, it is continued or
registered in a different jurisdiction without BDC's prior written consent: or

i  (n) BDC in good faith and on commercially reasonable grounds believes that the prospect of payment or
performance of any of the Obligations is impaired or that any of the Collateral is or is about to be
placed in jeopardy or removed from the jurisdiction in which this Security Agreement has been
registered; or

bJ

(o) the lessor under any lease to the Borrower of any real or personal property takes any steps to or
threatens to terminate such lease or otherwise exercise any of its remedies under such lease as a
result of any default by the Borrov^er; or

(p) the Borrower causes or allows hazardous materials to be brought upon any lands or premises
occupied by the Borrower or to be incorporated into any of its assets, or the Borrower causes,
permits, or fails to remedy any environmental contamination upon, in or under any of its lands or
assets, or fails to comply with any abatement or remediation order given by a responsible authority; or

(q) any permit, license, certification, quota or order granted to or held by the Borrower is cancelled,
revoked or reduced, as the case may be, or any order against the Borrower is enforced, preventing
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the business of the Borrower from being carried on for more than 5 days or materially adversely
changing the condition (financial or othenvise) of the Borrower's business; or

(r) if an individual, the Borrower dies or is declared incompetent by a court of competent jurisdiction.

14.2 The floating charge created by this Security Agreement over Real Property shall become a fixed charge
upon the earliest of:

(a) the occurrence of an event described in Clause 14.1(a), (b), (c). (d). (e) or (f), or

(b) BDC taking any action pursuant to Clause 15 to enforce and realize on the Security Interests;

and for the better securing to BDC repayment of the Obligations the Borrower mortgages to BDC all of the
Borrower's estate and interest in the Real Property.

15. ENFORCEMENT

(If a default occurs. BDC has numerous remedies and legal rights, including enforcement of the Security Agreement according to this
Clause. You also have rights, provided by the Personal Property Security Act and the common law in your jurisdiction.)

15.1 If the Borrower is in default under this Security Agreement BDC may declare any or all of the Obligations
whether or not payable on demand to become immediately due and payable and the Security Interests will
immediately become enforceable. To enforce and realize on the Security Interests BDC may take any
action permitted by law or in equity as it may deem expedient and in particular, without limitation, BDC may
do any of the follov/ing:

(a) appoint by instrument a receiver, manager, receiver and manager or receiver-manager (the
"Receivef^') of all or any part of the Collateral, with or without bond as BDC may determine, and in its
absolute discretion remove such Receiver and appoint another in its stead;

(b) enter upon any of the Borrower's premises at any time and take possession of the Collateral with
power to exclude the Borrower, its agents and its servants, without becoming liable as a mortgagee in
possession;

(c) preserve, protect and maintain the Collateral and make such replacements and repairs and additions
to the Collateral as BDC deems advisable;

(d) dispose of all or part of the Collateral, whether by public or private sale or lease or otherwise, in such
manner, at such price as can be reasonably obtained and on such terms as to credit and v/ith such
conditions of sale and stipulations as to title or conveyance or evidence of title or otherwise as to BDC
may seem reasonable, provided that if any sale, lease or other disposition is on credit the Borrower
will not be entitled to be credited with the proceeds of any such sale, lease or other disposition until
the monies are actually received;

(e) register assignments of the Intellectual Property, and use, sell, assign, license or sub-license any of
the Intellectual Property; and

(f) exercise all of the rights and remedies of a secured party under the Act and any other applicable laws.

15.2 A Receiver appointed pursuant to this Security Agreement insofar as responsibility for its actions is
concerned shall be the agent of the Borrower and not of BDC and, to the extent permitted by law or to such
lesser extent permitted by its appointment, shall have all the powers of BDC under this Security Agreement,
and in addition shall have power to:

(a) carry on the Borrower's business and to borrow money either secured or unsecured, and if secured
by granting a security interest on the Collateral, such security interest may rank before or on an equal
basis with or behind any of the Security Interests and if it does not so specify such security interest
shall rank in priority to the Security Interests; and
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J
(b) make an assignment for the benefit of the Borrower's creditors or a proposal on behalf of the

Borrower under the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada); and

(c) commence, continue or defend proceedings in the name of the Receiver or in the name of the
Borrower for the purpose of protecting, seizing, collecting, realizing or obtaining possession of or
payment for the Collateral; and

(d) make any arrangement or compromise that the Receiver deems expedient.

^  15.3 Subject to the claims, if any, of the creditors of the Borrower ranking in priority to this Security Agreement, all
am.ounts realized from the disposition of the Collateral pursuant to this Security Agreement will be applied

(  as BDC, in Its absolute discretion and to the full extent permitted by law, may direct as follows;
U

(a) in payment of all costs, charges and expenses (including legal fees and disbursements on a solicitor
^  and its own client basis) incurred by BDC respecting or incidental to:

^  (i) the exercise by BDC of the rights and powers granted to it by this Security Agreement; and

(ii) the appointment of the Receiver and the exercise by the Receiver of the powers granted to it by
^  this Security Agreement, including the Receiver's reasonable remuneration and all outgoings

properly payable by the Receiver;

I  (b) in or toward payment to BDC of all principal and other monies (except interest) due in respect of the
^  Obligations;

I  (c) in or toward payment to BDC of all interest remaining unpaid respecting the Obligations; and

^  (d) in payment to those parties entitled thereto under the Act.

I  16. GENERAL PROVISIONS PROTECTING BDC
yj (You have granted this Security Agreement to BDC in consideration by BDC advancing funds or providing credit or a credit facility to

you. BDC will not be responsible for debts or liabilities that may arise except to the extent that it agrees to be responsible or liable in this
Security Agreement. If enforcement becomes necessary. BDC will act in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner.)

^  16.1 To the full extent permitted by law, BDC shall not be liable for any debts contracted by it during enforcement
of this Security Agreement, for damages to persons or property or for salaries or non-fulfilment of contracts
during any period when BDC shall manage the Collateral upon entry or seizure, nor shall BDC be liable to

1  account as a mortgagee in possession or for anything except actual receipts or be liable for any loss on
^  realization or for any default or omission for which a mortgagee in possession may be liable. BDC shall not

be bound to do, observe or perform or to see to the observance or performance by the Borrower of any
!  obligations or covenants imposed upon the Borrower nor shall BDC, In the case of securities, instruments or

tJ chattel paper, be obliged to preserve rights against other persons, nor shall BDC be obliged to keep any of
the Collateral identifiable. To the full extent permitted by law, the Borrower waives any provision of law
permitted to be waived by it which imposes greater obligations upon BDC than described above.

J

15.2 Neither BDC nor any Receiver appointed by it shall be liable or accountable for any failure to seize, collect,
realize, sell or obtain payments for the Collateral nor shall they be bound to institute proceedings for the
purposes of seizing, collecting, realizing or obtaining payment or possession of the Collateral or the
preserving of any right of BDC. the Borrower or any other party respecting the Collateral. BDC shall also
not be liable for any misconduct, negligence, misfeasance by BDC, the Receiver or any employee or agent
of BDC or the Receiver, or for the exercise of the rights and remedies conferred upon BDC or the Receiver
by this Security Agreement.

16.3 BDC or any Receiver appointed by it may grant extensions of time and other indulgences, take and give
securities, accept compromises, grant releases and discharges, release any part of the Collateral to third
parties and otherwise deal with the debtors of the Borrower, co-obligants, guarantors and others and with
the Collateral and other securities as BDC may see fit without liability to the Borrower and without prejudice
to BDC's rights respecting the Obligations or BDC's right to hold and realize the Collateral. The Borrower
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shall not be released nor shall its liability be in any v/ay reduced because BDC has done or concurred in the
doing of anything whereby a guarantor would be released in whole or in part.

16.4 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in any security held by BDC for the Obligations, each part is given
as additional, concurrent and collateral security to the remainder of the security. BDC in its sole discretion

^  may realize upon or abstain from realizing on any security for the Obligations in any order or concurrently
with the realization under this Security Agreement whether such security is held by it at the date of this
Security Agreement or is provided at any time in the future. No realization or exercise or abstaining from
exercising of any power or right under this Security Agreement or under any other security shall prejudice

^  any further realization or exercise until all Obligations have been fully paid and satisfied.

I  15.5 Any right of BDC and any obligation of the Borrower arising under any other agreements between BDC and
y  the Borrower shall survive the signing, registration and advancement of any money under this Security

Agreement, and no merger respecting any such right or obligation shall occur by reason of this Security
Agreement. The obligation, if any, of the Borrower to pay legal fees, a commitment fee, a standby fee or
administration fees, under the terms of BDC's commitment letter or Loan Agreement with the Borrower shall

^  survive the signing and registration of this Security Agreement and BDC's advancement of any money to
the Borrov/er and any legal fees, commitmient fees, standby fees or administration fees owing by the

I  Borrower shall be secured by the Collateral.

16.6 In the event that BDC registers a notice of assignment of Intellectual Property the Borrov/er shall be
responsible for and shall indemnify BDC against all maintenance and renewal costs in respect thereof, and
any costs of initiating or defending litigation, together with all costs, liabilities and damages related thereto.

16.7 Notv/ithstanding any taking of possession of the Collateral, or any other action which BDC or the Receiver
may take, the Borrov/er now covenants and agrees with BDC that if the money realized upon any

'  ! disposition of the Collateral is insufficient to pay and satisfy the whole of the Obligations due to BDC at the
time of such disposition, the Borrower shall immediately pay to BDC an amount equal to the deficiency
between the amount of the Obligations and the sum of money realized upon the disposition of the Collateral,

;  and the Borrower agrees that BDC may bring action against the Borrower for payment of the deficiency,
liJ notwithstanding any defects or irregularities of BDC or the Receiver in enforcing its rights under this Security

Agreement.

J 17. APPOINTiVIENT OF ATTORNEY
(You appoint BDC your attorney for specific malters )

The Borrower irrevocably appoints BDC or the Receiver, as the case may be, with full power of substitution.
^  as the attorney of the Borrov/er for and in the name of the Borrower to do. make, sign, endorse or execute

under seal or otherwise all deeds, documents, transfers, cheques, instruments, demands, assignments,
assurances or consents that the Borrov/er is obliged to sign, endorse or execute and generally to use the

I  name of the Borrower and to do everything necessary or incidental to the exercise of all or any of the
^  powers conferred on BDC, or the Receiver, as the case may be. pursuant to this Security Agreement. This

grant and authority shall survive any mental Infirmity of the Borrower subsequent to the execution hereof.

^  18. CONSOLIDATION
(Should you wish to redeem the Security Interest. BDC may require you to also pay other obligations to it before discharging its Security
Interests.)

I

J  For the purposes of the laws of all jurisdictions in Canada, the doctrine of consolidation applies to this
Security Agreement.

'  19. NO OBLIGATION TO ADVANCE
taJ (BDC determines, in the end, whether any advances or furthe."" advances under the loan facility will be made.)

Neither the preparation and execution of this Security Agreement nor the perfection of the Security Interests
I  or the advance of any monies by BDC shall bind BDC to make any advance or loan or further advance or
^  loan, or extend any time for payment of any indebtedness or liability of the Borrower to BDC.
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20. WAIVER
(indulgences granted by BDC should not be taken for granted.)

BDC may permit the Borrower to remedy any default v/ithout vyatving the default so remedied. BDC may at
any time partially or completely waive any right, benefit or default under this Security Agreement but such
waiver shall not be a bar to or a waiver of any such right, benefit or default thereafter, or of any other right,
benefit or default under this Security Agreement. No waiver shall be effective unless it is in writing and
signed by BDC. No delay or omission on the part of BDC in exercising any right shall operate as a waiver of
such right or any other right.

21. NOTICE
{This Clause describes how the various notices referred to in this Security Agreement may be given.)

Notice may be given to either party by prepaid mail or delivered to the party for whom It is intended, at the
principal address of such party provided in this Security Agreement or at such other address as may be
given in writing by one party to the other, and any notice if posted shall be deemed to have been given at
the expiration of three business days after posting and if delivered, on delivery.

22. EXTENSIONS
(Your duties and responsibilities to BDC remain in place regardless of any concerns you may have about the loan facility or BDC's
actions.)

BDC may grant extensions of time and other indulgences, take and give up security, accept compositions,
compound, compromise, settle, grant releases and discharges, refrain from perfecting or maintaining
perfection of security interests, and otherwise deal with the Borrower, the Borrower's account debtors,
sureties and others and with the Collateral and other security interests as BDC may see fit without prejudice
to the Borrower's liability or BDC's right to hold and realize on the Security Interests.

23. NO MERGER
(Except as agreed upon In lha Security Agreement or another contract speciricaily discussing this point, this Security Agreement is an
independent obligation on your part.)

This Security Agreement shall not create any merger or discharge of any of the Obligations, or any
assignment, transfer, guarantee, lien, contract, promissory note, bill of exchange or security interest of any
form held or which may be held by BDC now or in the future from the Borrower or from any other person.
The taking of a judgment respecting any of the Obligations will not operate as a merger of any of the
covenants contained in this Security Agreement.

24. RIGHTS CUMULATIVE
(This Secuiify Agreement describes some rights and remedies of BDC. BDC also is entitled to rely on all other rights and remedies
available to it in law and in any other agreements it has entered into with you.)

BDC's rights and remedies set out in this Security Agreement, and in any other security agreement held by
BDC from the Borrower or any other person to secure payment and performance of the Obligations, are
cumulative and no right or remedy contained in this Security Agreement or any other security agreements is
intended to be exclusive but each v/ill be in addition to every other right or remedy now or hereafter existing
at law, in equity or by statute, or pursuant to any other agreement betvi/een the Borrower and BDC that may
be in effect from time to time.

25. ASSIGNMENT
(Should BDC assign or transfer or otherwise deal with this Security Agreement on its own behalf, you agree that the Security Agreement
shall remain binding and effective upon you.)

BDC may, without notice to the Borrower, at any time assign or transfer, or grant a security interest in, all or
any of the Obligations, this Security Agreement and the Security interests. The Borrower agrees that the
assignee, transferee or secured party, as the case may be, shall have all of BDC's rights and remedies
under this Security Agreement and the Borrower will not assert as a defense, counterclaim, right of set-off or
otherwise any claim which it now has or may acquire in the future against BDC in respect of any claim made
or any action commenced by such assignee, transferee or secured party, as the case may be, and will pay
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the assigned Obligations to the assignee, transferee or secured party, as the case may be. as the said
Obligations become due.

26. SATISFACTION AND DISCHARGE
(Until this Security Agreement is terminated and any registrations relating to it are discharged, the Securih/ Agreement will remain
effective even though trie indebtedness to BDC may have been paid.)

Any partial payment or satisfaction of the Obligations, or any ceasing by the Borrower to be indebted to BDC
shall not be a redemption or discharge of this Security Agreement. The Borrower shall be entitled to a
release and discharge of this Security Agreement upon full payment and satisfaction of all Obligations, and
upon written request by the Borrower and, subject to applicable law, payment to BDC of an administrative
fee to be fixed by BDC and payment of all costs, charges, expenses and legal fees and disbursements (on a
solicitor and his own client basis) incurred by BDC in connection with the Obligations and such release and
discharge. The Borrower shall, subject to applicable law, pay an administrative fee, to be fixed by BDC, for
the preparation or execution of any full or partial release or discharge by BDC of any security it holds, of the
Borrower, or of any guarantor or covenantor with respect to any Obligations.

27. ENVIRONMENT

The Borrower represents and agrees that:

(a) it operates and will continue to operate in conformity with all applicable environmental laws,
regulations, standards, codes, ordinances and other requirements of any jurisdiction in which it carries
on business and will ensure its staff is trained as required for that purpose;

(b) it has an environmental emergency response plan and all officers and employees are familiar with
that plan and their duties under it;

(c) it possesses and will maintain all environmental licences, permits and other governmental approvals
as may be necessary to conduct its business and maintain the Collateral;

(d) the Collateral and Real Property are and will remain free of environmental damage or contamination;

(e) there has been no complaint, prosecution, investigation or proceeding, environmental or otherwise,
respecting the Borrower's business or assets including without limitation the Collateral;

(f) it v/ill advise BDC immediately upon becoming aware of any environmental problems relating to its
business or the Collateral;

(g) it will provide BDC with copies of all communications with environmental officials and all
environmental studies or assessments prepared for the Borrower and It consents to BDC contacting
and making enquiries of environmental officials or assessors;

(h) it will not install on or under any land mortgaged to BDC storage tanks for petroleum products or any
hazardous substance without BDG's prior written consent and only upon full compliance with BDG's
requirements and local ordinances or regulations;

(i) it will from time to time when requested by BDC provide to BDC evidence of its full compliance with
the Borrower's obligations in this Clause 27.

28. ENUREMENT

This Security Agreement shall enure to the benefit of BDC and its successors and assigns, and shall be
binding upon the Borrowers and its heirs, executors, administrators, successors and any assigns permitted
by BDC, as the case may be.

J
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29. INTERPRETATION

29.1 In this Security Agreement:

(a) "Collateral" has the meaning set out in Clause 1 and any reference to the Collateral shall, unless the
context othenivise requires, be deemed to be a reference to the Collateral in whole or in part;

(b) "the Act" means the Personal Property Security Act of the jurisdiction in which the branch of BDC is
located, as described on page 1 of this Security Agreement, and all regulations under the Act, as
amended from time to time.

29.2 Words and expressions used in this Security Agreement that have been defined in the Act shall be
interpreted in accordance with their respective meanings given in the Act unless otherwise defined in this
Security Agreement or unless the context otherwise requires.

29.3 The invalidity or unenforceability of the whole or any part of any clause of this Security Agreement shall not
affect the validity or enforceability of any other clause or the remainder of such clause of this Security
Agreement.

29.4 The headings used in this Security Agreement have been inserted for convenience of reference only and
shall not define, limit, alter or enlarge the meaning of any provision of this Security Agreement.

29.5 This Security Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the jurisdiction referred to in Subclause 29.1(b).
For enforcement purposes, the Borrower hereby attorns to the jurisdiction of the courts and laws of any
province, state, territory or country in which BDC enforces its rights and remedies hereunder.

30. COPY OF AGREEMENT AND FINANCING STATEMENT

The Borrower:

(a) acknowledges receiving a copy of this Security Agreement; and

(b) if the Act so permits, waives all rights to receive from BDC a copy of any financing statement or
financing change statement filed, or any verification statement or other document received at any time
respecting this Security Agreement.

31. TIME

Time shall in all respects be of the essence.

32. INDEPENDENT ADVICE

The Borrower acknowledges having received, or having had the opportunity to receive, independent legal
and accounting advice respecting this Security Agreement and its effect.

33. SASKATCHEWAN LAW

If the Borrower is a corporation, the Borrower agrees as follows:

(a) that the Land Contracts (Actions) Act of Saskatchewan shall have no application to any action, as
defined in the Land Contracts (Actions) Acf of Saskatchewan, respecting this Security Agreement,
any mortgage, charge or other security for the payment of money made, given or created by this
Security Agreement, any agreement or instrument which renews or extends or is collateral to this
Security Agreement, or the rights, powers or remedies of BDC under this Security Agreement or any
mortgage or charge created by this Security Agreement as BDC is specifically exempted from the
operation of that Act;
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(b) that the Limitation of Civil Rights Act of Saskatchewan shall have no application to this Security
Agreement, any mortgage, charge or other security for the payment of money made, given or created
by this Security Agreement, any agreement or instrument which renews or extends or is collateral to
this Security Agreement, or the rights, powers or remedies of BDC under this Security Agreement or
any mortgage or charge created by this Security Agreement; and

(c) that if it is an agricultural corporation, as defined in the Saskatchewan Farm Security Act, it has
received independent legal advice prior to the execution of this Security Agreement, and agrees
that the provisions of Part IV of the Saskatchewan Farm Security Act, other than Section 46, shall
not apply to the Borrov/er.

34. PARENTHETICAL COMMENTS

The Borrower acknowledges and agrees that the comments in parentheses are intended to provide a brief
but not thorough indication of the intent of the legal provisions that follow in each subsequent clause, and do
not form part of this Security Agreement.

35. THE LOAN AGREEMENT

If the Borrower has entered into a commitment letter or a written loan agreement (the "Loan Agreement")
with BDC dealing with, or relating to, the loan facilities secured by this Security Agreement, the Borrower
acknowledges and agrees that in the event of any discrepancy between any term of this Security
Agreement and any term of the Loan Agreement, the terms of the Loan Agreement shall apply and take
precedence over the terms of this Security Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Borrower has e.xecuted this Security Agreement.

1119658 ALBERTA LTD.

b^5f its authorized signatory(ies)

V" Y 'oery-- '

i  ■;

!  V

per;

LLIipilUlii-
I  • I

'A \ i 'i
/

/
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SCHEDULE A

Subdause 1.1 (3) (vii):

the following specific items, even though they may be included within the descriptions of Collateral (insert
description by item or kind):

J

the following serial numbered goods:

Type
Serial No. (re: motor vehicles & trailers)
Dept. of Transport No. (re: aircraft)

Year i\/iake and Model

Subdause 6.1 fc):

^  Date of Birth of Borrower (if an individual):
Month Day Year

Subdause 6.1 (i):

Location(s) of the Collateral:

5002 - 34 th .'\venue, Dray ton Valley, AB, T7A 0C6

Subdause 6.1 (k):

The Borrower's place(s) of business ("POB") and chief executive office ("CEO")

Chief Executive

Office: 5002 - 34ch Avenue^ Dravton Valley, AB, T7A 0C6

Place of Business; 2 Kelsey Bay, Yorkton, SK, S3N 3Z4

And:

i
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This Is Exhibit "E" referred to in the Affidavit of

Hardeep Singh sworn before me on the ^
day of November, 2018.

)
A Commissiorfer for Oaths in and )
for the Province of Alberta )
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STANDARD MORTGAGE TERMS

The following set of Standard fVlortgage Terms are Included in every IVlortgage - Land Titles Act (Alberta) which
refers to this set of terms by its filing number as provided in the Land Titles Act, R.S.A. 1980, as amended.

1. DEFINiTIONS

"you" and "your" refers to the Borrower and "we" and "us" refers to the Lender.

"Borrower" means the person(s) who as l\/Iortgagor(s) granted the Mortgage - Land Titles Act (Alberta) that refers
to and incorporates these Standard Mortgage Terms.

"Lender" means thp Mortgagee mentioned in the Mortgage - Land Titles (Alberta) that refers to and incorporates
these Standard Mortgage Terms.

"Lands" means those lands and premises described in box 6 of the Mortgage - Land Titles Act (Alberta) that
refers to and includes these Standard Mortgage Terms as well as the expanded definition in paragraph 5 in these
Standard Mortgage Terms.

"Principal Sum" is the amount of money identified as the principal amount on the Mortgage - Land Titles Act
(Alberta).

"Secured Obligations" means the aggregate of all indebtedness and obligations of the Borrower to the Lender as
may arise pursuant to Article 2 of this mortgage.

"floating base rate" means the rate of interest declared from time to time and at any time by the Lender from its
head office In Montreal, Quebec, as its floating base rate of interest charged on Canadian dollar loans to its
commercial customers.

U  2. DEBT

I You promise to pay to the Lender, at such business centre of the Lender as the Lender may direct, the aggregate
of:

(a) the Principal Sum outstanding from time to time;

(b) all your other present or future debts, liabilities or obligations hereunder, or under any letter of
offer, commitment letter, guarantee, or any other agreement, arrangement, document, or
negotiable or other instrument, present or future, with or given to the Lender (including those In
replacement of, and any amendment of, any of the foregoing, and including all future advances
and re-advances, interest, and interest on overdue interest), whether direct or indirect, absolute or
contingent, joint or several, matured or not, extended or renewed, wherever and however incurred,

i  of whatsoever nature or kind, whether or not provided for herein, and whether owed by you to the
J  Lender, as principal, guarantor, indemnitor, surety or otherwise;

(c) interest on the Principal Sum at an annual rate equal to the floating base rate of the Lender
announced from to time to time plus 10.00% per year, calculated monthly and payable monthly,
both after as well as before maturity, default and/or judgment (the "Interest Rate") provided that if
you and the Lender have agreed to a lower interest rate as to the Principal Sum or any particular
Secured Obligation then that lower interest rate will apply thereto. In the absence of an agreement
as to the interest rate applicable to any Secured Obligation the rate shall be the lesser of the
Interest Rate and the highest rate of interest applicable to any of the Secured Obligations;

Mortgage - Alberta - Filed Terms
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(d) interest on Interest past due at the Interest Rate and calculated In the same manner as Interest on
the Principal Sum; and

(e) interest on each protective disbursement (as hereinafter defined) from the day the protective
disbursement Is made, at the Interest Rate and calculated In the same manner as Interest on the
Principal Sum;

I  3. READVANCES

It is our mutual Intention that the Lender may wish to make advances and re-advances to you up to an aggregate
outstanding balance at any time equal to the Principal Sum. Accordingly, this mortgage shall be considered to be

,  I a revolving line of credit mortgage within the meaning of, and shall take priority in accordance with the provisionsr  dealing with same In, the Land Titles Act of Alberta. This mortgage Is and shall be a continuing security to the
Lender for the repayment of all present and future amounts owing In respect of the Secured Obligations. Any
portion of the Principal Sum may be advanced or re-advanced fay the Lender In one or more advances at any

jJ future date or dates and the amount of such advances and re-advances when so made shall be secured by this
I  mortgage and shall be repayable with Interest at the Interest Rate. This mortgage shall be deemed to be taken as
'  security for the ultimate balance of the Secured Obligations. This mortgage shall not be void If the Secured

I  Obligations have been repaid In full if such ability to borrow continues to be available to you. This mortgage shallr be void only when the Secured Obligations have been repaid In full and the Lender gives written notice to you that
you will not be allowed to borrow further monies and there has been performance of all covenants, provisos and

j  conditions herein contained. Notwithstanding that this mortgage may be deemed to be a revolving line of credit
j  mortgage, there shall be no right of prepayment except as provided elsewhere in this mortgage.

4. SECURITY

For the better securing to the Lender the repayment In the manner aforesaid of the Secured Obligations and for
the performance of your other obligations under this agreement, you hereby mortgage and charge to the Lender
all of your estate and Interest in the Lands. This mortgage is granted In addition to, and not In substitution for, any

j  other security held to secure payment of the Secured Obligations.

5. FIXTURES

In this mortgage the expression "the Lands" Includes all fixtures and improvements, appurtenances, leasehold
improvements and rights of way. All erections, buildings or improvements that now are or that shall hereafter be
put or built upon the Lands shall be fixtures and be a part of the realty and form a part of this security even though
not attached to the Lands otherwise than by their own weight and shall not be removed during the continuance of
this mortgage. Fixtures shall Include without limitation, all trade fixtures, all heating, ventilating, air conditioning,
plumbing and electrical systems and equipment comprised In the Lands, all safes, cooking, refrigeration and
washing equipment on or in the Lands, all telecommunication and telephone equipment serving the Lands, and all
maintenance equipment used In connection with the Lands.

6. MORTGAGE OF LEASE

If your Interest In the Lands is as a lessee, sub-lessee, licensee or sub-licensee (collectively a "lessee") of the
whole or any portion of the Lands pursuant to a lease:

(a) you hereby demise, sub-lease and mortgage your interest and the lease and any renewals,
extensions or replacements of the lease to the Lender, by way of a sub-lease, except for the last
day of the term of the lease (the "reversion") which is excepted out of the charge created by this
mortgage but which shall be deemed to be held by you In trust for the Lender to be assigned or
disposed of as the Lender or anyone claiming through the Lender may direct, and the Lender shall
have power on any realization to appoint a new person as Trustee of the reversion;

(b) If the lease cannot be effectively charged without consent, any charge Intended to be created by
this mortgage upon your Interest In the lease shall not become effective until, but shall become
effective immediately when, all consents necessary for the validity and effectiveness of such
charge have been obtained or waived by all appropriate persons;

U
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(c) you represent to the Lender that the lease is valid and in good standing, in full force and effect and
^  unsurrendered, you have the right to mortgage your interest and the lease to the Lender, all rents

I  or other amounts payable under the lease have been paid and all other obligations under the
I  lease, whether yours or the landlords, have been performed or complied with;

I  (d) you will promptly perform and observe all of the terms, covenants and conditions required to be
'  performed and observed by you under the lease, including payment of rent and the renewing of

i  the lease;

^  (e) you shall take no action or be guilty of any default which shall or may cause the lease to be
,  terminated or forfeited, or, without the Lender's prior written consent, surrender or give any notice
M  which would have the effect of terminating, or permitting the termination of, the lease;

I  (f) you will promptly notify the Lender in writing of any default or of any condition that with or without
I  the passage of time or the giving of any notice might result In a default under, or the termination of,r the lease, and you will promptly cause a copy of each notice you receive under the lease to be

delivered to the Lender;

'  (g) In the event that you, at any time or from time to time, extend the size of the leasehold land herein
H  or Increases the size of your equity in the leasehold land or become registered as owner or entitled
I  to become registered as owner of the full fee simple then the mortgage of the leasehold land shall

I  become enlarged to be a mortgage of the increased size of the mortgaged premises or of the
increased size of the equity or of the full fee simple, as the case may be;

(h) you will not during the continuance of this mortgage, without the Lender's prior written consent,
!  modify, alter or suffer or permit any modification or alteration of the lease and any such altered or

iwi modified lease shall be charged by this mortgage;

(i) you will promptly obtain from the lessor under the lease and deliver to the Lender, a certificate
^  stating that the lease is in full force and effect, is unmodified or modified as the case may be, that

no notice of termination thereon has been served on you thereunder, stating the date to which the
rent has been paid and stating whether or not there are any defaults thereunder and specifying the

I  nature of such defaults, if any;

U

u

(j) you shall not consent to the subordination of the lease to any mortgage of the interest of the lessor
(or leasehold interest of the sub-lessor) thereof In the Lands; and

(k) you will at the proper time and times take such proceedings, and make, do and execute such acts,
deeds, matters and things as may be requisite for obtaining a renewal of the lease.

7. MORTGAGE OF CONDOItillNIUM UNIT

If the Lands include a condominium unit:

(a) you shall comply with, observe and perform all provisions of the applicable condominium
legislation, Its regulations and the by-laws, rules and regulations of the condominium corporation
(the "Condo Corporation") of which you are a member by virtue of your ownership of the
condominium unit hereby charged;

(b) you shall pay, on or before the due date thereof, each and every fee, assessment, contribution,
expense, fine or levy assessed by or on behalf of the Condo Corporation in respect of the Lands;

(c) you will forward to the Lender within 10 days of our demand a certificate in any form required by
the applicable condominium legislation certifying that no monies are owing by you to the Condo
Corporation;

Mortgage - Alberta - Filed Terms
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(d) you agree that nothing done by the Lender in protecting its interests in the Lands, including without
limiting the generality of the foregoing the Lender exercising your right to vote as provided in the
applicable condominium legislation generally, shall render the Lender a mortgagee in possession;

(e) if for any reason whatsoever you vote at any meeting of the Condo Corporation, you shall, if
directed by the Lender, vote in such manner as the Lender directs with respect to each and every
matter to be voted;

(f) at least five days prior to each general meeting of the Condo Corporation, you shall deliver to the
Lender written notice of the meeting specifying the place, date, hour and purpose of the meeting;

(g) you hereby authorize any of the Lender's officers to apply at any time and from time to time during
the term of this mortgage to the Condo Corporation to deliver to the Lender copies of all notices,
financial statements and other documents given or available to you from the Condo Corporation:
and

(h) in the event of any occurrence or event whereby the Lender, acting reasonably, has determined
that any act or the operation of the Condo Corporation is, has or will diminish the value of Lands
as security for the Secured Obligations, the Lender shall be at liberty to demand immediate
repayment of the Principal Sum.

8. MORTGAGE OF VENDOR'S INTEREST IN RIGHT TO PURCHASE

If your interest in the Lands includes the full fee simple subject to a right to purchase (in this clause called the
"Right to Purchase"):

(a) you transfer and assign to the Lender absolutely all of your right, title and interest in and to the
Right to Purchase and the monies now and hereafter owing thereunder, together with the full
benefit of all powers and all covenants and provisions in the Right to Purchase, and full power and

'  t authority to use your name for enforcing the performance of the covenants and other matters and
^  things contained in the Right to Purchase;

!  (b) you shall not accept any prepayment of the Right to Purchase other than in accordance with the
U  terms thereof; provided that, if you are obliged to accept a prepayment, the amount thereof shall

be paid to us as a prepayment on account of the Secured Obligations unless we waive such
,  prepayment; and

^  (c) we shall be under no obligation to commence action or take any proceeding or step to enforce the
Right to Purchase and shall not be liable for any loss arising from any omission by us to take any

i  such action, proceeding or step.

Lj
9. COVENANTS

i  You covenant with the Lender that:

J

U

(a) you will keep all the Lands in good repair and shall not allow waste in respect of the Lands, not to
allow the Lands to be or remain vacant and to immediately notify the Lender of any damage to the
Lands;

(b) you have good title in fee simple to the Lands, other than those lands that are expressed herein to
be held in leasehold, and the right to convey the Lands as hereby conveyed;

(c) you have done no act to encumber the Lands, except as set out herein;

(d) you will execute or provide such further assurances as the Lender may reasonably require and
shall do so at your expense;

Mortgage - Alberta - Rled Terms
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(e) you shall discharge any debt or obligation that may be the subject of a demand upon the Lender or
an agent of the Lender in the event that the Lender enforces one of the remedies;

(f) you shall pay all rents, taxes, rates, levies, assessments and impositions, government, municipal
or otherwise which are now or may hereafter be levied, charged, assessed, imposed or payable
against or in respect of the Lands, as and when due and produce to the Lender the receipts for
those payments;

(g) you will pay and discharge all claims and obligations to labourers, mechanics and material men
and others and all other claims, debts and obligations which by the law of Canada or any Province
thereof have or might have priority over the security hereby created, and produce to the Lender
the receipts;

(h) you, if a corporation, have taken all necessary corporate action to authorize the execution of this
mortgage and to bind yourself to each of the terms of this mortgage and you shall maintain your
corporate existence;

(i) on default the Lender may enter and have quiet enjoyment of the Lands;

0) you shall do all acts necessary to give the Lender access from time to time to the Lands;

(k) you shall carry on, in a proper business-like manner, the business or businesses you have
represented to the Lender as being your present or prospective businesses, and shall maintain in
good standing all necessary licenses, permits, approvals and consents, and shall comply with all
laws, regulations and ordinances applicable to your business;

(I) you will not change, or agree to any change of, the present use of the Lands without the Lender's
prior express written consent; and.

(m) you will not permit any of the following activities to occur on the Lands:

o  businesses that are sexually exploitive or that are inconsistent with generally accepted
community standard of conduct and propriety, including those that feature sexually explicit
entertainment, products or services;

o  businesses trading with countries that are proscribed by the Federal Government;

o  businesses which operate as a separate and sole entity nightclubs, bars, lounges, cabarets,
casinos, discotheques and similar operations; or

e  businesses that are engaged in or associated with illegal activities.

You also agree that if your business or the business of a tenant of yours fails to comply with this
,  paragraph at any time that will constitute an Event of Default. Any leases of the Lands you may, as
p  landlord, enter into should have a clause to this effect.

10. EXPROPRIATION

If an early payout of the Secured Obligations is caused by any act of expropriation, including but not limited to
expropriation proceedings or sale of the Land under the Builders' Lien Act oi Alberta:

(a) you hereby assign to the Lender such portion of any proceeds which becomes due and payable to
you by an expropriating authority upon such expropriation equal to the difference, if any. between
all Secured Obligations at the date of the expropriation, and the compensation payable or paid to
the Lender for the expropriation of its interest in the Lands by the expropriating authority;

Mortgage - Alberta - Filed Terms
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(b) you shall forward to the Lender copies of any documentation relating to an expropriation or a
proposed expropriation of the Land or any portion thereof forthwith upon receipt of the said
documentation by it;

(c) notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, if you or the Lender receives notice of
intention to expropriate in relation to the Lands, or any portion thereof, at the option of the Lender,
the whole of the Secured Obligations (including principal, interest and compensation payments)
under this mortgage at the date of the expropriation, shall immediately become due and payable in
like manner and to all intents and purposes as if the time for payment of the said balance had fully
come and expired; and

(d) service of a copy of this mortgage on the expropriating authority shall be sufficient authority for the
expropriating authority to deliver proceeds to the Lender in accordance with the terms of the
assignment contained herein.

!  \

Ll 11. ALTERATIONS

I  Except for any construction contemplated by this mortgage, you shall not make or permit to be made any
additions or alterations to the Lands without the written consent of the Lender being first obtained; and you shall
not use the Lands or permit the Lands to be used, without the Lender's written consent, for a purpose other than
that disclosed to the Lender in the application for this mortgage. If, with the Lender's written consent, you

,  I commence work on the Lands, the following will apply;

(a) You will carry on diligently to completion the construction of the development, and will complete
such construction in compliance with the requirements of all municipal and other governmental

I  authorities, laws, by-laws or regulations; and, when so required by the Lender, supply the Lender
with confirmation from any such municipal or governmental authority of such compliance and
confirmation from an independent engineer or architect as may be designated by the Lender that

I  construction is being completed in accordance with such requirements; it being understood and
^  agreed that the Lender, by reason of its approval of any Plans and Specifications shall not be

liable to you or any third party for the safety, adequacy, soundness or sufficiency of the
development or the Plans and Specifications;

j

U  (b) If any part of the development remains unfinished and without any work being done for a period of
ten consecutive days, the Lender may enter the Lands and do all work necessary to protect such
work from deterioration and to complete the construction in such manner as the Lender may see
fit, and any monies expended by the Lender pursuant to this paragraph shall constitute part of the
Secured Obligations;

(c) the Lender shall be entitled, at your expense, to inspect all aspects of the construction and make
tests of materials and you will not cover any portion of the construction work requiring inspection
by the Lender until the Lender has inspected the same and any defects in the construction or
variation in construction as reported to the Lender by its consultants shall be promptly corrected by
you to the satisfaction of the Lender;

(d) You will pay, or cause to be paid as soon as the same are due, all claims and demands of
contractors and materialmen and all wages, salaries, holiday pay, Workers' Compensation
assessments or other charges of any nature or kind (hereinafter called "Charges") which could in
any circumstances constitute a lien or charge having priority over this mortgage or any future
advance on this mortgage and you will from time to time, on demand, provide the Lender with such
books, payrolls or other records, receipts, certificates and declarations as the Lender may deem
necessary to satisfy itself that such Charges have been paid as soon as the same are due; and

(e) the Lender shall not be obliged to hold back advances or any portion of advances to provide the
lien fund or other protection to you under the Builders Lien Act of Alberta; provided that If the
Lender makes a holdback in a manner similar to the way the said Act provides for an owner to
make holdbacks, then notwithstanding such holdbacks by the Lender, such holdbacks shall not
constitute the lien fund under the said Act and the Lender shall not be a mortgagee authorized by
the owner to disburse money secured by a mortgage as referred to in the said Act.
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12. INSURANCE

While this mortgage is in effect you will:

(a) maintain or cause to be maintained insurance on the Lands with a reputable insurer, of kinds, for
amounts and payable to such person or persons, all as the Lender may require;

(b) cause the insurance policy or policies required by this mortgage to name the Lender as a loss
payee as the Lender's interest may appear in respect of the Lands, include a standard mortgage
clause as approved by the insurance Bureau of Canada, and include a 30-day notice by the
insurer to the Lender of any material change to the amounts or coverage of the policy or of its
cancellation;

(c) pay all premiums respecting such insurance, and deliver all policies to the Lender if required;

(d) upon request, immediately assign, transfer and deliver over to the Lender each and every policy or
policies of insurance and all receipts pertaining to same;

(e) on the happening of any loss or damage to the Lands, immediately notify and furnish to the
Lender, at your expense, all necessary proofs and do all necessary acts to enable the Lender to
obtain payment of any insurance monies otherwise payable to you, but nothing shall limit the
Lender's right to submit to the insurer a proof of loss on its own behalf; and

(f) authorize and direct the Insurer under any required policy of insurance to include the Lender as
loss payee on any policy of insurance and on any cheque or draft which may be issued respecting

I  a claim settlement under and by virtue of such insurance, and the production by us to any insurer
of a certified copy of this mortgage shall be its complete authority for so doing.

1  : if you fail to maintain insurance as required, the Lender may, but shall not be obliged to, maintain or effect such
J  insurance coverage, or so much insurance coverage as the Lender considers necessary for the protection of the

Lender's interest. If proceeds of any required insurance become payable, the Lender may, in its absolute
discretion, hold such funds as security for the Secured Obligations, apply the proceeds to the Secured Obligations

(  as the Lender sees fit or release any insurance proceeds to you to repair, replace or rebuild, but any release of
y  insurance proceeds to you shall not operate as a payment on account of the Secured Obligations or in any way

affect this mortgage or the charges created hereby. To ensure that we may apply such insurance monies in the
I  manner herein contemplated, you also assign and release to us all of your rights to receive the insurance monies
i  and expressly waive all your rights and benefits under the Insurance Act and the Fire Prevention (li/letrcpolis) Act
^  1774 each as amended or replaced from time to time.

y
13. ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

13.1 Definitions

j  For the purposes of this Article 13:
bJ

(a) "Environmental/Hazardous Materials Claims" means enforcement or other governmental orU  regulatory actions, agreements or orders threatened, instituted or completed pursuant to any
Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws, together with claims made or threatened by any third
party against you or in respect of the Lands relating to the environment, health, safety, any
Hazardous Materials or any Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws;

yj (b) "Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws" means laws, by-laws, rules, ordinances, regulations,
notices, approvals, orders, licenses, permits, standards, guidelines and policies from time to time
of an Environmental Authority relating to the environment, health, safety or any Hazardous

!  j Materials;
Mb

(c) "Hazardous Materials" means wastes, materials and substances the storage, manufacture,
disposal, treatment, generation, use or transport of which is prohibited, controlled or licensed

y  under any Environmental/ Hazardous Materials Laws, or the remediation or release of which into
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the environment is likely, immediately or in the future, to cause harm or degradation to any of the
Lands or the environment, including contaminants, pollutants, corrosive substances, toxic
substances, special wastes, substances deleterious to fish or wildlife, explosives, radioactive
materials, asbestos, urea formaldehyde, and compounds known as chloroblphenyls;

(d) "Environmental Authority" means any level of government or other authorized agency relating to
the environment, health, safety or any Hazardous Materials with appropriate jurisdiction over the
Lands or your activities or both, as the case may be; and

(e) "Environmental Risks" means any risk of liability, culpability or obligation of remediation under
Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws applicable to either or both the Lands or yourself.

13.2 Environmental Representations

You represent, warrant, covenant and promise to the Lender that:

(a) the Lands are free of any and all Environmental Risks and you are not aware of any Environmental
Risks which have not been disclosed to the Lender and approved by the Lender in writing;

(b) the Lands do not contain any Hazardous Materials whatsoever, and no Hazardous Materials have
ever been released into the environment as a result of any of the activities conducted on the

i  f Lands;
J

(c) you possess and will maintain all environmental licences, permits and other approvals from
Environmental Authority as may be necessary for the continued conduct of your business. All
operations on the Lands are and will be kept in compliance with all such environmental licences,

i  permits and other approvals, and Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws and, all future usage
of the Lands will be limited to environmentally acceptable activities in compliance with all

I  Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws, It being agreed without limiting the generality of the
j  above, you will not install in, on or under the Lands storage tanks for any Hazardous Materials

without the Lender's prior written consent and only upon full compliance with the Lender's
requirements and the standards and requirements of all boards and governmental authorities

I  having jurisdiction over the Lands and your activities and assets;

(d) you will advise the Lender Immediately upon becoming aware of any Environmental Risks;

'  (e) there are no claims, actions, investigations, liens, prosecutions, notices, work orders, control
M  orders, stop orders or directives, written or oral ("Orders") of any kind issued or pending by any
I  Environmental Authority with respect to any of your activities, or any of your property, past or
I  I present, as they relate to any and all Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws; and there are no
j  circumstances, current or contemplated, which might give rise to such Orders and you will provide

the Lender with copies of all communications from or to any person relating to
Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws and any Environmental/Hazardous Materials Claims in

I  connection with the Lands that become known to you, and all environmental studies or
ui assessments prepared for you, and you consent to the Lender contacting and making enquiries of

environmental officials or assessors;

I  (f) you have an environmental emergency response plan and all your officers and employees are
familiar with that plan and their duties under it. You will ensure your staff Is trained as required for
such purpose and for all purposes relating to the use, handling and storage of Hazardous

I  Materials; and

(g) you will from time to time and at any time required by the Lender, provide evidence satisfactory to
the Lender that you and the Lands are compliant with all Environmental/Hazardous Materials

j  I Laws, and, if the Lender considers it necessary, cause such inspections, reports and audits and
LJ provide the results thereof to the Lender as it may require. You shall pay the entire cost of any

such inspections, reports and audits of the Lands, and such inspections, reports and audits shall
be performed by a duly licensed engineer acceptable to the Lender. The scope of any

^  environmental audit shall be at the Lender's- sole discretion, and the auditor performing or
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conducting the environmental audit shall be granted full access to the Lands to perform or conduct
any testing or investigation deemed necessary by the auditor in the auditor's sole discretion.

13.3 Environmental Repair

You will, at your sole cost and expense, comply, and cause all of your tenants, agents and.invitees to comply,
with all Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws and with all permits and licenses issued by any Environmental
Authority with respect to the storage, discharge and removal of Hazardous Materials, and you shall pay,
immediately when due. the cost of removal of any such Hazardous Materials. You shall pay the cost of any
improvements necessary to deal with such Hazardous Materials and shall keep the Lands free and clear of any
lien Imposed pursuant to any law including all Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws. If you fail to do so, the
Lender may, after notice to you and the expiration of the earlier of:

(a) any applicable cure period under this mortgage charge; or

(b) the cure period under the applicable law, rule, regulation or order;

without any responsibility or liability in connection therewith, enter upon the Lands and do the work required and
the cost thereof will be added to the Secured Obligations and become immediately due and payable, or
alternatively at the option of the Lender, may declare this mortgage to be in default.

13.4 Environmental Assessments and Audits

It is expressly understood that the Lender has no responsibility to monitor your compliance or to take any action in
the event of non-compliance. You will provide to the Lender copies of any and all environmental reports or
studies in respect of the Lands that you receive or possess from time to time.

13.5 Exclusion of Liability

No action taken by the Lender in doing remedial work or repairs or in conducting assessments, audits, appraisals
or inspections as provided in this Article shall constitute the Lender as a mortgagee in possession and the Lender
by taking any such action shall not be considered to have care, management or control of the Lands; It being
expressly understood that you have complete responsibility to ensure compliance with all
Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws and the Lender's right to monitor such compliance shall not be
construed as a responsibility to ensure such compliance.

13.6 Indemnity

You hereby indemnify the Lender, its officers, directors, employees, agents, shareholders and members, and
agrees to hold each of them harmless, from and against any and all losses, liabilities, damages, costs, demands,
expenses and claims of any and every kind whatsoever relating to any breach or non-compliance with
Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws by yourself or by your directors, officers, servants, agents, tenants or
invitees, or relating to any Hazardous Materials handled, placed, held, located or disposed of on or in the Lands
or related to any claims or proceedings (whether by civil action or related to any enforcement or recovery action
under statute or regulation) for injury or damage to person or property from or relating directly or indirectly to the
use, presence, handling, disposal, escape or release of any Hazardous Materials on or from the Lands. Such
indemnity includes, without limitation, indemnity against:

(a) all costs (Including legal expenses on a solicitor and his own client basis) of defending,
counterclaiming and/or claiming against you or any third parties in respect of any such action or
matter;

(b) all costs of every kind and nature whatsoever incurred by the Lender directly In order, either, to
comply with Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws or to remediate the Lands to comply with
Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws; and

(c) any and all costs, liabilities, claims or damages arising out of a settlement of any action entered
into by the Lender with or without your consent, which at any time or from time to time may be
paid, incurred or asserted against any of the parties indemnified hereby for, with respect to, or as a
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direct or indirect result of the presence on or under, or the escape, seepage, leakage, spillage,
discharge, emission or release from, the Lands or into or upon any land, the atmosphere, or any
water course, body of water or wetland, of any Hazardous Materials.

This indemnity shall survive foreclosure or judicial sale (including the process of judicial sale known in Alberta as
a "Rice Order") of the Lands and any other exercise of the Lender's rights hereunder or under any security
collateral hereto.

14. POWERS AND PROTECTIVE DISBURSEMENTS

the Lender and any of its agents, may at such time and from time to time, as the Lender deems necessary and
without the concurrence of any person, enter upon any part of the Lands and make arrangements for completing
the construction, repairing or putting in of improvements, or for inspecting, appraising, taking care of. leasing,
collecting the rents of, and generally managing any or all of the Lands, as the Lender may deem expedient, and
the Lender may. without notifying you, purchase any material or service and make any payments to preserve,
protect or enhance the Lands or to remedy any default by you in respect of any promise or covenant contained in
this mortgage and, without restricting the generality of the foregoing, the Lender may:

(a) retire fees, expenses and borrowings of a receiver:

(b) acquire insurance against direct damage, liability to third parties or any other risk associated with
the Lands on such terms and at such limits as the Lender may find advisable;

(c) discharge any lien, mortgage or encumbrance which, in the opinion of the Lender, has priority over
this mortgage;

(d) improve the title of the Lender or of any purchaser of the Lands who purchases them through a
sale having the effect of foreclosing your interest in the Lands or who purchases them from the
Lender after the your interest in the Lands has been foreclosed;

(e) discharge any debt or obligation which the Lender may find should be discharged in order to better
market, sell or protect the Lands;

hJ (f) cause the Lands to be inspected, investigated (including environmental audits), appraised,
surveyed or subdivided;

(g) cause your books and records to be audited and the financial health of your business to be
^  investigated;

I  (h) retire the fees, commissions or expenses of any agent retained by the Lender to market the Lands;

U
(i) retire all costs and expenses, including legal fees on a solicitor and his own client basis, in relation

to the preparation, execution and delivery of this mortgage and any amendment or discharge of it,
t  in relation to the collection of any amount due hereunder and in relation to the enforcement of any
U  remedy including the actual fees and expenses of solicitors on a solicitor and his own client basis

who act on behalf of the Lender in proceedings for the appointment of a receiver, foreclosure,
foreclosure and sale, judicial sale, sale by power of sale or possession of the Lands;

u (j) pay the fees and expenses of your trustee in Bankruptcy, should the Lender determine to make
itself liable for such;

LJ (k) retire all costs and expenses Including fees on a solicitor and his own client basis in respect of any
suit concerning this mortgage, any lands that may be mortgaged hereunder, the Lender's title to
the Lands, or the priority of the Lender's interest in the Lands;

^  (I) cause any environmental rehabilitation, investigation, removal or repair necessary to protect,
preserve or remediate the Lands; and

U
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(m) contact and make inquiries of the your lessors/lessees, as well as environmental officials,
assessors, municipal authorities and any taxing body.

A purchase or payment mentioned in this clause is referred to in this mortgage as a "protective disbursement", the
Lender is not obliged to make any protective disbursement. All protective disbursements, including solicitor and
his own client fees and expenses upon foreclosure and sale, are secured by this mortgage and are payable out of
the proceeds of the exercise of any remedy notwithstanding that the Lender's liabiiity for the protective
disbursement arises after or is discharged after a sale of the mortgaged property.

15. EVENTS OF DEFAULT

The occurrence of any of the following events will constitute an Event of Default;

(a) if you fail, or threaten to fail, to observe or perform any covenant, agreement, condition or
obligation in the Lender's favour, whether or not herein contained, including your failure to pay or
perform any of the Secured Obligations when due;

(b) if any representation, warranty or statement made to the Lender either by yourself or on your
behalf and whether or not contained herein or elsewhere, is not or ceases to be true;

(c) if you, or any other person (the "obligant") liable, In respect of any of the Secured Obligations,
ceases or threatens to cease to carry on business, as the case may be, or any material part
thereof or to sell all or substantially all of your or the obligant's assets, or becomes insolvent or
files a proposal, a notice of intention to file a proposal, or an assignment for the benefit of creditors
under applicable bankruptcy or similar legislation, or if a petition is filed, an order is made, a
resolution is passed, or any other step is taken for your, or the obligant's, bankojptcy, liquidation,
dissolution, winding-up or reorganization or for any arrangement or composition of debts or any
protection from your or the obligant's creditors;

(d) If you are in default under any other charge of the Lands or under any indebtedness other than
Secured Obligations, or if you permit the acceleration of any indebtedness (other than Secured
Obligations) that you may owe to any creditor other than the Lender;

(e) if a Receiver, trustee or similar official of any of your property is appointed;

(f) if you are a corporation and any member or shareholder commences an action against you or
^  gives you notice of dissent in accordance with the provisions of any applicable legislation;

(g) the holder of any other charge on, or claim against, any of the Lands does anything to enforce or
realize on such charge or claim, or any execution, sequestration, or other process becomes

LJ enforceable against you, or if a distress, seizure or similar process Is levied upon or exercised
against any of the Lands;

j  (h) if the lessor under any lease to you of any of the Lands takes any step to or threatens to terminate
^  such or otherwise exercise any of its remedies under such lease as a result of any default or

alleged default on your part under such lease;

J

J

u

i

u

(i) If any of the Lands are destroyed, substantially damaged, expropriated, or designated or
considered for designation as a contaminated site;

I  G) 1^ any permit, licence, certification, quota or order granted to you or held by you is cancelled,
U  reduced or revoked, or any order against you is enforced, with the effect of preventing your

business from being carried on for more than five days or materially adversely changing the
:  condition (financial or otherwise) of your business;

(k) if you sell, transfer, convey, lease, assign, release, surrender or otherwise dispose of or part with
possession of any of the Lands or agree to do so;
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(I) if you are in arrears of payment to any taxing authority;

(m) if you cause or allow hazardous materials to be brought upon the Lands or incorporated into any of
your assets without the Lender's prior consent, or if you cause, permit or fail to remedy any
environmental contamination upon, in or under the Lands or fails to comply with any abatement or
remediation order given by a responsible authority;

(n) if you use any of the monies advanced hereunder for any purpose other than as declared to and
agreed upon by the Lender;

(o) if the Lender deems itself insecure or believes that the assets secured hereby are in danger of
loss, damage or misuse; or

(p) if there is any Event of Default or deemed Event of Default pursuant to this mortgage.

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, at the option of the Lender, without notice to you, this mortgage and
the Lender's other security, if any, shall immediately become enforceable and all of the Secured Obligations
remaining unpaid shall become due and payable. If, in respect of a default, the Lender chooses not to exercise
any of the remedies given to it or waives its right to call In the balance of the loan, such does not constitute a
waiver of the Lender's rights under this clause in respect of any other default.

16. NOTICE RESPECTING DEFAULT AND ENFORCEMENT

the Lender may exercise any remedy or remedies immediately upon the occurrence of an Event of Default,
without making a demand for payment or giving time for payment or notifying you of the Lender's intention to
exercise the remedy or remedies. If the Lender chooses to notify you of such an intention or to demand payment,
it shall not thereby be taken to have waived its rights under this clause or to have subjected itself to a duty to give
reasonable notice to you respecting the Lender's intention or to you reasonable time for payment.

17. ENFORCEMENT

17.1 Enforcement.Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default the Lender may declare any or ail of the
Secured Obligations immediately due and payable, and the Lender's security will immediately become

iJ enforceable. To enforce and realize on the charges created hereby we may take (or refrain from taking) any
action permitted by law or in equity as we may deem expedient, including any of the following:

(a) enter upon, take possession of, occupy, use, preserve and protect the Lands, with power to
1^ exclude you, your agents and employees therefrom and may inspect, use, operate, manage, lease

and control the Lands and conduct the business thereof:

J  (b) maintain, repair, replace and complete any development of the Lands In accordance with existing
plans or otherwise as the Lender, in its our absolute discretion, may determine:

I  (c) collect all assigned rents and other assets the Lender holds as security for the Secured
U  Obligations;

(d) sell, lease or otherwise dispose of all or part of the Lands and other assets of yours over which the
'  Lender holds security, whether by public or private sale or lease or otherwise, in such manner, at

such price as can be reasonably obtained and on such terms as to credit and with such conditions
as the Lender may consider reasonable, provided that if any sale, lease or other disposition is on

'  credit you will not be entitled to be credited with the proceeds of any such sale, lease or other
j  disposition until the monies are actually received. No purchaser shall be bound to inquire into the

legality or propriety of any such sale or be affected by notice of any Irregularity or impropriety, the
Lender may take sale proceedings hereunder even if other mortgage proceedings have been

,  ! taken or are pending;
U

(e) exercise any or all of your rights and remedies in respect of the Lands;
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(f) as your agent, appoint by Instrument a Receiver of the Lands and of all your properties, assets,
effects and undertakings related to or arising out of the Lands with or without bond as the Lender
may determine, and in the Lender's absolute discretion and from time to time, remove any
Receiver so appointed and appoint another in its stead, but the Lender shall be under no liability
for the remuneration, acts or omissions of the Receiver, its employees and agents;

(g) exercise any other rights and remedies under this mortgage; or,

(h) exercise any other right and power a Receiver could exercise.

the Lender shall not be liable for any debts the Lender contracts during enforcement of this mortgage, for
damages to persons or property, salaries or non-fulfillment of contracts during any period when the Lender takes
any action referred to above, for any misconduct, negligence or misfeasance by us, or any employee or agent of
ours, and neither the provisions of this mortgage nor the exercise of any of the powers provided in this mortgage
shall render us a mortgagee in possession, and we shall not be accountable except for the monies we actually
receive. You waive any provisicm o1 law which may be waived which imposes any greater obligations on us than
described above.

17.2 Receiver.A Receiver appointed pursuant to this mortgage shall be your agent and not ours, and, to the
extent permitted by law or its appointment, shall, in our discretion, have all of our rights and powers (including
those under this mortgage), including the power to:

(a) take possession of and enter upon the Lands;

(b) sell or lease or concur in selling or leasing of the Lands;

(c) make any arrangement or compromise which it shall think expedient;

(d) carry on, or concur in the carrying on of, any development then in progress or otherwise
^  contemplated by you with respect to the Lands or your business relating to the Lands and for such

purposes from time to time to borrow money either secured or unsecured, and if secured by
security on the whole or any part of the Lands, such security may rank before or pari passu with or
behind this mortgage; and

(e) commence, continue or defend proceedings in the name of the Receiver or in your name, which
the Receiver considers necessary or advisable for the proper protection of the whole or any

I  portion of the Lands or the enforcement of this mortgage.
laJ

We may from time to time fix the remuneration of every such Receiver and direct the payment thereof out of the
proceeds of the receivership. The rights and powers conferred by this paragraph are in addition and not in

J  substitution for any right we may from time to time possess.

17.3 Application of Proceeds.Any money from time to time received by the Receiver shall, subject to the
1  claims of creditors, if any, which are secured by any Charges ranking in priority to this mortgage, be paid, subject
U  to our direction otherwise, by it Firstly, In payment of all costs, charges and expenses of and incidental to the

appointment of the Receiver and the exercise by it of all or any of the powers aforesaid including the reasonable
I  remuneration of the Receiver and all amounts properly payable by it. Secondly, in or towards payment to us of
I  the amounts comprised in the Secured Obligation in such manner and order as we shall, in our absolute

discretion, deem advisable, and Thirdly, any surplus shall be paid to you provided that in the event any party
claims a charge against all or a portion of the surplus, the Receiver shall make such disposition of all or any
portion of the surplus as the Receiver deems appropriate in the circumstances.

U
17.4 Appointment of Attorney .You Irrevocably appoint us or the Receiver, as the case may be, with full
power of substitution, as your attorney for and in your name to do everything necessary or incidental to the
exercise of any or all of the powers conferred on us or the Receiver, as the case may be, pursuant to this

taJ mortgage.
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18. LIABILITY RESPECTING ENFORCEMENT OF SECURITY

Once the Lender has determined to exercise a remedy or remedies, it may deal with and dispose of the Lands as
the Lender may see fit and neither you nor those claiming by, though from or under you shall maintain any action,
advance any claim or rely on any set-off by reason of the order of enforcement of remedies against parts of the
Lands, the abandonment or discharge of the Lands or part of them, the Lender's failure to maintain or insure the
Lands, the Lender's failure to secure an adequate price for the Lands or anything relating to the manner In which
the Lands are dealt with or disposed of (in this clause "the Lender" includes the receiver).

Further, the Lender may, in its sole discretion, realize on various securities {including this mortgage) and any
parts thereof in any order that the Lender considers advisable and no realization or exercise by the Lender of any
power or right under this mortgage or other security shall In any way prejudice any further realization or exercise
until all Secured Obligations are satisfied. All rights and remedies available to the Lender are cumulative and not
restrictive of remedies at law and in equity and by statute.

19. RELEASES

You are and will not be released from any your obligations to pay the Secured Obligations nor is any security held
to secure the Secured Obligations released by reason of the Lender releasing any person who may be obligated
to pay the Secured Obligations or any part of them, or by reason of the Lender releasing any security held to
secure payment of the Secured Obligations, the Lender is only accountable for money actually received by it In
consideration of the release of any person or security.

20. INDULGENCES

the Lender may grant extensions of time and other Indulgences, take and give up security, accept compositions,
compromise, make settlements, grant releases and discharges, refrain from registering or maintaining registration
of charges, and otherwise deal with you, any other obllgant, your other creditors, sureties and other persons and
with the Lands and other security, all as the Lender sees fit in its absolute discretion and without prejudice to your
liability or the Lender's rights or remedies. You agree that you will not be released nor your liability in any way
reduced because the Lender has done, not done, or concurred in doing or not doing, an^hlng whereby a surety
would or might be released In whole or in part.

J  21. ASSIGNS

This mortgage is binding upon you and your successors, assigns, heirs, executors and administrators and is
granted to and for the benefit of the Lender, its successors and its assigns.

22. BORROWER AUTHORITY

' I You hereby represent and warrant to the Lender that you are duly and appropriately authorized and empowered
to grant this mortgage, incur the Secured Obligations and observe, adhere to and perform (as the case may be)
all of your obligations, promises and covenants under this mortgage without either breach or default under any

I  other obligation (whether imposed by law or by contract) or promise made by you or any further consent or
approval of any person, party, authority or regulator; and, further, that this mortgage constitutes a valid and
binding obligation on your part to the Lender.

I  23. GENDER AND NUMBER
lJ

The use in this mortgage of the neuter gender includes the masculine and the feminine; the use of the plural
j  includes the singular; the use of the singular includes the plural.

^  24. FURTHER ASSURANCES

You shall execute and deliver to the Lender upon request any further or additional documentation which the
U  Lender in its sole discretion deems necessary to give full effect to this mortgage and each and every provision

contained in this mortgage.

Mortgage - Alberta - Filed Terms

/ 0



11
20
52
40
6 

RE
GI

ST
ER

ED
 2
01

1 
02

 2
4

MO
RS
 -
 S
TA

ND
AR

D 
FO

RM
 M

OR
TG

AG
E

DO
C 

1 
OF
 

1 
DR
R#
: 
E0

0D
2F

D 
AD
R/
DA
LB
ON
IG

NO
 L
AN
D 
AF

FE
CT

ED



-6-

This is Exhibit "F" referred to in the Affidavit of

Hardeep Singh sworn before me on the ^
day of November, 2018.

)
A CommissfSner for Oaths in and )
for the Province of Alberta )
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GUARANTEE

GUARANTOR: I 119658 Alberta Ltd. the "Guarantor"

CREDITOR; Business Development Bank of Canada "BDC"

DEBTOR; 101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd. the "Borrower"

DEBT: $2,750,000.00 the "Principal Sum"

LIMIT OF LIABILITY; UNLIMITED

DATED;

BDC BUSINESS

CENTRE;

■4^

the "Limited Amount"

/
S2I 2015

ALBERTA
(Province/Tsrritory)

the "Governing Jurisdiction"

y

IN CONSIDERATION of BDC agreeing to make a loan to. the Borrower of the Principal Sum, the Guarantor
covenants v/ith BDC as follows:

1. DEBT AND SECURITY
In this guarantee. "Loan Security" means all accepted letters of offer, loan agreements, promissory notes,
debentures, mortgages, hypothecations, pledges, assignments and security agreements of any kind which
BDC may hold at any time as security for the payment of the Principal Sum and all agreements amending,
extending or renewing those security instruments. The Guarantor has read all of the Loan Security held by
BDC as of the date of this guarantee.

2. GUARANTEE
The Guarantor unconditionally guarantees performance by the Borrower of all promises under the Loan
Security and payment by the Borrower of the Principal Sum. protective disbursements, interest and other
amounts the Borrov/er has promised to pay under the Loan Security (the foregoing amounts collectively are
called the "Outstanding Balance") The Guarantor also promises to pay to BDC all legal fees and
disbursements, on a solicitor and client basis, incurred by BDC in reference to any suit upon this guarantee.
The liability of the Guarantor under this guarantee does not exceed the Limited Amount plus legal expenses
plus interest on the Limited Amount at the rate provided under the Loan Security calculated and
compounded monthly from the date BDC demands payment under this guarantee.

This guarantee shall be a continuing guarantee and the obligations guaranteed hereunder shall include all
present and future indebtedness and liabilities of the Borrower to BDC under the Loan Security, of any
nature whatsoever, and whether incurred by the Borrower alone or v/ith others.

3. LIABILITY AS PRINCIPAL DEBTOR
As between BDC and the Guarantor, the Guarantor is liable as principal debtor for all of the Borrower's
covenants contained In the Loan Security notwithstanding any act or omission of the Borrower or of BDC

(E6917771.DOCX; 1}Guarantee - Western Canada
Rev. April 30. 201.5 Page 1
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!  which might otherv/ise operate as a partiai or absoiute discharge of the Guarantor if the Guarantor were only
J  a surety.

4. LIABILITYNOTDIMINISHEDBY ACTS OF THE BANK OR THE BORROWER

j  Except for payment of ail sums due under the Loan Security, payment of the amount due under this
^  guarantee or written discharge, no act or omission of BDC or of the Borrower, before or after default,

discharges or diminishes the liability of the Guarantor under this guarantee and without restricting the
I  foregoing, the Guarantor covenants with BDC as follows:

u
(a) BDC may grant time and other indulgences to the Borrower, to a Guarantor and to any
other person liable for all or any portion of the Principal Sum;

I  I

^  (b) BDC may modify', extend or renew (in either case, on the then current, or on new, terms).
exchange, abstain from perfecting, discharge or abandon the Loan Security or any part of it or
anything mortgaged or charged by it;

(c) BDC may enter into any agreement with the Borrower to vary the terms of any agreement
affecting the payment or repayment of Principal Sum, including a change in the rate of interest
chargeable on the Principal Sum;

(d) BDC may enter into any agreement or accept any compromise that has the effect of
^  diminishing or extinguishing the liability of the Borrower to BDC or the value of the Loan Security or
^  the value of anything mortgaged by it;

(e) BDC need not ascertain or enforce compliance by the Borrower or any other person with
1  any covenant under the Loan Security;
U

(f) BDC bears no responsibility for any neglect or omission with respect to anything mortgaged
under the Loan Security, either during possession by the Borrower or by any third party or by BDC

^  or by anyone on behalf of BDC;

(g) BDC is not bound to seek recourse against the Borrower before requiring payment from the
!  ! Guarantor and BDC may enforce its various remedies under this guarantee and the Loan Security
w  or any part of it at any time, In any manner and in any order as BDC may choose;

(h) BDC bears no duty to the Guarantor in respect of the liquidation of anything mortgaged
!  under the Loan Security and, without restricting the foregoing, it is under no duty to avoid waste of,
^  to obtain a fair price for or to avoid neglect in the liquidation of anything mortgaged under the Loan

Security;

ui (i) BDC has no obligation to ensure that any Loan Security, other guarantee or security
collateral to a guarantee is executed, perfected or delivered and, if by reason of want of authority or
failure of execution and delivery or failure to comply v;ith laws respecting perfection and registration
of instruments or any other reason, any intended Loan Security, guarantee or collateral security is

^  not granted, is unenforceable or becomes unenforceable, the liability of the Guarantor under this
guarantee remains enforceable and undimlnished; and

■  i

^  (j) The Guarantor confirms and agrees that any modifications of the loan terms or Loan
Security may be agreed upon directly between BDC and the Borrower without notice to the
Guarantor and without the Guarantor's further concurrence.

J 5. SUBROGATION

The Guarantor shall not be subrogated in any manner to any right of BDC until all money due to BDC under
the Loan Security is paid.

6. RELEASE

If more than one person guarantees any of the obligations of the Borrower to BDC under this guarantee or
any other instrument, BDC may release any of those persons on any terms BDC chooses and each person
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executing this guarantee who has not been released shall remain liable to BDC under this guarantee as if
y  the person so released had never guaranteed any of the obligations of the Borrower.

7. PAYltflENT AND REiVlEDYING DEFAULTS

I  The Guarantor shall pay the amount guaranteed or rectify any default immediately upon receiving a demand
from BDC and shall do so whether or not BDC has exhausted its recourses against the Borrower, other
parties, the Loan Security or anything mortgaged under the Loan Security. A demand is effectually made

;  I when a letter Is posted to the address of the Guarantor last known to BDC.

U
8. NO COLLATERAL AGREEWIENTS OR REPRESENTATIONS

,  Any agreement between BDC and the Guarantor diminishing the liability of the Guarantor under this
I  guarantee, altering any term of this guarantee or imposing any condition against the operation of any such
^  term is of no further force or effect. Any representation made by BDC having such effect is waived. The

Guarantor warrants that there are no agreements, representations or conditions that have been relied upon
by the Guarantor that are not expressed in this guarantee.

^  9. CHANGES MUST BE IN WRITING
This guarantee may only be amended by writing executed by BDC. No agreement has the effect of
diminishing or discharging the liability of the Guarantor under this guarantee unless the agreement is in

^  writing and executed by BDC. The Guarantor shall not rely upon any future representation made by BDC in
respect of the liability of the Guarantor under this guarantee unless such representation is in writing

,  executed by BDC.

iJ
10. JOINT AND SEVERAL LIABILITY

Where this guarantee has been executed by more than one person, the liability of the persons executing
I  this guarantee is joint and several and every reference in this guarantee to the "Guarantor" shall be

construed as meaning each person who has executed it as well as all of them. This guarantee is binding on
those who have executed it noKvithstanding that it may remain unexecuted by any other person.

11. JURISDICTION

The laws of the Governing Jurisdiction shall govern the enforcement of this Guarantee and the Guarantor
agrees to submit to the jurisdiction of the Courts of the Governing Jurisdiction.

■  I

lJ 12. ASSIGNS
This guarantee is binding upon the Guarantor and the Guarantor's heirs, executors, administrators,

,  successors and assigns and shall enure to the benefit of BDC. its successors and assigns. BDC may
^  assign this guarantee.

13. COUNTERPARTS

t  This guarantee may be executed in any number of counterparts each of which shall be deemed an original
U  with the same effect as if the signatures thereto and hereto were upon the same instrument. Delivery of an

executed counterpart of a signature page of this guarantee by telecopy shall be effective as delivery of a
manually executed counterpart of this guarantee.

kJ

1119658 ALBERTA LTD. ^ ,
I  by its authorized siQnatory(ies);

■rV' ^

! V; C |f| iLurpiiratc y3|
^  Authorized signatory O % \ v

..-.V
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This is Exhibit "G" referred to in the Affidavit of

Hardeep Singh sworn before me on the ^
day of November, 2018.

A Commissioner for Oaths in and )
for the Province of Alberta )

Oc^.3 ^
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MORTGAGE

MORTGAGOR: 101285461 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.

the "Borrower",

MORTGAGEE: BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT BANK OF CANADA

"BDC",

DATED: the.'^o day of , 2015

FOR: $5,500,000.00 (the "Principal Sum") and other indebtedness.

the Borrower, being or entitled to be registered as owner of, an estate in fee simple (or such other estate as
hereinafter provided) subject, however, to such encumbrances, liens, and interests, as are notified by
memorandum underwritten (or endorsed hereon) that piece or pieces of land described as follows:

Surface Parcel #142833685

Lot 11 BIk/Par 7 Plan No 99y06931 Extension 0
As described on Certificate of Title 99Y07276

Surface Parcel #142833674

Lot 12 BIk/Par 7 Plan No 99Y06931 Extension 0

As described on Certificate of Title 99Y07276

(the ' Lands')

IN CONSIDERATION of the Principal Sum lent to the Borrower by BDC, incorporated by Special Act of the
Parliament of Canada, having its head office at the City of Montreal, in the Province of Quebec, with a Branch
Office at 135 - 21^' Street East, Main Floor, Saskatoon. Saskatchewan, S7K 084, the receipt of which sum is
hereby acknowledged, the Borrower hereby mortgages and charges its entire estate and interest in the Lands as
security for repayment of the Secured Obligations, not to exceed 55,500,000.00 together with interest and costs,
and acknowledges and covenants v/ith BDC, as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS

"you" and "your" refers to the Borrower and "we" and "us" refers to BDC.

"Secured Obligations" means the aggregate of all indebtedness and obligations of the Borrower to BDC as may
arise pursuant to Article 2 of this mortgage.

'floating base rate" means the rate of interest declared from time to time and at any time by BDC from its head
office In Montreal. Quebec, as its floating base rate of interest charged on Canadian dollar loans to its commercial
customers.
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2. DEBT

I  You promise to pay to BDC, at such office of 8DC as we may direct, the aggregate of;

(a) the Principal Sum outstanding from time to time;

^  (b) all your other present or future debts, liabilities or obligations hereunder, or under any letter of offer,
commitment letter, guarantee, or any other agreement, arrangement, document, or negotiable or other
instrument, present or future.- with or given to BDC (including those in replacement of, and any

j  amendment of. any of the foregoing, and including all future advances and re-advances, protective
U  disbursements, interest, and interest on overdue interest), whether direct or indirect, absolute or

contingent, joint or several, matured or not, extended or renewed, wherever and however incurred, of
whatsoever nature or kind, whether or not provided for herein, and whether owed by you to BDC. as

J  principal, guarantor, indemnitor, surety or otherwise;
fc) interest on the Principai Sum at an annual rate equal to the floating base rate of the announced from to

I  time to time plus 10.00% per year, calculated monthly and payable monthly, both after as well as before
J  maturity, default and/or judgment (the "Interest Rate") provided that if you and BDC have agreed to a

lower interest rate as to the Principal Sum or any particular Secured Obligations then that lower interest
rate will apply thereto. In the absence of an agreement as to the interest rate applicable to any Secured

j  Obligations the rate shall be the lesser of the Interest Rate and the highest rate of interest applicable to
lJ any of the Secured Obligations;

,  (d) interest on interest past due at the Interest Rate and calculated in the same manner as interest on the
i  i Principal Sum; and

(e) interest on each protective disbursement from the day the protective disbursement (as hereinafter
I  defined) is made, at the Interest Rate and calculated in the same manner as interest on the Principal
y  Sum.

3. READVANCES
I

^  It is our mutual intention that BDC may wish to make advances and re-advances to you up to an aggregate
outstanding balance at any time equal to the Principal Sum. Accordingly, this mortgage shall be considered to be
a revolving line of credit mortgage within the meaning of, and shall take priority in accordance with the provisions

i i dealing with same in. The Land Titles Act or The Land Titles Act. 2000 of Saskatchewan. This mortgage is and
shall be a continuing security to BDC for the repayment of all present and future amounts owing in respect of the
Secured Obligations. Any portion of the Principal Sum may be advanced or re-advanced by BDC in one or more

:  ! advances at any future date or dates and the amount of such advances and re-advances when so made shall be
^  secured by this mortgage and shali be repayable v/ith interest at the Interest Rate. This mortgage shall be

deemed to be taken as security for the ultimate balance of the Secured Obligations. This mortgage shall not be
void if the Secured Obligations have been repaid in full if such ability to borrow continues to be available to you.

I  This mortgage shall be void only when the Secured Obligations have been repaid in full and BDC gives v./ritten
notice to you that you will not be allowed to borrow further monies and there has been performance of all
covenants, provisos and conditions herein contained. Notwithstanding that this mortgage may be deemed to be a

,  revolving line of credit mortgage, there shali be no right of prepayment except as provided elsewhere in this
^  m.ortgage.

4. SECURITY

As security for payment of the Secured Obligations, and for the performance of your other obligations under this
agreement, you grant, bargain and sell to BDC the Lands (including fixtures, appurtenances, leasehold
improvements and rights of way). This mortgage is void upon payment of the Secured Obligations and the

I  performance of those other obligations. This mortgage is granted in addition to, and not in substitution for, any
^  other security held to secure payment of the Secured Obligations.
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5. FIXTURES

In this mortgage the expression "the Lands" includes fixtures and improvements, appurtenances, leasehold
improvements and rights of way. All erections, buildings or improvements that now are or that shall hereafter be
put or built upon the Lands shall be fixtures and be a part of the realty and form a part of this security even though
not attached to the Lands otherwise than by their own weight and shall not be removed during the continuance of
this mortgage. Fixtures shall include without limitation, all trade fixtures, all heating, ventilating, air conditioning,
plumbing and electrical systems and equipment comprised in the Lands, all safes, cooking, refrigeration and
Vv-ashing equipment on or in the Lands, all telecommunication and telephone equipment serving the Lands, and all
maintenance equipment used in connection with the Lands.

6. MORTGAGE OF LEASE

j  If your interest is as a lessee, sublessee, licensee or sub-licensee (collectively a "lessee") of the whole or any
•  portion of the Lands pursuant to a lease:

(a) you hereby demise, sublease and mortgage your interest and the lease and any renewals, extensions or
replacements of the lease to BDC, by v/ay of a sub-lease, except for the last day of the term of the lease
(the "reversion") v,/hich is excepted out of the charge created by this mortgage but which shall be deemed
to be held by you in trust for BDC to be assigned or disposed of as BDC or anyone claiming through BDC
may direct, and BDC shall have power on any realization to appoint a new person as Trustee of the
reversion:

(b) if the lease cannot be effectively charged without consent, any charge intended to be created by this
mortgage upon your interest in the lease shall not become effective until, but shall become effective
immediately when, all consents necessary for the validity and effectiveness of such charge have been
obtained or waived by all appropriate persons;

J  (c) you represent to BDC that the lease is valid and in good standing, in full force and effect and
unsurrendered. you have the right to mortgage your interest and the lease to BDC. all rents or other
amounts payable under the lease have been paid and all other obligations under the lease, whether yours
or the landlords, have been performed or complied with;

(d) you will promptly perform and observe all of the terms, covenants and conditions required to be
performed and observed by you under the lease, including payment of rent and the renewing of the lease;

(e) you shall lake no action or be guilty of any default which shall or may cause the lease to be terminated or
forfeited, or. v^ithout BDC'S prior written consent, surrender or give any notice which v«/ould have the
effect of terminating, or permitting the termination of. the lease;

(f) you will promptly notify BDC in writing of any default or of any condition that with or without the passage
of time or the giving of any notice might result in a default under, or the termination of. the lease, and you
will promptly cause a copy of each notice you receive under the lease to be delivered to BDC;

(g) in the event that you, at any time or from time to time, extend the size of the leasehold land herein or
increases the size of your equity in the leasehold land or become registered as owner or entitled to
become registered as owner of the full fee simple then the mortgage of the leasehold land shall become
enlarged to be a mortgage of the increased size of the mortgaged premises or of the increased size of the
equity or of the full fee simple, as the case may be;

(h) you will not during the continuance of this mortgage, without BDC's prior written consent, modify, alter or
suffer or permit any modification or alteration of the lease and any such altered or modified lease shall be
charged by this mortgage;
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J
(i) you will promptly obtain from the lessor under the lease and deliver to BDC. a certificate stating that the

lease is in full force and effect, is unmodified or modified as the case may be, that no notice of termination
j  thereon has been served on you thereunder, stating the date to which the rent has been paid and stating
j  whether or not there are any defaults thereunder and specifying the nature of such defaults, if any;

,  (j) you shall not consent to the subordination of the lease to any mortgage of the interest of the lessor (or
J  leasehold interest of the sublessor) thereof in the Lands; and

(k) you will at the proper time and times take such proceedings, and make, do and execute such acts, deeds,
I  matters and things as may be requisite for obtaining a renewal of the lease.

U

U

7. WIORTGAGE OF CONDOIVIINIUM UNIT

If the Lands include a condominium unit;

(a) you shall comply with, observe and perform all provisions of the applicable condominium legislation, its
regulations and the by-laws, rules and regulations of the condominium corporation (the "Condo
Corporation") of which you are a member by virtue of your ownership of the condominium unit hereby
charged;

(b) you shall pay, on or before the due date thereof, each and every assessment, contribution, expense, fine
or levy made by or on behalf of the Condo Corporation in respect of the Lands;

(c) you will forward to BDC within 10 days of our demand a certificate in any form required by the applicable
condominium legislation certifying that no monies are owing by you to the Condo Corporation;

(d) you agree that nothing done by BDC in protecting Its interests in the Lands, including without limiting the
generality of the foregoing BDC exercising your right to vote as provided in the applicable condominium
legislation generally, shall render BDC a mortgagee in possession:

(e) if for any reason whatsoever you vote at any meeting of the Condo Corporation, you shall, if directed by
BDC, vote in such manner as BDC directs with respect to each and every matter to be voted;

(f) at least five days prior to each general meeting of the Condo Corporation, you shall deliver to BDC written
notice of the meeting specifying the place, date, hour and purpose of the meeting:

(g) you hereby authorize any of BDC's officers to apply at any time and from time to time during the term of
this mortgage to the Condo Corporation to deliver to BDC copies of all notices, financial statements and
other documents given or available to you from the Condo Corporation; and

(h) in the event of any occurrence or event whereby BDC, acting reasonably, has determined thai any act or
the operation of the Condo Corporation is. has or will diminish the value of Lands as security for the
Secured Obligations. BDC shall be at liberty to demand immediate repayment of the Principal Sum.

8. MORTGAGE OF VENDOR'S INTEREST IN RIGHT TO PURCHASE

If your interest in the Lands includes the full fee simple subject to a right to purchase (in this clause called the
"Right to Purchase"):

(a) you transfer and assign to BDC absolutely all of your right, title and interest in and to the Right to
Purchase and the monies now and hereafter owing thereunder, together with the full benefit of all powers
and all covenants and provisions in the Right to Purchase, and full power and authority to use your name
for enforcing the performance of the covenants and other matters and things contained in the Right to
Purchase; and
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(b) you shai! not accept any prepayment of the Right to Purchase other than in accordance with the terms
thereof; provided that, if you are obliged to accept a prepayment, the amount thereof shall be paid to us

j  as a prepayment on account of the Secured Obligations unless we waive such prepayment: and
tail

(c) we shall be under no obligation to commence action or take any proceeding or step to enforce the Right
'  to Purchase and shall not be liable for any loss arising from any omission by us to take any such action.
^  proceeding or step,

S. COVENANTS

I

^  You covenant with BDC that;

ImI

J

I
t  !

J

(a) you will keep all the Lands in good repair and shall not allow waste in respect of the Lands, not to allow
the Lands to be or remain vacant and to immediately notify BDC of any damage to the Lands;

(b) you have good title in fee simple lo the Lands, other than those lands that are expressed herein to be
held in leasehold, and the right to convey the Lands as hereby conveyed;

(c) you have done no act to encumber the Lands, except as set out herein;

(d) you will execute or provide such further assurances as BDC may reasonably require and shall do so at
your expense;

(e) you shall discharge any debt or obligation that may be the subject of a demand upon BDC or an agent of
BDC in the event that BDC enforces one of the remedies;

(f) you shall pay all rents, taxes, rates, levies, assessments and impositions, government, municipal or
otherwise which are now or may hereafter be levied, charged, assessed, imposed or payable against or
in respect of the Lands, as and when due and produce to BDC the receipts for those payments;

(g) you will pay and discharge all claims and obligations to labourers, mechanics and material men and
others and all other claims, debts and obligations which by the law of Canada or any Province thereof
have or might have priority over the security hereby created, and produce to BDC the receipts;

(h) you, if a corporation, have taken all necessary corporate action to authorize the execution of this
mortgage and to bind yourself to each of the terms of this mortgage and you shall maintain your corporate
existence;

(i) on default BDC may enter and have quiet enjoyment of the Lands;

(j) you shall do all acts necessary to give BDC access from time to time to the Lands;

(k) you shall carry on, in a proper businesslike manner, the business or businesses you have represented to
BDC as being your present or prospective businesses, and shall maintain in good standing all necessary
licenses, permits, approvals and consents, and shall comply with all laws, regulations and ordinances
applicable to your business;

(1) you will not change, or agree to any change of, the present use of the Lands without BDC'S prior express
written consent;

{m) you will not permit any of the follovs/Ing activities to occur on the Lands:

o  businesses that are sexually exploitive or that are inconsistent with generally accepted
community standard of conduct and propriety, including those that feature sexually explicit
entertainment, products or ser\-'ices;
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o  businesses trading with countries that are proscribed by the Federal Government;

!  I » businesses which operate as a separate and sole entity nightclubs, bars, lounges, cabarets,
casinos, discotheques and similar operations; or

1  I o businesses that are engaged in or associated with illegal activities.

You also agree that if your business or the business of a tenant of yours fails to comply with this
paragraph at any time that will constitute an Event of Default. Any leases of the Lands you may, as

1  ! landlord, enter into should have a clause to this effect.

10. EXPROPRIATION

If an early payout of the Secured Obligations is caused by an act any act of expropriation, including but not limited
^  to expropriation proceedings or sale of the Land under The Builders' Lien.4cf of Saskatchewan:

!  (a) You hereby assign to BDC such portion of any proceeds which becomes due and payable to you by an
^  expropriating authority upon such expropriation equal to the difference, if any, between all Secured

Obligations at the date of the expropriation, and the compensation payable or paid to BDC for the
expropriation of its interest in the Lands by the expropriating authority.

t
!

(b) You shall forward to BDC copies of any documentation relating to an expropriation or a proposed
expropriation of the Land or any portion thereof forthwith upon receipt of the said documentation by it.

J  (c) NotVr/ithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, if you or BDC receives notice of intention to
expropriate in relation to the Lands, or any portion thereof, at the option of BDC, the whole of the Secured
Obligations (including principal, interest and compensation payments) under this mortgage at the date of

j  the expropriation, shall immediately become due and payable in like manner and to all intents and
J  purposes as if the time for payment of the said balance had fully come and expired.

(d) Service of a copy of this mortgage on the expropriating authority shall be sufTicient authority for the
i  I expropriating authority to deliver proceeds to BDC in accordance with the terms of the assignment

contained herein.

!  11. ALTERATIONS

IhI
Except for any construction contemplated by this mortgage, you shall not make or permit to be made any
additions or alterations to the Lands without the written consent of BDC being first obtained; and you shall not use

I  the Lands or permit the Lands to be used, without BDC's written consent, for a purpose other than that disclosed
^  to BDC in the application for this mortgage. If, with BDC'S written consent, you commence work on the Lands, the

following will apply;

i  (a) You will carry on diligently to completion the construction of the development, and will complete such
•  construction In compliance with the requirements of all municipal and other governmental authorities.

laws, bylaws or regulations; and, when so required by BDC. supply BDC with confirmation from any such
[  municipal or governmental authority of such compliance and confirmation from an independent engineer

yj or architect as may be designated by BDC that construction is being completed in accordance with such
requirements; it being understood and agreed that BDC, by reason of its approval of any Plans and
Specifications shall not be liable to you or any third party for the safety, adequacy, soundness or

i  sufficiency of the development or the Plans and Specifications;
UJ

fb) if any part of the development remains unfinished and without any work being done for a period of tenU  consecutive days. BDC may enter the Lands and do all work necessary to protect such work from
deterioration and to complete the construction In such manner as BDC may see fit, and any monies
expended by BDC pursuant to this paragraph shall constitute part of the Secured Obligations:
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(c) BDC shall be entitled, at your expense, to inspect all aspects of the construction and make tests of
materials and you will not cover any portion of the construction work requiring inspection by BDC until

j  BDC has inspected the same and any defects in the construction or variation in construction as reported
«  to BDC by its consultants shall be promptly corrected by you to the satisfaction of BDC;

,  (d) You will pay, or cause to be paid as soon as the same are due. all claims and demands of contractors
i  and materialmen and all wages, salaries, holiday pay. Workers' Compensation assessments or other

charges of any nature or kind (hereinafter called "Charges") which could in any circumstances constitute
a lien or charge having priority over this mortgage or any future advance on this mortgage and you will

i  from time to time, on demand, provide BDC with such books, payrolls or other records, receipts.
^  certificates and declarations as BDC may deem necessary to satisfy itself that such Charges have been

paid as soon as the same are due; and

1  (e) BDC shall not be obliged to hold back advances or any portion of advances to provide the lien fund or
^  other protection to you under The Builders' Lien Act of Saskatchewan provided that if BDC makes a

holdback in a manner similar to the way the said Act provides for an owner to make holdbacks, then
I  notwithstanding such holdbacks by BDC, such holdbacks shall not constitute the lien fund under the said
^  Act and BDC shall not be a mortgagee authorized by the owner to disburse money secured by a

mortgage as referred to in the said Act.

i  12. IWSURANCE

While this mortgage is in effect you will:

I  (a) maintain or cause to be maintained insurance on the Lands with a reputable insurer, of kinds, for amounts
^  and payable to such person or persons, all as BDC may require;

I  (b) cause the insurance policy or policies required by this mortgage to name BDC as a loss payee as BDC'S
^  interest may appear in respect of the Lands, and include a standard mortgage clause as approved by the

Insurance Bureau of Canada;

J

J

J

J

d

d

LI

(c) pay all premiums respecting such insurance, and deliver all policies to BDC if required;

(d) upon request, immediately assign, transfer and deliver over to BDC each and every policy or policies of
insurance and all receipts pertaining to same;

(e) on the happening of any loss or damage to the Lands, immediately notify and furnish to BDC. at your
expense, all necessary proofs and do all necessary acts to enable BDC to obtain payment of any
insurance monies otherwise payable to you, but nothing shall limit BDC'S right to submit to the insurer a
proof of loss on its own behalf; and

(f) authorize and direct the insurer under any required policy of insurance to include BDC as loss payee on
any policy of insurance and on any cheque or draft which may be issued respecting a claim settlement
under and by virtue of such insurance, and the production by us to any insurer of a certified copy of this
mortgage shall be its complete authority for so doing.

If you fail to maintain insurance as required. BDC may. but shall not be obliged to, maintain or effect such
insurance coverage, or so much insurance coverage as BDC considers necessary for the protection of BDC's
interest. If proceeds of any required insurance become payable, BDC may, in its absolute discretion, hold such
funds as security for the Secured Obligations, apply the proceeds to the Secured Obligations as BDC sees fit or
release any insurance proceeds to you to repair, replace or rebuild, but any release of insurance proceeds to you
shall not operate as a payment on account of the Secured Obligations or in any way affect this mortgage or the
charges created hereby. To ensure that we may apply such insurance monies in the manner herein
contemplated, you also assign and release to us all of your rights to receive the insurance monies and expressly

Mortgage - Saskatchewan
Rev. April 4,2002 Page 7

c
n  rs ri

J  -j o



J

I

waive all your rights and benefits under The Insurance Act and The Fire Prevention (Metropolis) Act 1774 each as
amended or replaced from time to time.

'  I
taJ 13. ENVIFtOiSllVlENTAL MATTERS

\  13.1 DGfinitions

For the purposes of this article 13:

I  (a) "Environmental/Hazardous Materials Claims" means enforcement or other governmental or regulatory
tali actions, agreements or orders threatened, instituted or completed pursuant to any

Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws, together with claims made or threatened by any third party
against you or in respect of the Lands relating to the environment, health, safety, any Wastes/Hazardous

j  Materials or any Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws;

(b) 'Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws" means laws, by-laws, rules, ordinances, regulations,
j  notices, approvals, orders, licenses, permits, standards, guidelines and policies from lime to time of an
^  Environmental Authority relating to the environment, health, safety or any Wastes/Hazardous Materials;

(c) "Hazardous Materials" means wastes, materials and substances the storage, manufacture, disposal.
'  treatment, generation, use or transport of which is prohibited, controlled or licensed under any

UJ Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws, or the remediation or release of which into the environment is

likely, immediately or in the future, to cause harm or degradation to any of the Lands or the environment,
including contaminants, pollutants, corrosive substances, toxic substances, special wastes, substances
deleterious to fish or wildlife, explosives, radioactive materials, asbestos, urea formaldehyde, and
compounds known as chlorobiphenyls.

(d) "Environmental Authority" means any level of government or other authorized agency relating to the
environment, health, safety or any Hazardous Materials with appropriate jurisdiction over the Lands or
your activities or both, as the case may be: and

(e) "Environmental Risks" means any risk of liability, culpability or obligation of remediation under
Environmental/Hazardous fyiaterials Laws applicable to either or both the Lands or yourself.

I
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13,2 Environmental Representations

You represent, warrant, covenant and promise to BDC that;

:  (a) The Lands are free of any and all Environmental Risks and you are not aware of any Environmental Risks
^  which have not been disclosed to BDC and approved by BDC in writing.

(b) The Lands do not contain any Hazardous Materials whatsoever, and no Hazardous Materials have ever
been released into the environment as a result of any of the activities conducted on the Lands.

(c) You possess and will maintain alt environmental licenses, permits and other approvals from
Environmental Authority as may be necessany for the continued conduct of your business. All operations
on the Lands are and will be kept in compliance with all such environmental licenses, permits and other
approvals, and Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws and, all future usage of the Lands will be limited
to environmentally acceptable activities in compliance with all Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws,
it being agreed v/ithout limiting the generality of the above, you will not install in, on or under the Lands
storage tanks for any Hazardous Materials without BDC's prior written consent and only upon full
compliance with BDC'S requirements and the standards and requirements of all boards and
governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Lands and your activities and assets.

(d) You will advise BDC immediately upon becoming aware of any Environmental Risks.
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{e) There are no claims, actions, investigations, liens, prosecutions, notices, work orders, control orders, stop
orders or directives, written or oral ("Orders") of any kind issued or pending by any Environmental
Authority with respect to any of your activities, or any of your property, past or present, as they relate to
any and alt Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws; and there are no circumstances, current or
contemplated, which might give rise to such Orders and you will provide BDG with copies of all
communications from or to any person relating to Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws and any
Environmental/Hazardous Materials Claims in connection with the Lands that become known to you, and
all environmental studies or assessments prepared for you, and you consent to BDG contacting and
making enquiries of environmental officials or assessors.

(f) You have an environmental emergency response plan and all your officers and employees are familiar
with that plan and their duties under it. You will ensure your staff are trained as required for such purpose
and for all purposes relating to the use, handling and storage of Hazardous Materials.

(g) You will from time to time and at any time required by BOG, provide evidence satisfactory to BDG that you
and the Lands are compliant with ail Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws, and. if BDG considers it
necessary, cause such inspections, reports and audits and provide the results thereof to BOG as it may
require. You shall pay, the entire cost of any such inspections, reports and audits of the Lands, and such
inspections, reports and audits shall be performed by a duly licensed engineer acceptable to BDG. The
scope of any environmental audit shall be at BDC's sole discretion, and the auditor performing or
conducting the environmental audit shall be granted full access to the Lands to perform or conduct any
testing or investigation deemed necessary by the auditor in the auditor's sole discretion.

13.3 Environmental Repair

^  You will, at your sole cost and expense, comply, and cause all of your tenants, agents and invitees to comply,
with all Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws and with all permits and licenses issued by any Environmental
Authority with respect to the storage, discharge and removal of Hazardous Materials, and you shall pay.

^  immediately when due, the cost of removal of any such Hazardous Materials. You shall pay the cost of any
improvements necessary to deal with such Hazardous Materials and shall keep the Lands free and clear of any
lien imposed pursuant to any law including all Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws. If you fail to do so. BDG
may, after notice to you and the expiration of the earlier of:

(a) any applicable cure period under this mortgage charge; or

(b) the cure period under the applicable law, rule, regulation or order;

without any responsibility or liability in connection herewith, enter upon the Lands and do the work required and
the cost thereof will be added to the Secured Obligations and become immediately due and payable, or
alternatively at the option of BDG, may declare this mortgage to be In default.

13.4 Environmental Assessments and Audits

It is expressly understood that BDG has no responsibility to monitor your compliance or to take any action in the
event of non-compliance. You will provide to BDG copies of any and all environmental reports or studies in
respect of the Lands that you receive or possess from time to time.

13.5 Exclusion of Liability

No action taken by BOG in doing remedial work or repairs or in conducting assessments, audits, appraisals or
inspections as provided in this Article shall constitute BDG as a mortgagee in possession and BDG by taking any
such action shall not be considered to have care, management or control of the Lands: it being expressly
understood that you have complete responsibility to ensure compliance with all Environmentaf/Hazardous
Materials Laws and BDC'S right to monitor such compliance shall not be construed as a responsibility to ensure
such compliance.
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13.6 Indemnity

:  You hereby indemnify BDC, Its officers, directors, employees, agents, shareholders and members, and agrees to
«  hold each of them harmless, from and against any and all losses, liabilities, damages, costs, demands, expenses

and claims of any and every kind whatsoever relating to any breach or non-compliance with
I  Environmental/Hazardous Materials Lav/s by yourself or by your directors, officers, servants, agents, tenants or
'  invitees, or relating to any Hazardous Materials handled, placed, held, located or disposed of on or in the Lands

or related to any claims or proceedings (whether by civil action or related to any enforcement or recovery action
under statute or regulation) for injury or damage to person or property from or relating directly or indirectly to the

I  use. presence, handling, disposal, escape or release of any Hazardous Materials on or from the Lands. Such
 U' Indemnity includes, without limitation, indemnity against;

^  (a) all costs (including legal expenses on a solicitor and his own client basis) of defending, counterclaiming
i  and/or claiming against you or any third parties in respect of any such action or matter;

(b) all costs of every kind and nature whatsoever incurred by BDC directly in order, either, to comply with
Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws or to remediate the Lands to comply with
Environmental/Hazardous Materials Laws; and

(c) any and all costs, liabilities, claims or damages arising out of a settlement of any action entered into by
BDC v^ith or without your consent, which at any time or from time to time may be paid, incurred or
asserted against any of the parties indemnified hereby for, with respect to, or as a direct or indirect result
of the presence on or under, or the escape, seepage, leakage, spillage, discharge, emission or release
from, the Lands or into or upon any land, the atmosphere, or any water course, body of water or wetland,
of any Hazardous Materials.

This indemnity shall survive foreclosure or judicial sale (including by "Rice Order") of the Lands and any other
■  exercise of BDC's rights hereunder or under any security collateral hereto.
i

^  14. POWERS AND PROTECTIVE DISBURSEMENTS

I  j BDC and any of its agents, may at such time and from time to time, as BDC deems necessary and without the
U  concurrence of any person, enter upon any part of the Lands and make arrangements for completing the

construction, repairing or putting in of improvements, or for inspecting, appraising, taking care of leasing,
collecting the rents of. and generally managing any or all of your interest, as BDC may deem expedient, and BDC
may. without notifying you. purchase any material or sen/ice and make any payments to preserve, protect or
enhance the Lands or to remedy any default by you in respect of any promise or covenant contained in this
mortgage and, without restricting the generality of the foregoing, BDC may:

j
^  (a) retire fees, expenses and borrowings of a receiver;

(b) acquire insurance against direct damage, liability to third parties or any other risk associated with the
'  Lands on such terms and at such limits as BDC may find advisable;

(c) discharge any lien, mortgage or encumbrance which, in the opinion of BDC, has priority over this
I  mortgage;

lnnl

(d) improve the title of BDC or of any purchaser of the Lands who purchases them through a sale having the
effect of foreclosing your interest in the Lands or who purchases them from BDC after your interest in the

I  Lands has been foreclosed;

(e) discharge any debt or obligation which BDC may find should be discharged in order to better market, sell
or protect the Lands;
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(f) cause the Lands to be inspected, investigated (including environmental audits), appraised, surveyed or
subdivided:

(g) cause your books and records to be audited and the financial health of your business lo be investigated;

(h) retire the fees, commissions or expenses of any agent retained by BDC to market the Lands;

(j) retire all costs and expenses, including legal fees on a solicitor and client basis, in relation to the
preparation, execution and delivery of this mortgage and any amendment or discharge of it, in relation to
the collection of any amount due hereunder and in relation to the enforcement of any remedy including
the actual fees and expenses of solicitors who act on behalf of BDC in proceedings for the appointment of
a receiver, foreclosure, foreclosure and sale, judicial sale, sale by power of sate or possession of the
Lands;

(j) pay the fees and expenses of a trustee in Bankruptcy of the Borrower, should BDC determine to make
itself liable for such;

(k) retire all costs and expenses including fees on a solicitor and client basis in respect of any suit concerning
this mortgage, any lands that may be mortgaged hereunder. BDC'S title to the Lands, or the priority of
BDC'S interest in the Lands;

i
uJ (I) cause any environmental rehabilitation, investigation, removal or repair necessary to protect, preserve or

remediate the Lands; and

ij' (m) contact and make inquiries of the your lessors/lessees, as well as environmental officials, assessors,
*  municipal authorities and any taxing body.

A purchase or payment mentioned in this clause is referred to in this mortgage as a "protective disbursement".
^  BDC is not obliged to make any protective disbursement. All protective disbursements, including solicitor and

client fees and expenses upon foreclosure and sale, are secured by this mortgage and are payable out of the
proceeds of the exercise of any remedy notwithstanding that EDO's liability for the protective disbursement arises

j  after or is discharged after a sale of the mortgaged property.

15. EVENTS OF DEFAULT

J

^  The occurrence of any of the following events will constitute an Event of Default;

(a) if you fail, or threaten to fail, to observe or perform any covenant, agreement, condition or obligation in
i  BDC'S favour, whether or not herein contained, including your failure to pay or perform any of the
^  Secured Obligations when due;

(b) if any representation, warranty or statement made to BDC either by you or on your behalf and whether or
not contained herein or elsewhere, is not or ceases to be true;

(c) if you. or any other person (the "obligant") liable, in respect of any of the Secured Obligations, ceases or
i  threatens to cease to carry on business, as the case may be, or any material part thereof or to sell all or
^  substantially all of your or the obligant's assets, or becomes insolvent or files a proposal, a notice of

intention to file a proposal, or an assignment for the benefit of creditors under applicable bankruptcy or
similar legislation, or if a petition is filed, an order Is made, a resolution is passed, or any other step is

i  taken for your, or the obligant's. bankruptcy, liquidation, dissolution, winding-up or reorganization or for
bJ any arrangement or composition of debts or any protection from your or the obligant's creditors

(d) if you are in default under any other charge of the Lands or under any indebtedness other than Secured
I  Obligations, or you permit the acceleration of any indebtedness (other than Secured Obligations) owed by
^  you to any creditor other than BDC;

^  Mortgage - Saskatchewan
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(e) if a Receiver, trustee or similar officiaf of any of your property is appointed:

(f) if you are a corporation and any member or shareholder commences an action against you or gives
notice of dissent to you in accordance with the provisions of any applicable legislation;

(g) the holder of any other charge on, or claim against, any of the Lands does anything to enforce or realize
on such charge or claim, or any execution, sequestration, or other process becomes enforceable against
you. or if a distress, seizure or similar process is levied upon or exercised against any of the Lands;

(h) if the lessor under any lease to you of any of the Lands takes any step to or threatens to terminate such
or otherwise exercise any of its remedies under such lease as a result of any default or alleged default by
you under such lease;

(i) if any of the Lands are destroyed, substantially damaged, expropriated, or designated or considered for
designation as a contaminated site:

(j) if any permit, licence, certification, quota or order granted to or held by you is cancelled, reduced or
revoked, or any order against you is enforced, with the effect of preventing your business from being
carried on for more than five days or materially adversely changing the condition (financial or otherwise)
of your business;

(k) if you sell, transfer, convey, lease, assign, release, surrender or otherwise disposes of or parts with
possession of any of the Lands or agrees to do so;

(I) if you are in arrears of payment to any taxing authority;

(m) if you cause or allow Hazardous Materials to be brought upon the Lands or incorporated into any of your
assets without BDC'S prior consent, or if you cause, permit or fail to remedy any environmental
contamination upon, in or under the Lands or fails to comply with any abatement or remediation order
given by a responsible authority;

(n) if you use any of the monies advanced hereunder for any purpose other than as declared to and agreed
upon by BDC;

(o) if BDC deems itself insecure or believes that the assets secured hereby are in danger of loss, damage or
misuse, or

(p) if there is a deemed Event of Default pursuant to this mortgage.

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, at the option of BDC. without notice to you, BDC's security shall
immediately become enforceable and all of the money hereby secured remaining unpaid shall become due and
payable. If. in respect of a default, BDC chooses not to exercise the option hereby given to it or waives its right to
call in the balance of the loan, such does not constitute a waiver of BDC'S rights under this clause in respect of
any other default.

16. NOTICE RESPECTING DEFAULT AND ENFORCEMENT

BDC may exercise any remedy or remedies immediately upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, without
making a demand for payment or giving time for payment or notifying you of BDC'S intention to exercise the
remedy or remedies. If BDC chooses to notify you of such an intention or to demand payment, it shall not thereby
be taken to have waived its rights under this clause or to have subjected itself to a duty to give reasonable notice
to you respecting BDC'S intention or to give you reasonable time for payment.
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17. EMFORCEMENT

17.1 Enforcement. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default BDC may declare any or all of the Secured
Obligations immediately due and payable, and BDC's security will immediately become enforceable. To enforce
arid realize on the charges created hereby we may take (or refrain from taking) any action permitted by law or in
equity as we may deem expedient, including any of the following;

(a) enter upon, take possession of, occupy, use. preserve and protect the Lands, with power to exclude you.
your agents and employees therefrom and may inspect, use. operate, manage, lease and control the
Lands and conduct the business thereof;

(b) maintain, repair, replace and complete any development of the Lands in accordance with existing plans or
otherwise as BDC. in its our absolute discretion, may determine;

(c) collect all Assigned Rents and other assets BDC holds as security for the Secured Obligations;

'  (d) sell, lease or otherwise dispose of all or part of the Lands and other assets of yours over which BDC
;J holds security, whether by public or private sale or lease or otherwise, in such manner, at such price as

can be reasonably obtained and on such terms as to credit and with such conditions as BDC may
consider reasonable, provided that if any sale, lease or other disposition is on credit you will not be

!  entitled to be credited with the proceeds of any such sale, lease or other disposition until the monies are
iJ actually received. No purchaser shall be bound to inquire into the legality or propriety of any such sale or

be affected by notice of any irregularity or impropriety. BDC may take sale proceedings hereunder even If
I  other mortgage proceedings have been taken or are pending;

^  (e) exercise any or all of your rights and remedies in respect of the Lands;

i  (f) as your agent, appoint by instrument a Receiver of the Lands and of all your properties, assets, effects
^  and undertakings related to or arising out of the Lands with or without bond as BDC may determine, and

in BDC's absolute discretion and from time to time, remove any Receiver so appointed and appoint
another in its stead, but BDC shall be under no liability for the remuneration, acts or omissions of the

;  Receiver, its employees and agents;
u

(g) exercise any other rights and remedies under this mortgage; or

^  (h) exercise any other right and power a Receiver could exercise.

BDC shall not be liable for any debts BDC contracts during enforcement of this mortgage, for damages to persons
{  or property, salaries or non-fulfillment of contracts during any period when BDC takes any action referred to
^  above, for any misconduct, negligence or misfeasance by us. or any employee or agent of ours, and neither the

provisions of this mortgage nor the exercise of any of the powers provided in this mortgage shall render us a
I  mortgagee in possession, and we shall not be accountable except for the monies we actually receive. You waive
^  any provision of law which may be waived which imposes any greater obligations on us than described above.

17.2 Receiver. A Receiver appointed pursuant to this mortgage shall be your agent and not ours. and. to the
I  extent permitted by law or its appointment, shall, in our discretion, have all of our rights and powers (including
^  those under this mortgage), including the power to:

(a) take possession of and enter upon the Lands;

(
U  (b) sell or lease or concur in selling or leasing of the Lands;

(c) make any arrangement or compromise which it shall think expedient;
[

J
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(d) carry or. or concur in the carrying on of, any development then in progress or othen-vise contemplated by

you with respect to the Lands or your business relating to the Lands and for such purposes from time to
I  time to borrow money either secured or unsecured, and if secured by security on the whole or any part of
u  the Lands, such security may rank before or pari passu with or behind this mortgage; and

(e) commence, continue or defend proceedings in the name of the Receiver or in your name, which the
Receiver considers necessary or advisable for the proper protection of the whole or any portion of the
Lands or the enforcement of this mortgage

j  We may from time to time fix the remuneration of every such Receiver and direct the payment thereof out of the
^  proceeds of the receivership. The rights and powers conferred by this paragraph are in addition and not in

substitution for any right we may from time to time possess.

'  ! 17.3 ApplicatioF^ of Proceeds, Any money from time to time received by the Receiver shall, subject to the
^  claims of creditors, if any. which are secured by any Charges ranking in priority to this mortgage, be paid, subject

to our direction otherwise, by it. Firstly, in payment of all costs, charges and expenses of and incidental to the
appointment of the Receiver and the exercise by it of all or any of the powers aforesaid including the reasonable
remuneration of the Receiver and all amounts properly payable by It, Secondly, in or tov*/ards payment to us of
the amounts comprised in the Secured Obligations in such manner and order as we shall, in our absolute
discretion, deem advisable and, Thirdly, any surplus shall be paid to you provided that in the event any party
claims a charge against all or a portion of the surplus, the Receiver shall make such disposition of all or any
portion of the surplus as the Receiver deems appropriate in the circumstances.

17.4 Appointment of Attorney. You irrevocably appoint us or the Receiver, as the case may be, with full
power of substitution, as your attorney for and in your name to do everything necessary or incidental to the
exercise of any or all other powers conferred on us or the Receiver, as the case may be, pursuant to this
mortgage.

18. LIABILITY RESPECTING ENFORCEMENT OF SECURITY

Once EDO has determined to exercise a remedy or remedies, it may deal with and dispose of the Lands as EDO
may see fit and neither you nor those claiming by, though from or under you shall maintain any action, advance
any claim or rely on any set-off by reason of the order of enforcement of remedies against parts of the Lands, the
abandonment or discharge of the Lands or part of them. EDO's failure to maintain or insure the Lands. EDO'S
failure to secure an adequate price for the Lands or anything relating to the manner in which the Lands are dealt
with or disposed of (in this clause "EDO" includes the receiver).

Further, EDO may, in its sole discretion, realize on various securities (including this mortgage) and any parts
thereof in any order that EDO considers advisable and no realization or exercise by EDO of any power or right
under this mortgage or other security shall in any way prejudice any further realization or exercise until all
Secured Obligations are satisfied. All rights and remedies available to BDC are cumulative and not restrictive of
remedies at law and in equity and by statute.

19. RELEASES

You are and vyill not be released from any of your obligations to pay the Secured Obligations nor is any security
held to secure the Secured Obligations released by reason of BDC releasing any person who may be obligated to
pay the Secured Obligations or any part of them, or by reason of BDC releasing any security held to secure
payment of the Secured Obiigations. BDC is only accountable for money actually received by it in consideration of
the release of any person or security.

20. INDULGENCES

BDC may grant e.xtensions of time and other indulgences, take and give up security, accept compositions,
compromise, make settlements, grant releases and discharges, refrain from registering or maintaining registration
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of charges, and othenwise deal with you, any other obligant, your other creditors, sureties and other persons and
with the Lands and other security, all as BDC sees fit in its absolute discretion and without prejudice to your
liability or BDC's rights or remedies. You agree that you will not be released nor your liability in any v^ay reduced
because BDC has done, not done, or concurred in doing or not doing, anything v^hereby a surety would or might
be released in whole or in part.

21. SASKATCHEWAN LAW

Where land or leasehold land or both situate in the Province of Saskatchewan are, by a corporation, granted as
security by this mortgage;

(a) that The Land Contracts (Actions) Act of Saskatchewan shall have no application to any action, as
defined in The Land Contracts (Actions) Act of Saskatchewan, respecting this mortgage, any mortgage,
charge or other security for the payment of money made, given or created by this mortgage, any
agreement or instrument which renews or extends or is collateral to this mortgage, or the rights, powers
or remedies of BDC under this mortgage or any charge created by this mortgage as BDC is specifically
exempted from the operation of that Act;

(b) that The Limitation of Civil Rights Act of Saskatchewan shall have no application to this mortgage, any
mortgage, charge or other security for the payment of money made, given or created by this mortgage,
any agreement or instrument which renews or extends or is collateral to this mortgage, or the rights,
powers or remedies of BDC under this mortgage or any mortgage or charge created by this mortgage;
and

(c) that if it is an agricultural corporation, as defined in The Saskatchewan Fam? Security Act, it has received
independent legal advice prior to the execution of this mortgage, and agrees that the provisions of Part IV
of The Saskatchewan Farm Security Act, other than Section 46. shall not apply to you.

22. ASSIGNS

This mortgage Is binding upon you and your successors, assigns, heirs, executors and administrators and Is
granted to and for the benefit of BDC. its successors and its assigns.

23. BORROWER AUTHORITY

You hereby represent and warrant to BDC that you are duly and appropriately authorized and empowered to
grant this mortgage, incur the Secured Obligations and observe, adhere to and perform (as the case may be) all
of your obligations, promises and covenants under this mortgage without either breach or default under any other
obligation (whether imposed by law or by contract) or promise made by you or any further consent or approval of
any person, party, authority or regulator; and. further, that this mortgage constitutes a valid and binding obligation
on your part to BDC.

24. GENDER AND NUMBER

The use in this mortgage of the neuter gender includes the masculine and the feminine; the use of the plural
includes the singular; the use of the singular includes the plural.
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25. FURTHER ASSURANCES

1  You shall execute and deliver to BDC upon request any further or additional documentation which BDC in its sole
U  discretion deems necessary to give full effect to this mortgage and each and every provision contained in this

mortgage.

*he Borrower has properly executed and sealed this mortgage on the day and year stated on the first page.

101285461 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.
\

^  i r
Per\v. . - 'v. i A V

j  I Name: Kuldeep Maan . \
I  Title: President & SecretafyyTreasurer
^  (c/s)

have the authority to bind the Borrower.
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This is Exhibit "H" referred to in the Affidavit of
Hardeep Singh sworn before me on the
day of November, 2018.
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GENERAL SECURITY AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT ciated^^ 3l) . 2015.
FROM:

101285461 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.

(the "Borrower")

TO:

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT BANK OF CANADA, incorporated by Special Act of ttie Parliament
of Canada, and having its head office in Montreal, Quebec, with a branch at 200, 10665 Jasper
Avenue, Edmonton. Alberta T5J 389

("BDC")

1. SECURITY INTEREST
(You, as the Borrower, v/ill grant to BDC a charge, referred to as a security interest, over all personal properly now held or in the future
held or acquired by you. You wil! also grant a charge, referred to as a floating charge, over your complete undertaking and real property
interests. These charges are the security BDC will hold in consideration of lending you funds or providing the credit facility to you )

1.1 For consideration the Borrower:

(a) mortgages and charges as a fixed and specific charge, and assigns and transfers to BDC, and grants
to BDC a general and continuing security Interest in all of the Borrower's present and after acquired
personal property including, without limitation:

(i) all office, trade, manufacturing and all other equipment and all goods, including, without
limitation, machinery, tools, fixtures, computers, furniture, furnishings, chattels, motor vehicles
and other tangible personal property that is not Inventory, and ail parts, components,
attachments, accessories, accessions, replacements, substitutions, additions and
improvements to any of the above (all of which is collectively called the "Equipment");

(ii) all inventory, including, without limitation, goods acquired or held for sale or lease or furnished
or to be furnished under contracts of rental or service, all raw materials, work in process,
finished goods, returned goods, repossessed goods, all livestock and their young after
conception, all crops and timber, and all packaging materials, supplies and containers relating
to or used or consumed in connection with any of the foregoing (all of which is collectively
called the "Inventory");

(iii) all debts, accounts, claims, demands, monies and choses in action vyhich now are, or vyhich
may at any time be, due or owing to or owned by the Borrower and all books, records,
documents, papers and electronically recorded data recording, evidencing or relating to the
debts, accounts, claims, demands, monies and choses in action (all of which is collectively
called the "Accounts");

(iv) all documents of title, chattel paper, instruments, securities and money, and all other personal
property, of the Borrower that is not Equipment, Inventony or Accounts;

{E6917213.DOCX; i}Generai Security Agreement - Western
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(v) all patents, trade-marks, copyrights, industrial designs, plant breeder's rights, integrated circuit
topographies, trade-names, goodwill, confidential information, trade secrets and know-how,
including without limitation, environmental technology and bio-technology, software and any
registrations and applications for registration of the foregoing and all other intellectual and
industrial property of the Borrower (all of which is hereinafter collectively called the "Intellectual
Property");

(vi) all the Borrower's contractual rights, licenses and all other choses in action of every kind which
now are. or which may at any time be due or ov^ing to or owned by the Borrower, and all other
intangible property of the Borrower, that is not Accounts, chattel paper, instruments, documents
of title. Intellectual Property, securities or money;

(vii) the personal property described in Schedule A attached to this Security Agreement;

(viii) all proceeds of every nature and kind arising from the personal property referred to in this
Security Agreement;

(b) grants to BDC a general and continuing security interest and charges by way of a floating charge:

(i) all of the Borrower's right, title and interest in all its present and after acquired real, im.movable
and leasehold property, and all easements, rights-of-way, privileges, benefits, licences,
improvements and rights v^/hether connected with or appurtenant to this property or separately
ov/ned or held, including all structures, plant and other fixtures and including all mineral claims,
mineral rights and leases, all oil, gas and hydrocarbon rights and interests {all of v;hich is
collectively called the "Real Property") and excluding the personal property described in Clause
1.1(a); and

(ii) all of the undertaking and assets of the Borrower, of every nature or kind and wherever situate,
v^hether presently owned or hereafter acquired, and all their proceeds, other than its assets and
undertakings that are otherwise validly and effectively subject to the charges and security
interests in favour of BDC created pursuant to this Clause 1.1.

1.2 The security interests, mortgages, transfers, assignments, charges, grants and conveyances created
pursuant to Clause 1.1 shall be collectively called the "Security Interests", and the property subject to the
Security Interests and all property, assets and undertaking charged, assigned or transferred or secured by
any instruments supplemental to or in implementation of this Security Agreement are collectively called the
"Collateral".

13 The schedules, including definitions, form part of this Security Agreement.

2. EXCEPTIONS
(With few excepiions, all of your personal property and real property interests aie subject to the security interests and charges described
in Clause 1.1. Only the last day of any lease term and possibly your consunier goods are excepted. Corporations do not hold
consumer goods j

2.1 The last day of the term created by any lease or agreement is excepted out of any charge or the Security
Interests but the Borrower shall stand possessed of the reversion and shall remain upon trust to assign and
dispose of it to any third party as BDC shall direct.

2.2 All the Borrower's consumer goods are excepted out of the Security Interests: provided that for the purposes
of Collateral in the Yukon the Security Interests shall include Special Consumer Goods as that term is
defined in the Personal Property Security Act (Yukon); provided further that for the purposes of Collateral in
Saskatchewan the Security Interests shall include consumer goods of the Borrower.
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3. ATTACHIVIENT
(Value or consideration has flov;ed fcet.veen you and BDC and the Security Interests in your persona! property are complete once you

^  sign this Security Agreement.)

^  The Borrower agrees that the Security interests attach upon the signing of this Security Agreement (or in the
i  case of after acquired property, upon the date of acquisition), that value has been given, and that the
^  Borrower has (or in the case of after acquired property, will have upon the date of acquisition) rights in the

Collateral and the Borrower confirms that there has been no agreement between the Borrower and BDC to
^  postpone the time for attachment of the Security Interests and that it is the Borrower's understanding that

BDC intends the Security Interests to attach at the same time.

4. PURCHASE MONEY SECURITY INTEREST
'  i (To the extent tiiat BDC helps you acquire an interest in any personal property, you grant a special security interest to BDC over that
^  personal property. The special security interest is known as a "Purchase Money Security interest".)

The Borrower acknowledges and agrees that the Security Interests constitute and are intended to create
Purchase Money Security Interests in Collateral to the extent that monies advanced by BDC, including all
future advances and re-advances, are used or are to be used, in whole or in part, to purchase or othenwise
to acquire rights in Collateral.

U

u

5. OBLIGATIONS SECURED
(The Security Interests and charges you have granted to BDC secure all indebtedness and alt obligations to BDC.)

I  This Security Agreement is in addition to and not in substitution for any other security interest or charge now
iJ or in the future held by BDC from the Borrower or from any other person and shall be general and

continuing security for the payment and performance of all indebtedness, liabilities and obligations of the
Borrower to BDC (including Interest thereon), whether incurred prior to, at the time of or after the signing of
this Security Agreement including extensions and renewals, and all other liabilities of the Borrower to BDC,
present and future, absolute or contingent, joint or several, direct or indirect, matured or not, extended or
renewed, wherever and however incurred, including all advances on current or running account, future
advances and re-advances of any loans or credit by BDC and the Borrower's obligation and liability under
any contract or guarantee now or in the future in existence whereby the Borrower guarantees payment of
the debts, liabilities and/or obligations of a third party to BDC, and for the performance of all obligations of
the Borrower to BDC. whether or not contained in this Security Agreement (all of which Indebtedness,
liabilities and obligations are collectively called the ' Obligations").

6. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
(You State that you are able to legally grant this Security Agreement to BDC. it will be binding and the Collateral is not subject to any
encumbrances that have not been approved by BDC You own the Collateral and nothing prevents you from granting the Security
Interests and charges in favour of BDC BDC will rely on all of the following representations and warranties.)

6.1 The Borrower represents and warrants to BDC that:

(a) if a corporation, it is a corporation incorporated and organized and validly existing and In good
standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation; it has the corporate power to own or
lease its property and to carry on the business conducted by it; it is qualified as a corporation to carry
on the business conducted by it and to own or lease its property and is in good standing under the
laws of each jurisdiction in which the nature of its business or the property owned or leased by it

j  makes such qualification necessary; and the execution, delivery and performance of this Security
^  Agreement are within its corporate powers, have been authorized and do not contravene, violate or

conflict with any law or the terms and provisions of its constating documents or its by-laws or any
shareholders agreement or any other agreement, indenture or undertaking to v^hich the Borrower is a

;  party or by vv-hich it is bound;
U

(b) if it is a corporation, its name as set forth on page 1 of this Security Agreement is its full, true and
correct name as stated in its constating documents and if such name is in English, it does not have or

^  use a French language form of its name or a combined English language and French language form
of its name and vice versa, and the Borrower has provided a written memorandum to BDC accurately
setting forth all prior names under which the Borrower has operated;

Uii
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u
(c) if it is a partnership, its name as set forth on page 1 is its full, true and correct, and where required or

voluntarily registered its registered, name; it is a partnership validly created and organized and validly
existing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its creation; it has the power to carry on the business
conducted by it; it is qualified as a partnership to carry on the business conducted by it and is in good

ij standing under the laws of each jurisdiction in which the nature of its business makes such
qualification necessary; and the execution, delivery and performance of this Security Agreement are
within Its powers, have been authorized, and do not contravene, violate or conflict with any law or the
terms of its partnership agreement or any other agreement, indenture or undertaking to which the
Borrower is a party or by which it is bound, and a complete list of the names, addresses and (if
individuals) the dates of birth of the partners of the partnership are set forth on a Schedule attached to
this Security Agreement;

I

^  (d) if the Borrower is an individual, that individual's full name and address as set forth on page 1 of this
Security Agreement are the individual's full and correct name and address and the individual's date of

I  birth as described on the individual's birth certificate a true copy of v^hich has been provided to BDC
^  or, if no birth certificate issued from any jurisdiction in Canada exists, as described on the documents

provided to BDC is the individual's correct birth date;

^  (e) there is no litigation or governmental proceedings commenced or pending against or affecting the
^  Collateral or the Borrower, in which a decision adverse to the Borrower would constitute or result in a

material adverse change in the business, operations, properties or assets or in the condition, financial
1  or otherwise, of the Borrower; and the Borrower agrees to promptly notify BDC of any such future
J  litigation or governmental proceeding;

I  !

1  j

y

(0 it does not have any information or knowledge of any facts relating to its business, operations,
property or assets or to its condition, financial or otherwise, which it has not disclosed to BDC in
writing and which, if known to BDC, might reasonably be expected to deter BDC from extending credit
or advancing funds to the Borrower;

(g) it has good title and lawfully owns and possesses all presently held Collateral, free from all security
interests, charges, encumbrances, liens and claims, save only the Security Interests and the charges
or security interests consented to in writing by BDC, and it has not granted any licenses in or of its
intellectual Property other than as disclosed and consented to by BDC:

(h) to the extent that any of the Collateral includes serial numbered goods and motor vehicles which
f  require serial number registration by virtue of the Act and its regulations including motor vehicles.
^  trailers, manufactured homes, mobile homes, boats, outboard motors for boats or aircraft, the

Borrower has given the full and correct serial numbers and any Ministry of Transport designation
marks or other relevant licensing authority marks of all such Collateral to BDC;

tai (i) the Collateral Is and/or will be located at the place(s) described in Schedule A and will not be removed
from such location(s) Vvfithout the prior written consent of BDC;

y  0) t'rs Security Agreement is granted in accordance with resolutions of the directors (and of the
shareholders as applicable) of the Borrower, if the Borrower is a corporation, or, if the Borrower is a
partnership, of the partners of the Borrower, and all other requirements have been fulfilled to authorize

I  I and make the execution and delivery of this Security Agreement, and the performance of the
Borrower's obligations valid and there is no restriction contained in the constating documents of the
Borrower or in any shareholders agreement or partnership agreement which restricts the powers of
the authorized signatories of the Borrower to borrow money or give security; and

J
(k) the Borrower's place(s) of business and chief executive office are correctly described in Schedule A.
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7. COVENANTS OF THE BORROWER
(The Security Interests and the Collaterai must be protected while the Security Agreement remains in effect. These covenants are your
promises to BDC describing how BDC's Security Interests will be attended to. You wtU also covenant to maintain accurate books and
records and allow BDC's inspection. Your promises are found in the Security Agreement and Schedules.)

7.1 The BorroY/er covenants with BDC that while this Security Agreement remains in effect the Borrower will;

(a) promptly pay and satisfy the Obligations as they become due or are demanded;

(b) defend the title to the Collateral for BDC's benefit, against the claims and demands of all persons;

(c) fully and effectually maintain and ensure that the Security Interests are and continue to be valid and
effective;

(d) maintain the Collateral in good condition and repair and provide adequate storage facilities to protect
the Collateral and not permit the value of the Collateral to be impaired;

(e) observe and conform to all valid requirements of any governmental authority relative to any of the
Collateral and all covenants, terms and conditions upon or under which the Collateral Is held;

(f) promptly pay and satisfy:

(i) all taxes, assessments, rates, duties, levies, government fees, claims and dues lawfully levied,
assessed or imposed upon it or the Collateral when due. unless the Borrower shall in good faith
contest its obligations so to pay and shall furnish to BDC such security as BDC may require;

(ii) all security interests, charges, encumbrances, liens and claims v/hich rank or could rank in
priority to. or on an equal basis with, any of the Security Interests; and

(iii) ail fees from time to time chargeable by BDC arising out of any term of the commitment letter or
the Loan Agreement between BDC and the Borrower including, without limitation, inspection,
administration and returned cheque handling fees;

(g) promptly pay and satisfy all costs, charges, expenses and legal fees and disbursements (on a solicitor
and its own client basis) which may be incurred by BDC in connection with granting loans or credit to
the Borrower, including for:

(i) inspecting the Collateral;

(ii) negotiating, preparing, perfecting, registering or renewing the registration of this Security
Agreement and the Security Interests, any Financing or Financing Change Statement, any
modification or amending agreement and other documents relating to the Borrower's
obligations, whether or not relating to this Security Agreement;

(iii) complying with any disclosure requirements under the Act;

(iv) investigating title to the Collateral;

(V) taking, recovering, keeping possession and disposing of the Collateral;

(vi) maintaining the Collateral in good repair, storing the Collateral and preparing the Collateral for
disposition;

(vii) any inspection, appraisal, investigation or environmental audit of the Collateral and the cost of
any environmental rehabilitation, treatment, removal or repair necessary to protect, preserve or
remedy the Collateral including any fine or penalty BDC becomes obligated to pay by reason of
any statute, order or direction of competent authority;
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(viii) any sums BDC pays as fines, clean up costs because of contamination of or from your assets.
!  i Further you wiil indemnify BDC and its employees and agents from any liability or costs
Ui incurred Including legal defence costs. Your obligation under this paragraph continues even

after the Obligations are repaid and this Security Agreement is terminated;

j i (ix) all other actions and proceedings taken to preserve the Collateral, enforce this Security
Agreement and of any other security interest held by BDC as security for the Obligations,
protect BDC from liability in connection with the Security Interests or assist BDC in its loan and
credit granting or realization of the Security Interest, including any actions under the Bankruptcy

kj and Insolvency Act (Canada) and all remuneration of any Receiver (as defined in Article 15
hereof) or appointed pursuant to the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada);

1  ;

^  (h) at BDC's request, execute and deliver further documents and instruments and do ail acts as BDC in
its absolute discretion requires to confirm, register and perfect, and maintain the registration and
perfection of, the Security Interests;

(i) notify BDC promptly of;

1

u

(i) any change in the

iiJ

u

;  (■
1

kj

lI

 information contained in this Security Agreement relating to the Borrower, its
business or the Collateral, including, without limitation, any change of name or address
(including any change of trade name, proprietor or partner) and any change in the present
location of any Collateral;

g  (ii) the details of any material acquisition of Collateral, including the acquisition of any motor
vehicles, trailers, manufactured homes, boats or aircraft;

(iii) any material loss or damage to the Collateral;

(iv) any material default by any account debtor in the payment or other performance of its
I  obligations to the Borrower respecting any Accounts;

(v) any claims against the Borrower including claims in respect of the Intellectual Property or of any
actions taken by the Borrower to defend the registration of or the validity of or any infringement
of the Intellectual Property;

(vi) the return to or repossession by the Borrower of Collateral that was disposed of by the
Borrower: and

(vii) all additional places of business and any changes in its place(s) of business or chief executive
office;

^  (j) prevent the Collateral, other than Inventory sold, leased, or otherwise disposed of as permitted by this
Security Agreement, from being or becoming an accession to property not covered by this Security

,  • Agreement;
iMk

(k) carry on and conduct its business and undertaking in a proper and businesslike manner so as to
preserve and protect the Collateral and the earnings, income, rents, issues and profits of the

j  Collateral, including maintenance of proper and accurate books of account and records;

(I) permit BDC and its representatives, at all reasonable times, access to the Collateral including all of
I  the Borrower's property, assets and undertakings and to all its books of account and records, whether

^  at your premises or at your financial advisors, for the purpose of inspection and the taking of extracts,
and the Borrower will render all assistance necessary;

(m) permit and does consent to BDC contacting and making enquiries of the Borrowers lessors as v/ell as
assessors, municipal authorities and any taxing body;
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(nj obseive and perform all its obligations under;

(i) leases, licences, undertakings, and any other agreements to which it is a party:

(ii) any statute or regulation, federal, provincial, territorial, or municipal, to which it is subject;
I  i

(o) deliver to BDC from time to time promptly upon request:

(i) any documents of title, instruments, securities and chattel paper constituting, representing or
W  relating to the Collateral;

,  (ii) all books of account and all records, ledgers, reports, correspondence, schedules, documents.
!  statements, lists and other writings relating to the Collateral to allow BDC to inspect, audit or
^  copy them;

i  (iii) all financial statements prepared by or for the Borrower regarding the Borrower's business;

laJ
(iv) such information concerning the Collateral, the Borrower and the Borrower's business and

affairs as BDC may reasonably require;

^  (p) with respect to the Intellectual Property, take all necessary steps and initiate all necessary
proceedings, to maintain the registration or recording of the Intellectual Property, to defend the
Intellectual Property from infringement and to prevent any licensed or permitted user from doing

bj anything that may invalidate or otherwise impair the Intellectual Property:

(q) with respect to copyright forming part of the Intellectual Property, provide to BDC waivers of the moral
rights thereto executed by all contributors or authors of the copyrighted work;

(r) receive and hold in trust on behalf of and for the benefit of BDC all proceeds from the sale or other
disposition of any Collateral; and

(s) observe and perform the additional covenants and agreements set out in any schedules to this
Security Agreement, including Schedule B. if any.

7.2 Any amounts required to be paid to BDC by the Borrower under this Clause 7 shall be immediately payable
with interest at the highest rate borne by any of the Obligations until all amounts have been paid.

I

J

y  7.3 This Security Agreement shall remain in effect until it has been terminated by BDC by notice of termination
to the Borrower and all registrations relating to the Security Agreement have been discharged.

i  8. INSURANCE
'\mi (If'S your obligation to thoroughly insure the Collateral m order to protect your interests and those of BDC. You will follow the specific

requirements of the insurance coverage described in this Clause.)

u
8.1 The Borrower covenants that while this Security Agreement is in effect the Borrower shall:

(a) maintain or cause to be maintained insurance on the Collateral with a reputable insurer, of kinds, for
amounts and payable to such person or persons, all as BDC may require, and in particular maintain
insurance on the Collateral to its full insurable value against loss or damage by fire and all other risks
of damage, including an extended coverage endorsement and in the case of motor vehicles,
insurance against theft:

(b) cause the insurance policy or policies required by this Security Agreement to be assigned to BDC,
including a standard mortgage clause or a mortgage endorsement, as BDC may require;

(c) pay all premiums respecting such insurance, and deliver all policies to BDC, if required.
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8 2 If proceeds of any required insurance becomes payable, BDC may. in its absolute discretion, apply these
I  ; proceeds to the Obligations as BDC sees fit or release any insurance proceeds to the Borrower to repair,
^  replace or rebuild, but any release of insurance proceeds to the Borrower shall not operate as a payment on

account of the Obligations or in any way affect this Security Agreement or the Security Interests.

t  '■
I I 8.3 The Borrower will promptly, on the happening of loss or damage to the Collateral, notify BDC and furnish to

BDC at the Borrower's expense any necessary proof and do any necessary act to enable BDC to obtain
payment of the insurance proceeds, but nothing shall limit BDC's right to submit to the insurer a proof of loss
on its own behalf.

8.4 The Borrower authorizes and directs the insurer under any required policy of insurance to include the name
of BDC as loss payee on any policy of insurance and on any cheque or draft which may be issued

I  respecting a claim settlement under and by virtue of such insurance, and the production by BDC to any
^  insurer of a notarial or certified copy of this Security Agreement (notarized or certified by a notary public or

solicitor) shall be the insurer's complete authority for so doing.

^  8.5 If the Borrower fails to maintain insurance as required. BDC may. but shall not be obliged to. maintain or
effect such insurance coverage, or so much insurance coverage as BDC may wish to maintain.

M  9. OTHER PROHIBmONS
(You agree to not encumber your property so as to interfere with the security interests or charges granted to BDC and you will not
dispose of any of the Collateral e.xcept inventory disposed of in the ordi.nory course of your business.)

Without the prior written consent of BDC the Borrower will not:

(a) create or permit to exist any security interest in, charge, encumbrance or lien over, or claim against
!  any of its property, assets, undertakings including without limitation the Collateral which ranks or could

in any event rank in priority to or on an equal basis with any of the Security interests created by this
Security Agreement;

'  (b) grant, sell, or otherwise assign any of its chattel paper or any of the Collateral except only inventory
^  that is disposed of in accordance with Clause 10.2;

I  (c) wtiere the Borrower is a corporation:

(i) issue, purchase or redeem its shares;

;  ! (ii) change its voting control;
(ill) permit any of its shareholders to sell, transfer or dispose of its shares;

(iv) declare or pay any dividends on any of its shares; or

(v) repay or reduce any shareholders loans or other debts due to its shareholders;
I

kk (d) change its name, merge with or amalgamate with any other entity.

,  10. RESTRICTIONS ON SALE OR DISPOSAL OF COLLATERAL
^  (You Will presefve and protect all of the Collateral and not dispose of it without the consent of BDC. Any sales or other disposition will
"  result In you holding the proceeds in trust for BDC. Your responsibilities towards the Colialeral and any trust proceeds are important to

BDC.)

y  10.1 Except as provided by this Security Agreement, without BDC's prior written consent the Borrower will not:

(a) sell, iease, license or otherwise dispose of the Coilateral;

kJ (b) release, surrender or abandon possession of the Collateral; or
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(c) move or transfer the Collateral from the jurisdictions in which the Security Interests have been
perfected.

U)
10 2 So long as the Borrower is not in default under this Security Agreement the Borrower may lease, sell.

license, consign or otherwise deal with items of Inventor/ only in the ordinary course of its business and for
the purposes of carrying on its business.

Lj

10.3 Any disposition of any Collateral, excepting sales of Inventory in the ordinary course, shall result in the
Borrower holding the proceeds in trust for and on behalf of BDC and subject to BDC's exclusive direction

^  and control. Nothing restricts BDC's rights to attach, seize or otherwise enforce its Security Interests in any
Collateral sold or disposed, unless it is sold or disposed with BDC's prior written consent.

'  j 11. PERFORMANCE OF OBLIGATIONS
Li (if you do not strictly do al! those things that you have agreed to do in this Security Agreement. BDC may perform those obligations but

you will be required to pay for them.)

j
If the Borrower fails to perform its covenants and agreements under this Security Agreement, BDC may, but
shall not be obliged to, perform any or all of such covenants and agreements without prejudice to any other
rights and remedies of BDC, and any payments made and any costs, charges, expenses and legal fees and

!  disbursements (on a solicitor and its own client basis) incurred by BDC shall be immediately payable by the
^  Borrower to BDC with interest at the highest rate borne by any of the Obligations and shall be secured by

the Security Interests, until all such amounts have been paid.

I  12. ACCOUNTS
Wri (Any dealing with the Collateral that results in an account being created, or proceeds arising, is of particular importance to BDC. The

account, or proceeds, acts m substitution for the Colialeral that has been sold, usually inventor^'. You v/iil protect the account or
proceeds in favour of BDC )

w  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Security Agreement, BDC may collect, realize, sell or otherwise
deal vvith all or a portion of the Accounts in such manner, upon such terms and conditions and at any time,

,  whether before or after default, as may seem to it advisable, and without notice to the Borrower, except in
^  the case of disposition after default and then subject to the applicable provisions of the Act. if any. All forms

of payment received by the Borrower in payment of any Account, or as proceeds, shall be subject to the
Security Interests and shall be received and held in trust for BDC.

1

U  13. APPROPRIATION OF PAYMENTS
(BDC has the right to determine how funds it receives v/ill be applied in reialion to your loan facility.)

'  Any and all payments made respecting the Obligations and monies realized from any Security Interests
^  (Including monies collected In accordance with or realized on any enforcement of this Security Agreement)

may be applied to such part or parts of the Obligations as BDC sees fit, and BDC may at any time change
any appropriation as BDC sees fit.

U
14. DEFAULT

(You must comply with the payment and other obligations that you have made in favour of BDC. You must also sfnctiy satisfy the
I  covenants and agreements that you have made in this Security Agreement. Failure to do so will be considered a default and BDC will

;  1 consider its legal remedies and possibly pursue them. This Clause defines the defaults and outlines your obligations)

)
1  I

U

14.1 Unless waived by BDC, the Borrower shall be in default under this Security Agreement and shall be deemed
to be in default under all other agreements between the Borrower and BDC in any of the following events:

(a) the Borrower defaults, or threatens to default, in payments when due of any of the Obligations; or

(b) the Borrower is in breach of. or threatens to breach, any term, condition, obligation or covenant made
by it to or with BDC, or any representation or warranty of the Borrower to BDC is untrue or ceases to
be accurate, whether or not contained in this Security Agreement; or

(c) the Borrower or a guarantor of the Borrower declares itself to be insolvent or admits in v/riting its
inability to pay its debts generally as they become due. or makes an assignment for the benefit of its
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creditors, is declared Bankrupt, makes a proposal or othen.vise takes advantage of any provisions for
relief under the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada), the Companies Creditors' Arrangement Act
(Canada) or similar legislation in any jurisdiction, or makes an authorized assignment: or

(d) a receiver, manager, receiver and manager or receiver-manager of all or a part of the Collateral is
appointed; or

(e) an order is made or a resolution is passed for the winding up of the Borrower or a guarantor of the
Borrower: or

(f) tfie Borrower or a guarantor of the Borrower ceases or threatens to cease to carry on all or a
substantial part of its business or makes or threatens to make a sale of all or substantially all of its
assets; or

(g) distress or execution is levied or issued against all or a part of the Collateral; or

(h) if the Borrower is a corporation and any member or shareholder:

(i) commences an action against the Borrower; or

(ii) gives a notice of dissent to the Borrower in accordance v/ith the provisions of any governing
legislation; or

(i) if the Borrower is a corporation and its voting control changes without BDC's prior written consent; or

(j) the Borrower uses any monies advanced to it by BDC for any purpose other than as agreed upon by
BDC; or

(k) without BDC's prior written consent, the Borrower creates or permits to exist any security interest,
charge, encumbrance, lien or claim against any of the Collateral which ranks or could in any event

^  rank in priority to or on an equal basis with any of the Security Interests; or

y  claim; or

(!) the holder of any other security interest, charge, encumbrance, lien or claim against any of the
Collateral does anything to enforce or realize on such security interest, charge, encumbrance, lien or

(m) the Borrower enters into an amalgamation, a merger or other similar arrangement with any other
person without BDC's prior written consent or, if the Borrower is a corporation, it is continued or
registered in a different jurisdiction without BDC's prior v/ritten consent: or

;  1 (n) BDC in good faith and on commercially reasonable grounds believes that the prospect of payment or
y  performance of any of the Obligations is impaired or that any of the Collateral is or is about to be

placed in jeopardy or removed from the jurisdiction in which this Security Agreement has been
■  registered; or

(o) the lessor under any lease to the Borrower of any real or personal property takes any steps to or
threatens to terminate such lease or ottieavise exercise any of its remedies under such lease as a

I  result of any default by the Borrower; or
y

(p) the Borrower causes or allows hazardous materials to be brought upon any lands or premises
occupied by the Borrower or to be incorporated into any of its assets, or the Borrower causes,

^  permits, or fails to remedy any environmental contamination upon, in or under any of its lands or
assets, or fails to comply v/ith any abatement or remediation order given by a responsible authority; or

(q) any permit, license, certification, quota or order granted to or held by the Borrower is cancelled.
revoked or reduced, as the case may be, or any order against the Borrower is enforced, preventing
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the business of the Borrower from being carried on for more than 5 days.or materially adversely
changing the condition (financial or otheavise) of the Borrower's business; or

(r) if an individual, the Borrower dies or is declared incompetent by a court of competent jurisdiction.

14.2 The floating charge created by this Security Agreement over Real Property shall become a fixed charge
upon the earliest of;

(a) the occurrence of an event described in Clause 14.1(a), (b), (c). (d), (e) or (f), or

(b) BDC taking any action pursuant to Clause 15 to enforce and realize on the Security interests;

and for the better securing to BDC repayment of the Obligations the Borrower mortgages to BDC all of the
Borrower's estate and interest in the Real Property.

15. ENFORCEMENT
(If a fJefault occurs. BDC has numerous remedies and legal rights, including enforcement of the Securih/Agreement according to this
Clause. You also have rights, provided by the Personal Property Security Act and the common lav/ in your )iirisdiction.)

15.1 If the Borrower is in default under this Security Agreement BDC may declare any or all of the Obligations
v^hether or not payable on demand to become immediately due and payable and the Security interests will
immediately become enforceable. To enforce and realize on the Security Interests BDC may take any
action permitted by law or in equity as it may deem expedient and in particular, without limitation, BDC may
do any of the following:

(a) appoint by instrument a receiver, manager, receiver and manager or receiver-manager (the
"Receiver") of all or any part of the Collateral, with or without bond as BDC may determine, and in its
absolute discretion remove such Receiver and appoint another in its stead;

(b) enter upon any of the Borrower's premises at any time and take possession of the Collateral v/ith
power to exclude the Borrower, its agents and its servants, without becoming liable as a mortgagee in
possession:

(c) preserve, protect and maintain the Collateral and make such replacements and repairs and additions
to the Collateral as BDC deems advisable;

(d) dispose of all or part of the Collateral, whether by public or private sale or lease or otherwise, in such
manner, at such price as can be reasonably obtained and on such terms as to credit and with such
conditions of sale and stipulations as to title or conveyance or evidence of title or otherwise as to BDC
may seem reasonable, provided that if any sale, lease or other disposition is on credit the Borrower
Will not be entitled to be credited with the proceeds of any such sale, lease or other disposition until
the monies are actually received;

(e) register assignments of the Intellectual Property, and use, sell, assign, license or sub-license any of
the Intellectual Property; and

(f) exercise all of the rights and remedies of a secured party under the Act and any other applicable laws.

15.2 A Receiver appointed pursuant to this Security Agreement insofar as responsibility for its actions is
concerned shall be the agent of the Borrower and not of BDC and, to the extent permitted by law or to such
lesser extent permitted by its appointment, shall have all the pov;ers of BDC under this Security Agreement,
and in addition shall have power to:

(a) carry on the Borrower's business and to borrow money either secured or unsecured, and if secured
by granting a security interest on the Collateral, such security interest may rank before or on an equal
basis with or behind any of the Security Interests and if it does not so specify such security interest
shall rank in priority to the Security Interests; and
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(b) make an assignment for the benefit of the Borrower's creditors or a proposal on behalf of the
Borrower under the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada); and

(c) commence, continue or defend proceedings in the name of the Receiver or in the name of the
Borrower for the purpose of protecting, seizing, collecting, realizing or obtaining possession of or
payment for the Collateral; and

(d) make any arrangement or compromise that the Receiver deems expedient.

15 3 Subject to the claims, if any. of the creditors of the Borrower ranking in priority to this Security Agreement, ail
amounts realized from the disposition of the Collateral pursuant to this Security Agreement will be applied
as BDC, in its absolute discretion and to the full extent permitted by law, may direct as follows:

(a) in payment of all costs, charges and expenses (including legal fees and disbursements on a solicitor
and its own client basis) incurred by BDC respecting or incidental to:

(i) the exercise by BDC of the rights and powers granted to it by this Security Agreement; and

(ii) the appointment of the Receiver and the exercise by the Receiver of the powers granted to it by
this Security Agreement, including the Receiver's reasonable remuneration and all outgoings
properly payable by the Receiver;

(b) in or toward payment to BDC of all principal and other monies (except interest) due in respect of the
Obligations;

ic) in or toward payment to BDC of all interest remaining unpaid respecting the Obligations; and

(d) in payment to those parties entitled thereto under the Act.

16. GENERAL PROVISIONS PROTECTING BDC
(You have granted this Security Agreement to BDC in consideration by BDC advancing funds or providing credit or a credit facility to
you BDC v/ill not be responsible for debts or liabilities that may arise except to the extent that it agrees to be responsible or liable in this
Security Agreement. If enforcement becomes necessary. BDC xvili act in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner.)

16.1 To the full extent permitted by law, BDC shall not be liable for any debts contracted by it during enforcement
of this Security Agreement, for damages to persons or property or for salaries or non-fulfilment of contracts
during any period when BDC shall manage the Collateral upon entry or seizure, nor shall BDC be liable to
account as a mortgagee in possession or for anything except actual receipts or be liable for any loss on
realization or for any default or omission for which a mortgagee in possession may be liable. BDC shall not
be bound to do, observe or perform or to see to the observance or performance by the Borrower of any
obligations or covenants imposed upon the Borrower nor shall BDC. in the case of securities, instruments or
chaitel paper, be obliged to preserve rights against other persons, nor shall BDC be obliged to keep any of
the Collateral identifiable. To the full extent permitted by law, the Borrower waives any provision of law
permitted to be waived by it which imposes greater obligations upon BDC than described above.

16.2 Neither BDC nor any Receiver appointed by it shall be liable or accountable for any failure to seize, collect,
realize, sell or obtain payments for the Collateral nor shall they be bound to institute proceedings for the
purposes of seizing, collecting, realizing or obtaining payment or possession of the Collateral or the
presen/ing of any right of BDC. the Borrower or any other party respecting the Collateral. BDC shall also
not be liable for any misconduct, negligence, misfeasance by BDC. the Receiver or any employee or agent
of BDC or the Receiver, or for the exercise of the rights and remedies conferred upon BDC or the Receiver
by this Security Agreement.

16.3 BDC or any Receiver appointed by it may grant extensions of time and other indulgences, take and give
securities, accept compromises, grant releases and discharges, release any part of the Collateral to third
parties and otherwise deal with the debtors of the Borrower, co-obligants, guarantors and others and with
the Collateral and other securities as BDC may see fit without liability to the Borrower and without prejudice
to BDC s rights respecting the Obligations or BDC's right to hold and realize the Collateral. The Borrower
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shall not be released nor shall its liability be in any way reduced because BDC has done or concurred in the
doing of anything whereby a guarantor v/ould be released in whole or in part.

16.4 NorvVithstanding anything to the contrary in any security held by BOC for the Obligations, each part is given
as additional, concurrent and collateral security to the remainder of the security. BDC in its sole discretion
may realize upon or abstain from realizing on any security for the Obligations in any order or concurrently
with the realization under this Security Agreement whether such security is held by it at the date of this
Security Agreement or is provided at any time in the future. No realization or exercise or abstaining from
exercising of any power or right under this Security Agreement or under any other security shall prejudice
any further realization or exercise until all Obligations have been fully paid and satisfied.

16.5 Any right of BDC and any obligation of the Borrower arising under any other agreements betv/een BDC and
the Borrower shall survive the signing, registration and advancement of any money under this Security
Agreement, and no merger respecting any such right or obligation shall occur by reason of this Security
Agreement. The obligation, if any, of the Borrower to pay legal fees, a commitment fee, a standby fee or
administration fees, under the terms of BDC's commitment letter or Loan Agreement with the Borrower shall
survive the signing and registration of this Security Agreement and BDC's advancement of any money to
the Borrower and any legal fees, commitment fees, standby fees or administration fees owing by the
Borrower shall be secured by the Collateral.

15.6 In the event that BDC registers a notice of assignment of Intellectual Property the Borrower shall be
responsible for and shall Indemnify BDC against all maintenance and renewal costs in respect thereof, and
any costs of initiating or defending litigation, together with all costs, liabilities and damages related thereto.

16.7 Notwithstanding any taking of possession of the Collateral, or any other action which BDC or the Receiver
may take, the Borrower now covenants and agrees with BDC that if the money realized upon any
disposition of the Collateral is insufficient to pay and satisfy the whole of the Obligations due to BDC at the
time of such disposition, the Borrov/er shall immediately pay to BDC an amount equal to the deficiency
between the amount of the Obligations and the sum of money realized upon the disposition of the Collateral,
and the Borrower agrees that BDC may bring action against the Borrower for payment of the deficiency,
notwithstanding any defects or irregularities of BDC or the Receiver in enforcing its rights under this Security
Agreement.

17. APPOINTIVIENT OF ATTORNEY
(You appoint BDC your attorney for specific matters.)

The Borrower irrevocably appoints BDC or the Receiver, as the case may be, with full power of substitution,
as the attorney of the Borrower for and in the name of the Borrower to do, make, sign, endorse or execute
under seal or otherwise all deeds, documents, transfers, cheques, instruments, demands, assignments,
assurances or consents that the Borrower is obliged to sign, endorse or execute and generally to use the
name of the Borrower and to do ever/thing necessary or incidental to the exercise of all or any of the
powers conferred on BDC. or the Receiver, as the case may be. pursuant to this Security Agreement. This
grant and authority shall survive any mental infirmity of the Borrower subsequent to the execution hereof.

18. CONSOLIDATION
(Should you Vrnsh to redeem the Security Interest, BDC may require you to also pay other obligations to il before discharging its Security
Interests.)

For the purposes of the lav>/s of all jurisdictions in Canada, the doctrine of consolidation applies to this
Security Agreement.

19. NO OBLIGATION TO ADVANCE
^BDC determines, m the end whether any advances or further advances under the loan facility will be made.)

Neither the preparation and execution of this Security Agreement nor the perfection of the Security Interests
or the advance of any monies by BDC shall bind BDC to make any advance or loan or further advance or
loan, or extend any time for payment of any indebtedness or liability of the Borrov/er to BDC.
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20. WAIVER

(Indulgences granted by BDC should not be taken for granted.)

BDC may permit the Borrower to remedy any default without waiving the default so remedied. BDC may at
any time partially or completely waive any right, benefit or default under this Security Agreement but such
waiver shall not be a bar to or a waiver of any such right, benefit or default thereafter, or of any other right,
benefit or default under this Security Agreement. No waiver shall be effective unless it is in writing and
signed by BDC. No delay or omission on the part of BDC in exercising any right shall operate as a waiver of
such right or any other right.

21. NOTICE
(This Clause describes how the various notices referred to in this Security Agreement rnay be given.)

Notice may be given to either party by prepaid mail or delivered to the party for whom it is intended, at the
principal address of such party provided in this Security Agreement or at such other address as may be
given in writing by one party to the other, and any notice if posted shall be deemed to have been given at
the expiration of three business days after posting and if delivered, on delivery.

22. EXTENSIONS
(Your duties and responsibilities to BDC remain in place regardless of any concerns you may have about the loan facility or BDC's
actions.)

BDC may grant extensions of time and other indulgences, take and give up security, accept compositions,
compound, compromise, settle, grant releases and discharges, refrain from perfecting or maintaining
perfection of security Interests, and otherwise deal with the Borrower, the Borrower's account debtors,
sureties and others and with the Collateral and other security interests as BDC may see fit without prejudice
to the Borrower's liability or BDC's right to hold and realize on the Security Interests.

23. NO IViERGER
(Except as agreed upon in the Securily Agreement or another contract specifically discussing this point, this Security Agreement is an
independent obligation on your part)

This Security Agreement shall not create any merger or discharge of any of the Obligations, or any
assignment, transfer, guarantee, lien, contract, promissory note, bill of exchange or security interest of any
form held or which may be held by BDC now or in the future from the Borrower or from any other person.
The taking of a judgment respecting any of the Obligations will not operate as a merger of any of the
covenants contained in this Security Agreement.

24. RIGHTS CUMULATIVE
(This Security Agreement describes some rights and remedies of BDC. BDC also is entitled to rely on all other rights and remedies
available to it in law and in any other agreements it has entered into with you.)

M  BDC's rights and remedies set out in this Security Agreement, and in any other security agreement held by
BDC from the Borrower or any other person to secure payment and performance of the Obligations, are
cumulative and no right or remedy contained in this Security Agreement or any other security agreements is

,  intended to be exclusive but each VsdII be in addition to every other right or remedy now or hereafter existing
U  at law, in equity or by statute, or pursuant to any other agreement between the Borrower and BDC that may

be in effect from time to time.

J  25. ASSIGNMENT
"  (Should BDC assign or transfer or otherv^ise deal wilh this Security Agreement on its own behalf, you agree that the Security Agreement

shall remain binding and effective upon you.)

!  BDC may, without notice to the Borrov/er, at any time assign or transfer, or grant a security interest in. all or
any of the Obligations, this Security Agreement and the Security Interests. The Borrower agrees that the
assignee, transferee or secured party, as the case may be, shall have all of BDC's rights and remedies

j  under this Security Agreement and the Borrower will not assert as a defense, counterclaim, right of set-off or
y  otherv/ise any claim which it now has or may acquire in the future against BDC In respect of any claim made

or any action commenced by such assignee, transferee or secured party, as the case may be, and will pay
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the assigned Obligations to the assignee, transferee or secured party, as the case may be. as the said
Obligations become due.

26. SATISFACTION AND DISCHARGE
(Until this Security Agreement is terminated and any registrations relating to it are discharged, the Security Agreement will remain
effective even though the indebtedness to BDC may have been paid.)

Any partial payment or satisfaction of the Obligations, or any ceasing by the Borrower to be indebted to BDC
shall not be a redemption or discharge of this Security Agreement. The Borrower shall be entitled to a
release and discharge of this Security Agreement upon full payment and satisfaction of all Obligations, and
upon written request by the Borrower and. subject to applicable law, payment to BDC of an administrative
fee to be fixed by BDC and payment of all costs, charges, expenses and legal fees and disbursements (on a
solicitor and his own client basis) incurred by BDC in connection with the Obligations and such release and
discharge. The Borrower shall, subject to applicable law, pay an administrative fee, to be fixed by BDC. for
the preparation or execution of any full or partial release or discharge by BDC of any security it holds, of the
Borrower, or of any guarantor or covenantor with respect to any Obligations.

27, ENVIRONMENT

The Borrower represents and agrees that:

(a) it operates and will continue to operate in conformity with all applicable environmental laws,
regulations, standards, codes, ordinances and other requirements of any jurisdiction in which it carries
on business and will ensure its staff is trained as required for that purpose;

(b) it has an environmental emergency response plan and all officers and employees are familiar with
that plan and their duties under it;

(c) it possesses and will maintain all environmental licences, permits and other governmental approvals
as may be necessary to conduct its business and maintain the Collateral;

(d) the Collateral and Real Property are and will remain free of environmental damage or contamination;

(e) there has been no complaint, prosecution, investigation or proceeding, environmental or otherwise,
respecting the Borrower's business or assets including without limitation the Collateral;

(f) It will advise BDC immediately upon becoming aware of any environmental problems relating to its
business or the Collateral;

(g) it will provide BDC with copies of ail communications with environmental officials and all
I  environmental studies or assessments prepared for the Borrower and it consents to BDC contacting
^  and making enquiries of environmental officials or assessors;

(h) it will not install on or under any land mortgaged to BDC storage tanks for petroleum products or any
I  hazardous substance without BDC's prior written consent and only upon full compliance v/ith BDC's

requirements and local ordinances or regulations;

i  i (i) it will from time to time when requested by BDC provide to BDC evidence of its full compliance with
y  the Borrower's obligations in this Clause 27.

23. ENUREMENT
(

uJ This Security Agreement shall enure to the benefit of BDC and its successors and assigns, and shall be
binding upon the Borrowers and its heirs, executors, administrators, successors and any assigns permitted

,  by BDC. as the case may be.
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29. INTERPRETATION

29.1 In this Security Agreement;

(a) 'Coliateral" has the meaning set out in Clause 1 and any reference to the Collateral shall, unless the
context otherv;/ise requires, be deemed to be a reference to the Collateral in whole or in part:

(b) 'the Act" means the Personal Property Security Act of the jurisdiction in which the branch of BDC is
located, as described on page 1 of this Security Agreement, and ail regulations under the Act, as
amended from time to time.

29.2 V'Vords and expressions used in this Security Agreement that have been defined in the Act shall be
interpreted in accordance with their respective meanings given in the Act unless otherwise defined in this
Security Agreement or unless the context otherwise requires.

29.3 The invalidity or unenforceability of the whole or any part of any clause of this Security Agreement shall not
affect the validity or enforceability of any other clause or the remainder of such clause of this Security
Agreement.

29.4 The headings used in this Security Agreement have been inserted for convenience of reference only and
shall not define, limit, alter or enlarge the meaning of any provision of this Security Agreement.

29 5 This Security Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the jurisdiction referred to in Subclause 29.1(b).
For enforcement purposes, the Borrower hereby attorns to the jurisdiction of the courts and laws of any
province, state, territory or country in which BDC enforces its rights and remedies hereunder.

30. COPY OF AGREEMENT AND FINANCING STATEMENT

The Borrower:

(a) acknowledges receiving a copy of this Security Agreement: and

(b) if the Act so permits, waives all rights to receive from BDC a copy of any financing statement or
financing change statement filed, or any verification statement or other document received at any time
respecting this Security Agreement.

31. TIME

Time shall in all respects be of the essence.

32. INDEPENDENT ADVICE

The Borrower acknowledges having received, or having had the opportunity to receive, independent legal
and accounting advice respecting this Security Agreement and its effect.

33. SASKATCHEWAN LAW

If the Borrower is a corporation, the Borrower agrees as follows:

(a) that the Land Contracts (Actions) Act of Saskatchewan shall have no application to any action, as
defined in the Land Contracts (Actions) Act of Saskatchewan, respecting this Security Agreement,
any mortgage, charge or other security for the payment of money made, given or created by this
Security Agreement, any agreement or instrument which renews or extends or is collateral to this
Security Agreement, or the rights, powers or remedies of BDC under this Security Agreement or any
mortgage or charge created by this Security Agreement as BDC is specifically exempted from the
operation of that Act;
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(b) that the Limilation of Civil Rights Act of Saskatchewan shall have no application to this Security
Agreement, any mortgage, charge or other security for the payment of money made, given or created
by this Security Agreement, any agreement or instrument which renews or extends or is collateral to
this Security Agreement, or the rights, powers or remedies of BDC under this Security Agreement or
any mortgage or charge created by this Security Agreement; and

(c) that if it is an agricultural corporation, as defined in the Saskatchewan Farm Security Act, it has
received independent legal advice prior to the execution of this Security Agreement, and agrees
that the provisions of Part IV of the Saskatchewan Farm Security Act. other than Section 46, shall
not apply to the Borrov/er.

34. PARENTHETICAL COMMENTS

The Borrower acknowledges and agrees that the comments in parentheses are intended to provide a brief
but not thorough indication of the intent of the legal provisions that follow in each subsequent clause, and do
not form part of this Security Agreement.

35. THE LOAN AGREEMENT

If the Borrower has entered into a commitment letter or a written loan agreement (the "Loan Agreement")
with BDC dealing v/ith. or relating to, the loan facilities secured by this Security Agreement, the Borrower
acknovWedges and agrees that in the event of any discrepancy berween any term of this Security
Agreement and any term of the Loan Agreement, the terms of the Loan Agreement shall apply and take
precedence over the terms of this Security Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Borrov,-'er has executed this Security Agreement.

101285461 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.

b^ its authorized signatory(ies)

\
•  r' ■> ; . ■'

per: \ v. v
•o

per:
i  ,

N  "'-A-- .
/>/

■X\ O
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SCHEDULE A

Subclause 1.1 (a) (vii):

the following specific items, even though they may be included within the descriptions of Collateral (insert
description by item or kind):

U
the follov/ing serial numbered goods:

Type
Serial No. (ra; motor vehicles & trailers)
Dept. of Transport No. (re: aircraft)

Year f/iake and Model

Subclause 8.1 (c):

Date of Birth of Borrower (if an individual):
Month Day Year

(J Subclause 6.1 (i):

Location(s) of the Collateral:

^  2 Kelsey Bay, Yorkton, SK, S3N 3Z4

J

I

J

Subclause 6.1 (k):

The Borrov^er's place(s) of business ('POB") and chief executive office ("CEO")

i Chief Executive | j

Office: j 5002 - 3Ath Avenue, DrayCon Valley, AB, T7A 0C6 |
Place of Business: |2 Kelsey Bay, YorkCon, SK, S3N 3Z4 |

! And: i 1

i
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This is Exhibit "I" referred to In the Affidavit of

Hardeep Singh sworn before me on the
day of November, 2018.

)
A Commisgfbner for Oaths in and )
for the Province of Alberta )

00184182-4139-5361-5384 v.l
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Government

of Alberta h
Personal Property Registry
Search Results Report

Search ID#: Z10671667

Page 1 of 4

Transmitting Party

MCLENNAN ROSS LLP

SUITE 600 WEST CHAMBERS 12220 ST PL ROAD
EDMONTON, AB T5N 3Y4

Party Code: 50025451
Phone #: 780 482 9200

Reference #: 184182 CPR

Search ID#: Z10671667 Date of Search: 2018-Sep-06 Time of Search: 11:03:17

Business Debtor Search For:

1119658 ALBERTA LTD.

Exact Result(s) Only Found

NOTE:

A complete Search may result in a Report of Exact and Inexact Matches.

Be sure to read the reports carefully.

rASlM^

U . 1..LO



J

1
M Government

of Alberta i
Personal Property Registry
Search Results Report Page 2 of 4

imi

) Business Debtor Search For:

Search ID#: Z10671667

1119658 ALBERTA LTD.

i
W

Search ID #: Z10671667 Date of Search: 2018-Sep-06 Time of Search: 11:03:17

Registration Number; 14050904090 Registration Type: SECURITY AGREEMENT

l«i Registration Date: 2014-May-09 Registration Status: Current

Expiry Date: 2020-May-09 23:59:59

taJ

1

Exact Match on: Debtor No: 1

[

J
Debtor(s)

Block Status

'  1

u

1  1119658 ALBERTA LTD

1-52319 RANGE ROAD 231
SHERWOOD PARK. AB T8B 1A8

Current

u Secured Partv / Parties

Block Status

u
1  BMW CANADA INC

50 ULTIMATE DRIVE
RICHMOND HILL, ON L4S 0C8

Current

Collateral: Serial Number Goods

Block Serial Number Year Make and Model Cateoorv Status

u 1  5UXKR0C50E0C27297 2014 BMW X5 xDrive35i MV - Motor Vehicle Current

ij

e 119
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J Personal Property Registry
Search Results Report

Search ID#: Z10671667

Page 3 of 4

Business Debtor Search For:

1119658 ALBERTA LTD.

Search ID#; Z10671667 Date of Search; 2018-Sep-06 Time of Search; 11:03:17

Registration Number: 15072433379

^  Registration Date: 2015-Jul-24

Registration Type: SECURITY AGREEMENT

Registration Status: Current

Expiry Date: 2046-Jul-24 23:59:59

u

I

J

J

:  I

y

J

i

J

Exact Match on: Debtor

Exact Match on: Debtor

Exact Match on: Debtor

No: 3

No: 5

No: 6

Amendments to Registration

15072433790

15100914504

Renewal

Amendment

2015-JUI-24

2015-0ct-09

U

J

J

Debtorfs)

Block

1

Block

Block

Block

101285461 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.
BOX 79202 RPO NOTTINGHAM
SHERWOOD PARK. AB T8A 5S3

101285461 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.
2 KELSEY BAY
YORKTON. SK S3N 4C5

1119658 ALBERTA LTD.
BOX 79202 RPO NOTTINGHAM
SHERWOOD PARK. AB T8A 5S3

101285461 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.
5002 - 34 AVENUE
DRAYTON VALLEY. AB T7A 0C6

Status

Current

Status

Current

Status

Current

Status

Current by
15100914504

_!L ^



Government

of Alberta m
Personal Property Registry
Search Results Report

Search ID#: Z10671667

Page 4 of 4

Block

1119658 ALBERTA LTD.
2 KELSEY BAY
YORKTON. SK S3N 3Z4

Status

Current by
15100914504

Block

1119658 ALBERTA LTD.
5002 - 34 AVENUE
DRAYTON VALLEY, AB T7A 0C6

Status

Current by
15100914504

Secured Party I Parties

Block

1  BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT BANK OF CANADA
BOX 6,505 BURRARD ST
VANCOUVER, BC V7X 1M3

Phone #: 604 666 7467 Fax #: 604 666 1573

Status

Current

Collateral: General

Block Description

1  ALL PRESENT AND AFTER ACQUIRED PERSONAL PROPERTY

Status

Current

Result Complete
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Government
of Alberta ■

Personal Property Registry
Search Results Report

Search ID#; Z10671681

Transmitting Party

MCLENNAN ROSS LLP

SUITE 600 WEST CHAMBERS 12220 ST PL ROAD
EDMONTON, AB T5N 3Y4

Party Code: 50025451
Phone#: 780 482 9200

Reference #: 184182 CPR

Search ID#: Z10671681 Date of Search: 2018-Sep-06 Time of Search: 11:04:45

Business Debtor Search For:

101285461 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.

Exact Result(s) Only Found

NOTE:

A complete Search may result in a Report of Exact and Inexact Matches.

Be sure to read the reports carefully.
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Government Personal Property Registry
Search Results Report

Search ID#: Z10671681

Business Debtor Search For:

101285461 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.

Search ID#: Z10671681

Page 2 of 3

Date of Search: 2018-Sep-06 Time of Search: 11:04:45

J

.  i

J

Registration Number: 15072433379

Registration Date: 2015-Jul-24

Registration Type: SECURITY AGREEMENT

Registration Status: Current

Expiry Date: 2046-Jul-24 23:59:59

Exact Match on: Debtor

Exact Match on: Debtor

Exact Match on: Debtor

No: 1

No: 2

No: 4

Amendments to Registration

15072433790

15100914504

Renewal

Amendment

2015-Jul-24

2015-0ct-09

J
Debtorfs)

Block

1  101285461 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.
BOX 79202 RPO NOTTINGHAM
SHERWOOD PARK. AB T8A 5S3

Status

Current

Block

101285461 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.
2 KELSEY BAY
YORKTON, SK S3N 4C5

Status

Current

Block

}

J

i

J
Block

1119658 ALBERTA LTD.
BOX 79202 RPO NOTTINGHAM
SHERWOOD PARK. AB T8A 5S3

101285461 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.
5002 - 34 AVENUE
DRAYTON VALLEY. AB T7A 0C6

Status

Current

Status

Current by
15100914504

J  ' S* '--i



of Alberta @
Personal Property Registry
Search Results Report

Search ID#: Z10671681

Page 3 of 3

Block

u

J

Block

1119658 ALBERTA LTD.
2 KELSEY BAY
YORKTON, SK S3N 3Z4

1119658 ALBERTA LTD.
5002 - 34 AVENUE
DRAYTON VALLEY. AB T7A 0C6

Secured Party / Parties

Block

1  BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT BANK OF CANADA
BOX 6,505 BURRARD ST
VANCOUVER. BC V7X 1M3

Status

Current by
15100914504

Status

Current by
15100914504

Status

Current

Phone #: 604 666 7467 Fax #: 604 666 1573

I  Collateral: General
^  Block Description

1  ALL PRESENT AND AFTER ACQUIRED PERSONAL PROPERTY

Status

Current

J

J

Result Complete
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This is Exhibit "3" referred to in the Affidavit of

Hardeep Singh sworn before me on the
day of November, 2018.

A Commissioner for Oaths in and

for the Province of Alberta

001841S2-4139-5361.5384 V.I
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Saskatchewan

Personal Property Registry
Search Result

Searching Party: ELDOR-WAL REGISTRATION (1987) LTD.
Search Date: 10-Sep-2018 09:09:32
Search Type: Standard

Search #:

Client Reference:

Control #:

Search Criteria

Search By:
Business Name

101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd.

Business Debtor Name

202839817

The following list displays all matches & indicates the ones that were selected.
2 Registration(s} Found: Exacts (2) - Similars (0)

w Selected Match Registration # Registration

Type

Debtor Name City Enforcement

Instruction

Enforcement

Instruction

Registration #

bJ
Yes Exact 301367733 Personal

Property

Security

Agreement

101285461 Saskatchewan

Ltd.

Yorkton No N/A

u
Yes Exact 301367733 Personal 101285461 Saskatchewan Sherwood Park No N/A

Property

Security

Agreement

Ltd.

Search #: 202839817 lO-Sep-2018 09:10:35 Page 1

W  o



Saskatchewan

Personal Property Registry

Search Result

Current - Exact

Registration Type:
Registration Date:

Personal Property Security Agreement
23-Jul-2015 09:08:30

Registration #: 301367733
Expiry Date: 23-Apr-2046

Event Type:
Transaction Reason:

Amendment

Regular

Notations

Trust Indenture: No

Registrant

Party ID:
Entity Type:
Name:

152330264 - 1

Business

McDougall Gauley LLP

Address: 500 - 616 Main Street

Saskatoon,Saskatchewan
S7H0J6

Canada

Secured Party

Item #:

Party ID:
Entity Type:
Name:

1

150777328 - 1

Business

Business Development Bank of Canada

Address: 135 - 21 Street East, Main Floor
Saskatchewan, Saskatchewan
S7K0B4

Canada

Debtor Party

*Item #:

Party ID:
Entity Type:
Name:

1

152376208 - 1

Business

101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd.

Address: 2 Keisey Bay
Yorkton, Saskatchewan
S3N3Z4

Canada

*Item #:

Party ID:
2

152376208 - 2

Address: PO Box 79202 RPO Nottingham
Sherwood Park, Saskatchewan
T8A5S3

Name: 101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd. Canada

General Property

ALL PRESENT AND AFTER-ACQUIRED PERSONAL PROPERTY OF THE DEBTOR(S) AND THE FOLLOWING PROCEEDS: ALL
PROCEEDS OF EVERY KIND, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, GOODS, CHATTEL PAPER, INVESTMENT PROPERTIES,
DOCUMENTS OF TITLE, INSTRUMENTS, MONIES, INTANGIBLES, CROPS, INVENTORY AND EQUIPMENT.

Registration Type:
Registration Date:

History - Setup
Personal Property Security Agreement
23-JUI-2015 09:08:30

Registration #: 301367733
Transaction #: 1

Expiry Date: 23-Apr-2040

Event Type: Setup
Transaction Reason: Regular

Notations

Trust Indenture:

Registrant

No

Party ID: 152330264 - 1
Entity Type: Business
Name: McDougall Gauley LLP

Secured Party

Address: 500 - 616 Main Street
Saskatoon, Saskatchewan
S7H0J6

Canada

Item #:

Party ID:

Address:

150777328 - 1

135 - 21 Street East, Main Floor
Saskatchewan, Saskatchewan

Search 202839817 lO-Sep-2018 09:10:35 Page 2
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Saskatchewan

Personal Property Registry

Search Result

Secured Party

Entity Type: Business
Name: Business Development Bank of Canada

S7K0B4

Canada

Debtor Party

Item #:

Party ID:
1

152376208 - 1

Entity Type: Business
Name:

Item #:

Party ID:
Entity Type: Business

1012854

1523762

61 Saskatchewan Ltd.

08 - 2

Name: 101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd.

Address: 2 Keisey Bay
Yorkton, Saskatchewan
S3N3Z4

Canada

Address: PO Box 79202 RPO Nottingham
Sherwood Park, Saskatchewan
T8A5S3

Canada

General Property

ALL PRESENT AND AFTER-ACQUIRED PERSONAL PROPERTY OF THE DEBTOR(S) AND THE FOLLOWING PROCEEDS: ALL
PROCEEDS OF EVERY KIND, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, GOODS, CHATTEL PAPER, INVESTMENT PROPERTIES,
DOCUMENTS OF TITLE, INSTRUMENTS, MONIES, INTANGIBLES, CROPS, INVENTORY AND EQUIPMENT.

History - Amendment

Amendment Date:

Event Type:
Transaction Reason: Regular

Amendm

23-JUI-2015 09:09:34

ent

Life Time:

Registrant

Life Time Amended

Registration #: 301367733
Transaction #: 2

Expiry Date: 23-Apr-2046

Party ID: 152330264 - 1
Entity Type: Business
Name: McDougall Gauley LLP

Address: 500 - 616 Main Street

Saskatoon, Saskatchewan
S7H0J6

Canada

J

I

J

J

End of Search Result

Search 4: 202839817 lO-Sep-2018 09:10:35 Page 3
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This is Exhibit "K" referred to In the Affidavit of

Hardeep Singh sworn before me on the ^
day of November, 2018.

A Commissioner for Oaths In and )
for the Province of Alberta )

00184182 - 4139-5361-5384 v.l
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LAND TITLE CERTIFICATE

S

LINC

0032 162 174

SHORT LEGAL

0720020;151;8

TITLE NUMBER

072 004 376

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

PLAN 0720020

BLOCK 151

LOT 8

EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

AREA: 0.809 HECTARES (2 ACRES) MORE OR LESS

ESTATE: FEE SIMPLE

ATS REFERENCE: 5;7;49;5;NE

MUNICIPALITY: TOWN OF DRAYTON VALLEY

REFERENCE NUMBER: 062 342 868

REGISTERED OWNER(S)

REGISTRATION DATE (DMY) DOCUMENT TYPE VALUE CONSIDERATION

072 004 376 03/01/2007 SUBDIVISION PLAN

OWNERS

1119658 ALBERTA LTD.

OF 155, 52304 RANGE ROAD 233

SHERWOOD PARK

ALBERTA T8B 1C9

J

I

J

J

ENCUMBRANCES, LIENS & INTERESTS

REGISTRATION

NUMBER DATE (D/M/Y) PARTICULARS

882 228 085 27/09/1988 UTILITY RIGHT OF WAY

GRANTEE - ARC RESOURCES LTD.

PO BOX 6776 STN D

CALGARY

ALBERTA T2P2E7

(DATA UPDATED BY: CHANGE OF NAME 022036492)

(DATA UPDATED BY: CHANGE OF NAME 022036498)

(DATA UPDATED BY: TRANSFER OF UTILITY RIGHT

( CONTINUED )

n  •; 7 |-.
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ENCUMBRJ^CES, LIENS & INTERESTS

REGISTRATION

NUMBER DATE (D/M/Y)

PAGE 2

# 072 004 376

PARTICULARS

OF WAY 062590561)

(DATA UPDATED BY: CHANGE OF ADDRESS 152113621)

072 004 378 03/01/2007 UTILITY RIGHT OF WAY

GRANTEE - THE TOWN OF DRAYTON VALLEY.

BOX 6837

DRAYTON VALLEY

ALBERTA T7A1R3

AS TO PORTION OR PLAN:0720021

112 393 797 06/12/2011 RESTRICTIVE COVENANT

152 256 556 21/08/2015 MORTGAGE

MORTGAGEE - BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT BANK OF CANADA.

200, 10665 JASPER AVE

EDMONTON

ALBERTA T5J3S9

ORIGINAL PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: $5,500,000

152 339 577 28/10/2015 MORTGAGE

MORTGAGEE - 1621804 ALBERTA LTD.

4710-58 ST

REDWATER

ALBERTA T0A2W0

ORIGINAL PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: $600,000

TOTAL INSTRUMENTS: 005

THE REGISTRAR OP TITLES CERTIFIES THIS TO BE AN

ACCURATE REPRODUCTION OF THE CERTIFICATE OF

TITLE REPRESENTED HEREIN THIS 6 DAY OF

NOVEMBER, 2018 AT 09:49 A.M.

ORDER NUMBER: 36201192

CUSTOMER FILE NUMBER: 184182 CPR

★end of CERTIFICATE*

( CONTINUED )

n 7 - ?
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PAGE 3

# 072 004 376

THIS ELECTRONICALLY TRANSMITTED LAND TITLES PRODUCT IS INTENDED

FOR THE SOLE USE OF THE ORIGINAL PURCHASER, AND NONE OTHER,

SUBJECT TO WHAT IS SET OUT IN THE PARAGRAPH BELOW.

THE ABOVE PROVISIONS DO NOT PROHIBIT THE ORIGINAL PURCHASER FROM

INCLUDING THIS UNMODIFIED PRODUCT IN ANY REPORT, OPINION,

APPRAISAL OR OTHER ADVICE PREPARED BY THE ORIGINAL PURCHASER AS

P2^T OF THE ORIGINAL PURCHASER APPLYING PROFESSIONAL, CONSULTING

OR TECHNICAL EXPERTISE FOR THE BENEFIT OF CLIENT(S).

n
•-1 0
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This is Exhibit "L" referred to in the Affidavit of

Hardeep Singh sworn before me on the
day of November, 2018.

)
A Commissioner for Oaths in and )
for the Province of Alberta )

u
00184182 -4139-5361-5384 v.l
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Province of Saskatchewan

Land Titles Registry
Title

Title #: 146957473

Title Status: Active

Parcel Type: Surface
Parcel Value: $2,500,000.00 CAD
Title Value: $2,500,000.00 CAD
Converted Title: 99Y07276

Previous Title and/or Abstract #: 131898145

As of: 10 Sep 2018 09:00:10
Last Amendment Date: 20 Oct 2015 13:44:23.703

Issued: 24 Aug 2015 08:33:21.593

Municipality: CITY OF YORKTON

101285451 SASKATCI IEVVAN LiD. is the registered owner or Surface Parcel
#142833685

Reference Land Description: Lot 11 3lk/Par 7 Plan No 99Y06931 Extension 0
As described on Certificate of Title 99Y07276.

This title is subject to any registered interests set out below and the exceptions, reservations and
interests mentioned in section 14 of The Land Titles Act, 2000.

Registered Interests:

Interest #:

172159773 CNV Easement

Value: N/A
Reg'd: 28 Feb 2000 00:02:51
Interest Register Amendment Date: N/A
Interest Assignment Date: N/A
Interest Scheduled Expiry Date: N/A
Expiry Date: N/A

It 11 VV'ly 3.0m Lt 12 W'ly 5m
Holder as Tenant in Common

Interest Share: 1/2
Interest Share Number: 103505441

Holder:

Saskatchewan Power Corporation
M/A
N/A, Saskatchewan, Canada
Client #: 100869880

Holder as Tenant in Common

Interest Share: 1/2
Interest Share Number: 183605452

Holder:

Saskatchewan Telecommunications

13th Floor, 2121 Saskatchewan Drive
Regina, Saskatchewan, Canada S4P 3Y2
Client#: 100006861

Interest #:

172:159780

Int. Register #: 107698449
Converted Instrument #: 00Y01706

(Dominant)

d o ;
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Interest #:

172159869

Interest #:

17273S503

Addresses for Service;

Restrictive Covenant - Non- Value: N/A

Mutual Reg'd: 14 Jun 2010 15:59:43
Interest Register Amendment Date: N/A
Interest Assignment Date: N/A
Interest Scheduled Expiry Date: N/A
Expiry Date: N/A

Holder:

The Current Dominant Tenement

N/A

n/a, Saskatchewan, Canada S4P 3V7
Client #: 100009099

Int. Register #: 116506739

Mortgage
Value: $5,500,000.00 CAD
Reg'd: 24 Aug 2015 08:33:24
Interest Register Amendment Date: M/A
Interest Assignment Date: M/A
Interest Scheduled Expiry Date: N/A
Expiry Date: N/A

Holder:

Business Development Bank of Canada
Suite 200, One Bentall Centre PC Box 6, 505 Burrard Street
Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada V7X 1M3
Client #: 104272769

Int. Register #: 121046464

Mortgage
Value: $600,000.00 CAD
Reg'd: 20 Get 2015 13:44:24
Interest Register Amendment Date: N/A
Interest Assignment Date: M/A
Interest Scheduled Expiry Date: N/A
Expiry Date: N/A

Holder:

1621804 Alberta Ltd,

4710 - 58th Street

Redwater, AS, Canada TOA 2W0
Client#: 130981057

Int. Register #: 121166759

Name

Owner:

101285461 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.

Client #: 130754730

Notes:

Address

1215 - 5TH STREET ESTEVAN, SK, Canada S4A 0Z5

Parcel Class Code: Parcel (Generic)

mzi
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Province of Saskatchewan

Land Titles Registry
Title

Title #; 146957484

Title Status: Active

Parcel Type: Surface
Parcel Value: 100,000.00 CAD
Title Value: S2,100,000.00 CAD

Converted Title: 99Y07276

Previous Title and/or Abstract #: 131898156

As of: 10 Ssp 2018 08:58:28
Last Amendment Date: 20 Oct 2015 13:44:23.677

Issued: 24 Aug 2015 08:33:23.077

Municipality: CITY OF YORKTON

101285461 SASKATCHEWAN Li D. is the registered owner of Surface Parcel
#142833674

Reference Land Description: Lot 12 BIk/Par 7 Plan No 99Y06931 Extension 0
As described on Certificate of Title 99Y07276.

This title is subject to any registered interests set out below and the exceptions, reservations and
interests mentioned in section 14 of The Land Titles Act, 2000.

Registered Interests:

Interest #:

3.72159814 CNV Easement

Value: N/A
Reg'd: 17 Nov 1983 00:20:05
Interest Register Amendment Date: N/A
Interest Assignment Date: N/A
Interest Scheduled Expiry Date: N/A
Expiry Date: N/A

Interest #:

.1721593.25

Lt 12 W'ly 3m
Holder:

Saskatchewan Telecommunications

13th Floor, 2121 Saskatchewan Drive
Regina, Saskatchewan, Canada S4P 3Y2
Client #: 100006861

Int. Register #: 107698450
Converted Instrument #: 83Y12045

Feature #: 999999

CNV Easement

Value: N/A
Reg'd: 28 Feb 2000 00:02:51
Interest Register Amendment Date: N/A
Interest Assignment Date: N/A
Interest Scheduled Expiry Date: N/A
Expiry Date: N/A

Lt 11 W'ly 3.0m & Lt 12 W'ly 5m
Holder as Tenant in Common

Interest Share: 1/2
Interest Share Number: 1S3605503

Holder:

Saskatchewan Power Corporation

J
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Interest #:

172159326

Interest #:

172159870

Interest #:

172738514

N/A
N/A, Saskatchewan, Canada

Client #: 100869880

Holder as Tenant in Common

Interest Share: 1/2

Interest Share Number: 183603519

Holder:

Saskatchewan Telecommunications

13th Floor, 2121 Saskatchewan Drive
Regina, Saskatchewan, Canada S4P 3Y2
Client#: 100006861

Int. Register #; 107698449
Converted Instrument #: 00Y017G6

Restrictive Covenant - Mon- (Dominant)
Mutual Value: N/A

Reg'd: 14 jun 2010 15:59:43
Interest Register Amendment Date: N/A
Interest Assignment Date: M/A
Interest Scheduled Expiry Date: N,^A
Expiry Date: N/A

Holder:

The Current Dominant Tenement

N/A

n/a, Saskatchewan, Canada S4P 3V7
Client #: 100009099

Int. Register #: 116506739

Mortgage
Value: $5,500,000.00 CAD
Reg'd: 24 Aug 2015 08:33:24
Interest Register Amendment Date: N/A
Interest Assignment Date: M/A
Interest Scheduled Expiry Date: N/A
Expiry Date: N/A

Holder:

Business Development Bank of Canada
Suite 200, One Sentall Centre PO Box 6, 505 Burrard Street
Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada V7X 1M3
Client #: 104272769

Int. Register #: 121046464

Mortgage

Holder:

1621804 Alberta Ltd.

Value: $600,000.00 CAD
Reg'd: 20 Get 2015 13:44:24
Interest Register Amendment Date: N/A
Interest Assignment Date: N/A
Interest Scheduled Expiry Date: N/A
Expiry Date: N/A

1 0 o
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4710 - 58th Street

Redwater, AB, Canada TOA 2W0
Client#: 130981057

Int. Register #: 121166759

Addresses for Service:

Name

Owner:

101285461 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.

Client #: 130754730

Notes:

Parcel Class Code: Parcel (Generic)

Address

1215 - 5TH STREET ESTEVAN, SK, Canada S4A 0Z5

to Sc-D
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This Is Exhibit "M" referred to in the Affidavit of

Hardeep Singh sworn before me on the
day of November, 2018.

)
A Commfssioner for Oaths in and ^ )
for the Province of Alberta )

u

u
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GUARANTEE
ptaBOHt wr«i'.?fcuuif hwjiJuwj f ji. *

GUARANTOR: 101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd. the "Guarantor"

CREDITOR: Susiness Development Bank of Canada "BDC"

DEBTOR: 1119658 Alberta Ltd. the "Borrower"

DEBT: $2,750,000.00 the "Principal Sum"

LIMIT OF LIABILITY: UNLIMITED

DATED:

BDC BUSINESS

CENTRE:

the "Limited Amount"

2015

ALBERTA
(Frovince/TQtritory)

the "Governing Jurisdiction"

IN CONSIDERATION of BDC agreeing to make a loan to the Borrower of the Principal Sum, the Guarantor
covenants with BDC as follows:

1. DEBT AND SECURITY

In this guarantee. "Loan Security" means all accepted letters of offer, loan agreements, promissory notes,
debentures, mortgages, hypothecations, pledges, assignments and security agreements of any kind which
BDC may hold at any time as security for the payment of the Principal Sum and all agreements amending,
extending or renewing those security instruments. The Guarantor has read all of the Loan Security held by
BDC as of the date of this guarantee.

2. GUARANTEE

The Guarantor unconditionally guarantees performance by the Borrower of all promises under the Loan
Security and payment by the Borrower of the Principal Sum, protective disbursements, interest and other
amounts the Borrower has promised to pay under the Loan Security {the foregoing amounts collectively are
called the "Outstanding Balance"). The Guarantor also promises to pay to BDC all legal fees and
disbursements, on a solicitor and client basis. Incurred by BDC in reference to any suit upon this guarantee.
The liability of the Guarantor under this guarantee does not exceed the Limited Amount plus legal expenses
plus interest on the Limited Amount at the rate provided under the Loan Security calculated and
compounded monthly from the date BDC demands payment under this guarantee.

This guarantee shall be a continuing guarantee and ,the obligations guaranteed hereunder shall include all
present and future indebtedness and liabilities of the Borrower to BDC under the Loan Security, of any
nature whatsoever, and whether incurred by the Borrower alone or with others.

3. LIABILITY AS PRINCIPAL DEBTOR

As between BDC and the Guarantor, the Guarantor is liable as principal debtor for all of the Borrower's
covenants contained in the Loan Security notwithstanding any act or omission of the Borrower or of BDC

{E6918440.DOCX; 1}Guarantee-Western Canada
Rev. April 30, 2015 Page 1
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which might otherv/ise operate as a partial or absolute discharge of the Guarantor if the Guarantor were only
a surety.

4. LIABILITY NOT DIMINISHED BY ACTS OF THE BANK OR THE BORROWER

Except for payment of all sums due under the Loan Security, payment of the amount due under this
guarantee or written discharge, no act or omission of BDC or of the Borrower, before or after default,
discharges or diminishes the liability of the Guarantor under this guarantee and without restricting the
foregoing, the Guarantor covenants with BDC as follows;

(a) BDC may grant time and other indulgences to the Borrower, to a Guarantor and to any
other person liable for all or any portion of the Principal Sum;

(b) BDC may modify, extend or renew (in either case, on the then current, or on new, terms),
exchange, abstain from perfecting, discharge or abandon the Loan Security or any part of it or
anything mortgaged or charged by it;

(c) BDC may enter into any agreement with the Borrower to vary the terms of any agreement
affecting the payment or repayment of Principal Sum, including a change in the rate of interest
chargeable on the Principal Sum;

(d) BDC may enter into any agreement or accept any compromise that has the effect of
diminishing or extinguishing the liability of the Borrov;er to BDC or the value of the Loan Securihy or
the value of anything mortgaged by it;

(e) BDC need not ascertain or enforce compliance by the Borrov/er or any other person v;ith
any covenant under the Loan Security;

(f) BDC bears no responsibility for any neglect or omission with respect to anything mortgaged
under the Loan Security, either during possession by the Borrower or by any third party or by BDC
or by anyone on behalf of BDC;

(g) BDC is not bound to seek recourse against the Borrower before requiring payment from the
Guarantor and BDC may enforce its various remedies under this guarantee and the Loan Security
or any part of it at any time, in any manner and in any order as BDC may choose;

(h) BDC bears no duty to the Guarantor in respect of the liquidation of anything mortgaged
under the Loan Security and, without restricting the foregoing, it is under no duty to avoid waste of.
to obtain a fair price for or to avoid neglect in the liquidation of anything mortgaged under the Loan
Security;

(i) BDC has no obligation to ensure that any Loan Security, other guarantee or security
collateral to a guarantee is executed, perfected or delivered and, if by reason of v/ant of authority or
failure of execution and delivery or failure to comply with laws respecting perfection and registration
of instruments or any other reason, any Intended Loan Security, guarantee or collateral securiby is
not granted, is unenforceable or becomes unenforceable, the liability of the Guarantor under this
guarantee remains enforceable and undiminished; and

(j) The Guarantor confirms and agrees that any modifications of the loan terms or Loan
Security may be agreed upon directly between BDC and the Borrower v^ithout notice to the
Guarantor and without the Guarantor's further concurrence.

5. SUBROGATION

The Guarantor shall not be subrogated in any manner to any right of BDC until all money due to BDC under
the Loan Security is paid.

6. RELEASE

If more than one person guarantees any of the obligations of the Borrower to BDC under this guarantee or
any other instrument, BDC may release any of those persons on any terms BDC chooses and each person

{E5918440.DOCX; 1}Gu3ranlee-Western Canada
Rev. April 30. 2015 Page 2
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executing this guarantee who has not been released shall remain liable to BDC under this guarantee as if
the person so released had never guaranteed any of the obligations of the Borrower.

7. PAYMENT AND REMEDYING DEFAULTS

The Guarantor shall pay the amount guaranteed or rectify any default immediately upon receiving a demand
from BDC and shall do so whether or not BDC has exhausted its recourses against the Borrower, other
parties, the Loan Security or anything mortgaged under the Loan Security. A demand is effectually made
when a letter is posted to the address of the Guarantor last known to BDC.

8. NO COLLATERAL AGREEMENTS OR REPRESENTATIONS

Any agreement between BDC and the Guarantor diminishing the liability of the Guarantor under this
guarantee, altering any term of this guarantee or imposing any condition against the operation of any such
term is of no further force or effect. Any representation made by BDC having such effect is waived. The
Guarantor warrants that there are no agreements, representations or conditions that have been relied upon
by the Guarantor that are not expressed in this guarantee.

9. CHANGES MUST BE IN WRITING

This guarantee may only be amended by writing executed by BDC. No agreement has the effect of
diminishing or discharging the liability of the Guarantor under this guarantee unless the agreement is in
v/riting and executed by BDC. The Guarantor shall not rely upon any future representation made by BDC in
respect of the liability of the Guarantor under this guarantee unless such representation is in writing
executed by BDC.

10. JOINT AND SEVERAL LIABILITY

Where this guarantee has been executed by more than one person, the liability of the persons executing
this guarantee is joint and several and every reference in this guarantee to the "Guarantor" shall be
construed as meaning each person v^ho has executed it as v/ell as all of them. This guarantee is binding on
those who have executed it notwithstanding that it may remain unexecuted by any other person.

11. JURISDICTION

The laws of the Governing Jurisdiction shall govern the enforcement of this Guarantee and the Guarantor
agrees to submit to the jurisdiction of the Courts of the Governing Jurisdiction.

12. ASSIGNS

This guarantee is binding upon the Guarantor and the Guarantor's heirs, executors, administrators,
successors and assigns and shall enure to the benefit of BDC, its successors and assigns. BDC may
assign this guarantee.

13. COUNTERPARTS

This guarantee may be executed in any number of counterparts each of which shall be deemed an original
v/ith the same effect as if the signatures thereto and hereto were upon the same instrument. Delivery of an
executed counterpart of a signature page of this guarantee by telecopy shall be effective as delivery of a
manually executed counterpart of this guarantee.

101285461 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.

by its authorized signatory(ies):

Authorized signatory

f:co/ (Liin.uirai'i;
:k\ -r- \
A\

:

{E6918440.DOCX; IjOuarantee-Western Canada
Rev. April 30. 2015 Page 3
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This is Exhibit "N" referred to In the Affidavit of

Hardeep Singh sworn before me on the 2^
day of November, 2018.

)
)

A Commiisloner for Oaths in and )
for the Province of Alberta )

nmissloner for Oa
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August 23, 2018

111£658 Alberta Ltd.
155 Fountain Creek Way,
ShePA^ood Park, AB T8B 109

^ "WrXiA-; HSAHi .

. A A'

lQ09i/-3

A;

314 678 315 C.A

Subject: BDC Loan, Account No. 089654-01

Dear Sir/Madam;

You are in DEFAULT under the terms of the security for the subject loan and BDC hereby
invokes the acceierstion clause contained in the security and demands the repayment of the
loan in full.

The amount due and payable on the date of this letter is:

i  Loan No. 01 j
Principal 62.570,548.15 |
interest $39,939.14
TOTAL $2,610,487.29
Daily interest $414.81 1

Daily interest is required up to and Including the date of payment. Interest is compounded
monthly and the daily interest amount will increase as a result.

If the sum is not received within 10 days from the date of this letter, BDC shall take such action
as may be necessary to enforce Its rights as set out in the .security.

^Na enclose the Form 86 Notice of Intention to Enforce Security pursuant to Subsection 244(1) of
tlie Bankruptcy end Insolvency Act.

Yours .truly, '/ ^
/y / / /'/ ,

'  /// 0 Y

y

y

y

y

y

I iii'ardeep Singh
-'Senior Account Manager. Special .Accounts

T (403) 292-4945
E hardeep.singh@bdc.ca

L/ ■
Adriane Grabarevic
Area Office Manager. Special Accounts
T 604-666-4266
E Adriane.arabarevic@bdc.ca

End. Form 86

CC: 1012S5461 Saskatchewan Ltd.. Kuidsep (Keiiy) Kaur Maan

CcV-ycpf iC*rt ?Cr.l' I'.f C"jr.i!j,T
tni'i;-s! Acccurits
;j:3-32"'Avuii!.^Ne
..•. ■r.-,.AS Tzn.-COT '.•L'iL'r;f>-:.-r;C •.•.y.v.';-;c &•)



J  FORM 86

u

y

u

y

y

y

y

y

y

Notice of Intention to Enforce a Security
{Rule 124}

To: 1119653 Alberta Ltd. an insoivenl person.

Take notice that:

1  Business Deveiopment Bank of Canada, a secured creditor, intends to enforce its security on ins
insolveril person's property described below:

Land and building located at 5002-34 Avenue, Drayton Valley. Alberta

Ail personal property of the insolvent person c-jxcept consumer goods.

2. The security that is to be enforced is in the form of a Mortgage and General Security Agreement.

.3. The total amount of the indebtedness secured by the security is 52,610,43/ ̂ :9. as at Atugust 23,
2018 with interest thereafter at the Bank's lloalinq base rate per annum compounded monthly and
all costs and charges of enforcement

4. The secured creditor will not have the right to enforce the security until after the expiration of the
IQ-dsy period after this notice is sent unless the insolvent person consents to an earlier
enforcement.

Dated at Calgary AB.. this 23rG day of .August, 2018.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT BANK OF CANADA

y

Li

y
Adriane Graaaravic, AreipOffice plsnager, Special Accounts

y  (/Vyi
ynf.sHarasep SingHr^enior Account Manager, Special Accounk

y  CONSENT AND WAIVER

j  j THE UNDERSIGNED hereby:

^  1. .Acknowledges receipt of the above Form 86 Notice;

2  Waives the ten day pr:;riGd of notice required under Section 244 of the Bankriiptcy and Insolvency
Act; and

3. Consents to the immediate enforcement by Business Deveioprnanl Bank of Canada of the Security
reterred to in the above Form SB Notice.

DATED at . this day of , 2018.

1119658 Alberta Ltd.

Per:

Authorized Signatory

0:1.46
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August 23, 2016

11 19o!d3 Albsris Lid.

1-52319 Rangts Road 231
Sherwood Park. AS T8B 1A8

fJlikilI  ilCC'l?? ii; v!) :;ui:;r

Of

■ •■i"

S4S001

;k: :fkp3'-en-13 ■
■' ! .i.BE-' iTA; L P G.\  •- •' I

RM 314 G78 324 CA

Subject: BDC Loan, Account No. 089654-01

Dear Sir/iVladam:

You are in DEFAULT under (he terms of the security for the subject loan and BDC hereby
invokes the acceleration clause contained in the security and demands the repayment of the
loan in full.

The arriount due and payable on tiie date of this letter is:

Loan No. 01
Principal 52,570,548.15
Interest $39,939.14
TOTAL $2,610,487.23
Daily interest $414.81

Daily interest is required up to and including the date of payment, liiterest is compcunded
monthly and the daily interest amount will increase as a resuii.

If the sum is not received within 10 days from the date of this letter, BDC .shall lake such action
as may be necessary to enforce its rights as set out in (he security.

We enclose the Form 86 Notice of Intention lo Enforce Security pursuant to Subsection 244(i) of
the Bankrupicy and !nso(yericy Act.

y

y

y

Yours truly,
/

: y

■ {[y ^ ^
: Hardeep Singh
^§enior Account Manager, Special Accounts

T (403) 292-4945
E hardeep.3ingh@bdc.ca

End. Form 86

Business '? ji'v, cf Cafv-:;-i
Spi'.c-il Ar.co:ini5
iWf! - 32'- Aver-i.-J tJ Jr. :i V.V3

f-'-i r3= 7^,(1 ■' ;

0^
AdrianeGrabarevic
Area Office Manager, Special Accounts
T 604-666-4266
E Adriane.grabar8vic@bdc.ca

? :;14?
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FORiVI 86

Notice of intention to Enforce a Security
{Rule 124)

To; 11'19658 Alberta Ltd. an insolvent peTson.

Take notice thai;

U 1. Bu.stness Development Bank of Canada, a secured creditor, intends to enforce its security on the
insolvent person's property described below;

^  Land and building located at 5002-34 Avenue. Drayton Valley, Aiber'a
All personal property of the insolvent person except consumer goods.

I  \y  2. The security Hist is to be enforced is in the form of a Mortgage and General Security Agreement.
3. The total amount of the indebtedness sscujed by the security is 52,610,437.29. as at August 23.

1  2013 with inlsre.st thereafter at the Bank's fioaling base rate per annum compounded monthly and
ail costs and ctiarges of enforcement.

A  The secured creditor will not have the right to enforce the security until after the expiration of (he
1Q-day period after this notice is sent unless the insolvent person consents to an earlier
snforcement.

Dated at Calgary A3., this 23rd day of August, 2018.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT BANK OF CANADA
u

Adriane Grabarevic. /^p^ Office Manager. Spcciai Accounts

Hrh'deep Singh, Senior Accouht Manager, Special Accounts
/

CONSENT AND WAIVER

THE UNDERSIGNED hereby

1. Acknowledges receipt of the above Form 86 Notice;

U 2. VVaive.s the ten day period or notice required under Section 244 of the Bankruptcy and Insolvency
Act; and

3. Consents to the immediate enforcement by Business Development Bank of Canada cf the Security

referred to m the above Form 86 Notice

DATED at . , ihis day of . 2018.

1119858 Aiberca Ltd.

Per:

Authorized Signaior)f

o ̂  .^-kO
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August 23. 2G18

■111965S Alberta Ltd.
2 - Keisey Bay
Yorkton. SK. S3N 4C5

h-fCCf-YAMDS
-YownsTir.

•:'LY-a

" Y

'  • -v.;;:-:--.:!-::::';:- -1l. • • .

r  ...rMT'XL'u P.O. I - RM 314 678 333 CA
\ vancc«J^JG2L12

Subject: BDC Loan, Account No. 089654-01

Dear Sir/Madam:

You are in DEFAULT under the terms of the security for the subject loan and BDC hereby
invokes the acceleration clause contained in the security and demands the repaymenl of the
loan In full.

The amount due and payable on the date of this letter is:

Loan No. 01
Principal 52.570,548.15
Interest 339.939.14
TOTAL $2,610,487.29
Daily interest S414.B1

Daily interest is required up to and including the date of payment. Interest is compounded
monthly and the daily interest amount vvili increase as a result.

If the sum is not received within ID days from the date of this latter, BDC snail take such action
as may be necessary to enforce its rights as set out in the security.

Yve enclose the Form 86 Notice of intention to Enforce Security pursuant lo Subsection 244{l) of
the 3ankrupic\^nd Insolvency Aci

/Yours truiv, , ■ /

n/rdeep Singh
Senior Account Manager. Special Accounts
T {403) 292-4945
E hard8sp.slngh@bdc.c5

End. Form 86

ncj
(Serial cjJ;yl.}x9„
Adriane Grabarovic
Area Office Manager, Special Accounts
T 604-666-4266
E Adriane.grabar0vic@bdc.ca

rr:5! Avc:;i;nt£.

C.s;i.ir7 AG ^CoT l-SSU :7.tovDC •••v.w

G;I49
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FORM 86

Noiice af Intsniion to Enforce a Secun'iy
(Rule 124)

To: 1119668 Alberta Ltd. an insolvent person.

Take notice that;

1  Business OeveiopmenI Sank of Canada, a secured creditor, intends to enforce its security on the
insoiveni person's property described below

Land and building located at 5002-34 Avenue, Drayton Valley. Alberta

All personal property of the insolvent person except consumer goods.

2. The security that is to be enforced is in ins form of a fviortgage and Ger^eral Securiiy Agreement.

3. The total amount of ttia indebterlness secured by the security is 52,610,467 29. as at August 23,
2018 with interest theraafter at the Bank's floating base rate per annum compounded monthly and
ail costs and charges of enforcement.

4  The secured crsdilor v/ill not have the right to enforce the security until after the expiration of the
10-day period after this noiice Is sent unless the insolvent person consents to an earlier
enforcement.

Dated at Calgary a\B , this 23rd day of August. 2013.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT BANK OF .CANADA
I

Adriane Grabarevic. Area Office Manager Special Accounts

/7 /7

Ll ir-
Haideap Singh/Senior Accouni Manager Special Accounts

U  CONSENT AND WAIVER

j  THE UNDERSIGNED hereby.
^  1. Acknowledges receipt of the above Form 86 f^otice;

2. Waives the ten day penod of notice required under St^clion 244 of the Bankruptcy and insolvency
Act; and

3. Consents to the immediate enforcement by Business Development Bank of Caneda of the Security
rvOfarred to in the above Form 85 Notice.

DATED at , . this day of . 2018.

11196.58 Alberta Ltd.

Per:

Authorised Signaioiy

I  I

U p. • c:
U , p. U
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August 23, 2018

1119G58 Alberta Ltd.

5002-34 Avenue

Drayton Valley, AB. T7A 0C6

Subject: BDC Loan, Account No. 089654-01

Dear Sir/Madam;

-  V--.

f^C'ti;. ',,.3
!:■ ^" ■ ~

,  (545001
17") 3
i* - • BB'lfALL 31/1 578 841 CA

You are in DEFAULT under the terms of the security for the subject loan and BDC hereby
invokes the acceleration clause contained in the security and demands the repayment of the
loan in full.

The amount dua and payable on the date of this ietter is:

(mJ Loan No. 01
Principal S2.570.548.15

1
1

Interest $39,939.14
TOTAL $2,6i0,48>.29

1 Daily interest $414.81

Daily interest is required up to and including the date of payment. Interest is compounded
monthly and the daily i.nterest amount will increase as a result.

If the sum is not received within 10 days from the date of this letter. BDC shail take such action
as may be necessary to enforce its rignts as set out in the security.

We enclose the Form 86 Notice of Iniention to Enforce Security pursuant to Subsection 244(1) of
the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act.

Yours truly. ' y

Hari^ij^ep Singh
Senior Account Manager, Special Accounts
T (403) 292-4945
E hardeep.singh@bdc.ca

End. Form 36

Adriane Grabarevic
Area Office Manager, Special Accounts
T 604-666-4266
E Adriane.grab3revic@bdc.ca

C  oiCiinnc-i
ACCC:J-!3

r^t:: icc:
i'lVr ■ j.?i; -^'>000 ca

n c •' r
0 , J. -J
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FORM SS

Notice of inieniian to Enforce a Securitv

(Rule 124)

To: 1119653 Alberta Led. an insolvent person.

Take notice thst:

1. Business Development Bank of Canada, a secured creditor, intends to enforce its security on (he
insolvent person's property described below:

Land and building located at 5002-34 Avenue, Drrdyton Valley, Alberta

All personal property of the insolvent person except consumer goods.

2. The security that is to be enforced is in the form of a Mortgage and General Security Agreement.

3  The tola! arnount of the indebtedness secured by .lha security is 52.610,487.29. as at August 23,
2013 '.vilh interest thereafter at the Bank's floating base '■ate per annum compounded monthly and
all costs and charges of enforcement.

4  The secured creditor will not have the right to enforce the sr2cunty until after (he expiration of the
10-day period after this notice is sent unless the insolvent person consents to an earlier
enforcement.

Dated at Calgary AB.. this 23rd day of August, 2018.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT BANK OF CANADA

C/{
Adrisne Crabsmvic, AreaJ9>flcs Manager, Special Accounts

Ch 0 r
Hardeep SinghySenior Account Manager, Special Accounts

U  CONSENT AND WAIVER

THE UNDERSIGNED hereby

i  Acknowiedges Cfjceipt of the above Form 86 Notice:

2. Waives the ten day period of notice required under Section 244 o! the Bankruptcy and Insolvency
Act: and

3. Consents to the immediate enforcement by Business Development Bank of Canada of the Security
refeiTed to in the above Form 86 Notice.

DATED at , . this day of , 2018

111S85S Alberia Ltd.
Per:

Aulhor'aed Signatory

n 3 ^ r.
U' ..■ 1 -»r,-



August 23, 2013

101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd.

Choice Quality Inn
PO Box 79202 PxPO Nottingham
Sheiwood Park AB. T8A 5S3

•  ■« i ■ ■ ' ( ' ' ' TT"*'-. ——v

-sg; : slilij

eTOGI

ZOliTMie 2-3
3EfTr-^!:irO:Q.

"■ ■ ^••7a iAO
RN 314 '37S 355 CA

SubjvOct: BDC Loan No. 1119658 Alberta Ltd. - Account no. 089654-01

Dear Sir/Madam

We enclose r.erevdth a copy of our notice of our demand addressed to the above named
borrower, which you will find self-explanatory.

As you are aware, BDC holds a guarantee as underlying security for the above loan. We
remind you that pursuant to the terms of the guarantee, BDC is not required to neaiize on the
assets of the borrovx/er moiigaged to BDC before making demand for payment upon you as the
guarantor.

This letter constitutes demand upon you for the satisfaction of your guarantee obligation,
concurrent with BDG's demand upon the company, and, if the indebtedness to BDC is not
settled within 10 days from dale of this letter, we propose to take such aclion as may be
necessary for collection thereof.

I
...

Loan No. 01
i Guarantee Detail Full loan aulsiandina
1 Guarantee Amount Now Due $2,610,487.29
1 Daily interest on the guarantee amount S414.81

Daily interest is required up to and including the date of payment. Interest is compounded
monthly and the daiiy inte.'"est amount will increase as a result.

We enclose the Form 86 Notice of Intention to Enforce Security pursuant to Subsection 244(1) of
the Bankruptcyyap^lnsGlvenoy Act.
Yours tryii'l

Harae'ep Singh
Senior Account Manager. Special Accounts
T (403) 292-494x6
E hardesp.singh@bdc.ca

Adrisne Grabarevic
.Area Office Manager, Special Accounts
T 604-566-4266
E Adnane.grabarevic@bdc.ca

End.

D; of Cj3ri::rt..i
A"!.ounls

v^ii-:a.v ^ f-DC I-;;

n n • r >
V.' -■ z J «.>



FORM SS

u
Notice of Intention to En force a Security
(Rule 124)

^  To: 101235461 Saskatchewan Ltd. an insoivent person.

:  I Take notice that:
Lj

1  Business Development Bank of Canada, a secured creditor, intends to enforce its sGCurily on the
insolvent person's property described below;

^  Land and building located at 2 Kelsey Bay Yorkton, Saskatchewan (LotsVl~12)

I  All personal properly of the insolvent person except consumer goods.

2. The security that is to be enforced is in the form of a Mortgage and General Security Agreement.

I  3. The total amount of the indebtedness secured by the security is 52,610.437.29. as at August 23,
*  2018 with interest thereafter at the Bank's floating base rate per annum compounded monthly and

ail costs and charges of enforcement.

I

j  4. The secured creditor will not have the right to enforce the security until after the expiration of the
10-day period after this notice is sent unless the insolvent person consents to an earlier
enforcement.

I

•—I Dated at Calgary AS., this 23rd day of August, 2018.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT BANK OF CANADA

U

Adriane Gr^arevic, AraapOifice Manager. Special Account!:

/ / "
Hardeeli Singh, Senior Account Manager, Special Accounts

CONSENT AND WAIVER

THE UNDERSIGNED hereby:

1  Acknowledges receipt of the above Form 86 Notice;

2 Waives the ten day period of notice required under Section 244 of the Bankruptcy and Insolvency
Act; and

3. Consents to the immediate enforcement by Business Development Bank of Canada of the

Security referred to in the above Form 86 Notice.

DATED at , . this day of , 2018.

101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd.

Per:

Authorized Signatory'

O. • I— rj

V 7
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Auoust 23, 2018

101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd.

Choice Qualily Inn
1515-5'' Street

Estavan. SK. S4A 0Z5

sor-iE^ytc yEGLvy ::;yTEt?iaiR ' < ? :

k

I

'  'Tim.
•. •

_  2018 -03- 23- ■
:  i^^fiNTALLP.O.

- •.-;-:-.'p?^V)-^EB~V7'X- V/^:. J 3t4 678 869 CA

Subject: BDC Loan No. 1119658 Alberta Ltd. - Account no. 089654-01

iOear Sir/Madam

We enclose herewith a copy of our notice of our demand addressed to the above named
borrower, which you will find self-explanatory.

As you are aware, BDC holds a guarantee as underiying security for the above loan. We
rsmsnd you that pursuant lo the terms of the guarantee, SDC is not required to realize on Ihe
assets of the borrower mortgaged to BDC before making demand for payment upon you as the
guarantor.

This letter constitutes demand upon you for the satisfaction of your guarantee obligation,
concurrent with BDC's demand upon the company, and, if the indebtedness to SDC is not
settled within 10 days from date of this letter, v^e propose to take such action as may be
necessarv for collection thereof.

Loan flo. 01

Guarantee Detail Full loan outstandina

Guarantee Amount Now Due $2,610,487.29

D.aily interest on the quarantee amount 3414.31

Daily interest is required up to and including the date of payment. Interest is compounded
monthly and the daily interest amount will increase as a result.

We enclose the Form 86 Notice of Intention to Enforce Security pursuant lo Subsection 244(1) or
the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Acl.

Yours truly, / -i-
///
y

l-tr xiyC-^uCCg-
V, QTrioh Uiy\ Hardspp Singh 'J'-

Sehior Account Manager, Special Accounts
T (403) 292-4945
E hardeep.singht'^bdc.ca

Adriane Grabarevic

Area Office Manager, Special Accounts
T 604-565-4266

E Adrians.grabareyiCiSibdc.ca

OcveinprncMt LlanK cl

Siu.'Cinl Acr.aiinis'
-22"Avi!nudrjE,Su:'(;

CO'Ocir/ Af; T:1L" 7C0 T 1 u.jC v.-.v.v t-sc cA
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FORil^l 8S

Notice of Intention to Enforce a Security
(Rule 124)

To: *101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd. an insolvent person.

TaKe noiice that:

1, Business Deveiopment Bank of Canada, a secured credilor. inlencis to enforce its security on the
insolvent person's property described below:

Land and buitding locsled at 2 Kelsey Bay Yorkton, Saskatchewan (Lotsi 1-12)

Ail parsons) property of the insolvent person except consumer goods.

2. The security that is to be enforced is in the form of a Mortgage and General Security Agreement.

M  3 The total amount of the indebtedness secured by the security is 52,610,•'187.29. as at August 23,
2018 with interest thereafter at the Bank's floating base rate per annum compounded monthiy and
ail costs and charges of enforcement.

U

U

U

u

u

u

u

u

IJ

u

y

4. The secured creditor will not have the right to enforce the security until alter the expiration of the
10-day period after this notice is sent unless the insolvent person consents to an earlier
enforcement.

Dated at Calgary AB., this 23rd day of August, 2Q18.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT BANK OF CANADA

P -i(' f{ /'I
1  1 Adriane Graberevic. Area<Jifice Manager. Special Accounls

|j Hardmp Singt^'SeniGr Accciml Manager, Spec/a/Accounts

,  CONSENT AND WAIVER

Li
THE UNDERSIGNED hereby:

1. Acknowledges receipt of the above Form 86 Notice,

2. Waives the ten day period of noiice reauired under Section 244 of the Bankruptcy arfd Insolvency

Act: and

3. Consents to the immediate enforcement by Business Dsveiopment Bank of Canada of the
Security referred to in the above Form 86 Notice,

DATED at , , this day or , 2018.

101285451 Saskatchewan Ltd.

Per:

Authorized Signatcny

O  ' r
c. J O
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August 23. 2018

Kulcieep {Keiiy ) Kuar Maan
79202 Noitingharn
ShePvVood Park AB. T8A 5S3

v.. i REGi3TfcHbU i - 3 [.]

aniuacuaa
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Subject: 3DC Loan No. 1119658 Alberta Ltd. - Account no. 039654-01

Dear Sir:

We enclose herewith a copy of our notice of our demand addressed to the above named
borrower, vynich ycu vvill find self-explanatory

As you are aware. BDC holds a guarantee from yourself as underlying security for the above
loan. We remind you that pursuant to the terms of the guarantee, BDC is not required lo realize
on the assets of the borrower mortgaged to BDC before making demand for payment upon you
as the guarantor.

This letter constitutes demand upon you for the satisfaction of your guarantee obiigation,
concurrent with BDC's demand upon the company, and, if the indebtedness lo BDC is not
settled within 10 days from date of this letter, we propose to take such action as may be
necessary for collection thereof.

Loan No. 01

Guarantee Detail 3250,000 00

Guarantee Amount Now Duo $250,000.00

Daiiy tnlerest on the guarantee amount $39,73

U

Daiiy interest is required up to and including the date of payment, 'nterest is compounded
monthly and the.dqiiy interest amount vvill increase as a result.

Yours truly,^

\Hardefip bingn
Sen.ifesr .Account Manager, Special Accounts
T (403) 292-4945
E hardeep.sing!i@bdc.ca

cUU
Adriana urabarsvic

Area Office Manager, Special Accounts
T 604-666-4266

E Adriane.grabarevic@bdc.ca

End.

fii.'i ness Devsiopinsn!
Sp^Cijl Acucu!;!;-.

- Si'- .«-vermc: N £

:;!;qa-v Atx T2£ ?r3 r I '-?::! . bdo
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- |i tiyum tv.c;.') (

Clienl Numbst- 089654
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August 23. 2018

"^3

101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd.

Choice Quality Inn
PO Box 79202 RPO Nottingham
Sherwood Park. AB. T8A 5S3

Subject: BDC Loan, Account No. 089712-01

Dear Sir/iVladam:

-  n-OiVi^T:- -n:-;v::n»jTH;ncV-; 1
eeasKEicsopri £f;ji»iciii';T k

7 t"
RN 314 678 930 CA

You are in DEFAULT under the terms of the security for the subject loan and BDC hereby
invokes the acceleration clause contained in the security and demands the repayment of the
loan in full.

1  Loan No. 01 |
Principal $2,640,960.00 1
interest $93,373.96 |
Held in Reserve Account without interest ($96,068.29) 1
TOTAL $2,638,265.57 |
Daily interest $434.48 1

Daily interest is required up to and including the date of payment. Interest is compounded
monthly and the daily interest amount will increase as a result.

If the sum is not received within 10 days from the date of this letter. BDC shaii take such action
as may be necessary to enforce its rights as set out in the security.

We enclose the Form 86 Notice of intention to Enforce Security pursuant to Subsection 244(1) of
the Bankfiif^f anclinsoivency Act.

Yours trgly,

I
^^nio^ Account Manager. Special Accounts
T (403) 2S2-4945
E hardeep.singh(g)bdc.ca

Adriaiie Grabarevic

Area Office Manager. Special Accounts
T 604-666-4266

E Adrian0.grabar0vic@bdc.ca

End. Form 86

CC: 1119658 Alberta Ltd.. & Kuideap (Kelly) Kaur Maan

Devetopm>?nt Bank oi Cani-.-j.a
Sr'S?ci.ai Aixnunts
153& - 3Z~ -vcnij" E Sii'le 'CO
Ca'ga^. ."B TZr. .'C'S T s a-'ia c-BCC v.v.v.' W: cji

CjIBO
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Notice of Intention to Enforce a Security
(Rule'124)

To: 101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd, insolvent person.

Take notice that'

1. Business Development Bank of Canada, a secured creditoi', intends to enfofce its security on the
i.nsolvent person s property described beiov/:

Land and building located at 2 Kelsey Bay Yorkton, Saskatchewan (Lots Tl -12)

All personal property of the insolvent person except consumer goods.

2  The sscLiniy that is to be enforced is in the form of a Mortgage and General Security Agreement.

i  1 -jj 3. f he tola! amount of the indebtedness secured by the security is 52,633.265.67 as at August. 2j.
2018 with interest thereafter at the Bank's floating base rate per annum compounded monthly and
all costs and charges of enforcement.

L! '-I The secured creditor will not have the right to enforce the security until after the expiration of the
ID-day period after this notice is sent unless the Insolvent person consents to an earlier
enforcement.

Dated at Calgary AB., this 23rd day of August, 2018.

BUSINESS DEVELOPiMENT BANK OF CANADA

Adriane Grabarevic, Office-pManageL Soecisl Accounts

y /

U Aanane hraoarevic, ur//ce
// y.

;  I jj ̂ A yfy  Hardukp Sin^!^, Senior Amount Manager, Special Accounts
CONSENT AND WAIVER

THE UNDERSiGNED he.reby:

1  Acknowledges receipt of the above Form 36 Notice.

2 Waives the ten day period of notice required under Seclion 244 or the Bankruptcy and Insolvency
Act; and

o  Consents to the immediate enforcement by Business Developrnent Bank of Canada of the
Security referred to In the above Form 86 Notice.

DAT ED at this day of , 201S.

1012B54S1 Saskatchewan Ltd.

Per:

Aulbohzed Signalory

i1 .h : 0 ■'
<•' -■ 2. o u.
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August 23. 20-13

l^GISTBRED nECCa-fVIAlMDB
OOr/iEBT'C ::vGm:x -HTEnfHUJ?
i'lrin'MairLcirr > !■"(: liLKu

.1

101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd.
Choice Quality Inn
1215 -5"^ Street
Eslevan.SK. S4A 0Z5

Subject: BDC Loan, Account No. 089712-01

Dear Sir/iVladsm:

jSggmj

.... y...y....

' V-
RN :314 578 S2G CA

You are in DEFAULT under the terms of the security for the subject loan and BDC hereby
invokes the acceleration clause contained in the security and demands the repayment of the
loan in full.

The .amount due and payable on the date of this lettgr is:
Loan No. 01 ;

Principal $2,640,960.00 i
Interest $93,373.96
Held in Reserve Account without interest ($96,068.29)
TOTAL $2,638,265.67 |
Daily interest $434.48 1

Daily interest is required up lo and including the date of payment. Interest is compounded
monthly and the daily interest amount will increase as a result.

If the sum is not received within 10 days from the date of this letter, BDC shall take such action
as may be necessary to enforce its rights as set out in the security.

We enclose the Form 86 Nolice of iniention to Enforce Security pursuant to Subsection 244{i) of
the Bcinkrtipkrp ancPlnsolvency Aci.

.// yf

Yours'fruiv, ,// /. ' ]
/ X ' / / y //, ' /

/

\i\  H^raeep Singn ^
^^nior Account Manager, Special Accounts

T (403) 292-4945
E hardeep.singh@bdc.ca

Adriarle Gra bare vie
Area Office Manager, Special Accounts
T 604-666-4266
E Adrian0.grab2revic@bdc.ca

End. Form 86

r»;;ai:-25S D:.'ve!oi:rncnt Bii'k lif C'.M iJa
t2i;c;-al Acr:2U!;ls
\i~ib' At;cn;3N if ir:

.v.v.v bj; r-i

y n 'K C :?
-  - ^
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FORM 86

,Notice o f intention to Enforce a Security
(Rule 124)

Tg: 101285451 Saskatchewan Ltd, an insolvent person.

Take notice that:

1. Business Development Sank of Canada, a secured creditor, intends to enforce its security an the
insolvent person's property described below;

Land and building located at 2 Kelsey Bay Yorklon, Saskatchewan (Lots 11-12)

All personal property of the insolvent person except consumer goods.

2. The security that is to be enforced is in the form of a Mortgage and General Security Agreement.

3. The total amount of the indebtedness secured by the security is 52.538,265.67 as at August 23.
2018 with interest thereafter at the Bank's floating base fatf3 per annum compounded monthly and
ail costs and charges rjf Gnforcement.

A. The secured creditor will not have the right to enforce the security until after the expiration of the
lO-day psnod after this notice is sent unless the insolvent person consents to an earlier
enforcamant.

Dated at Calgary AB.. this 23rd day of August, 2018.

BUSINESS DEYELOPMEMT BANK 01- CANADA

QJ 0

Adriane Grabarevt.c, Aiea'tftdice Manaoer. Special Accounts
.yy / " /

^  V / 'ilLr
Harde^ Singh/' Senior Ab^ount Managi^r. Special Accounts

iL''

CONSENT AND WAIVER

THE UNDERSIGNED hereby;

1  Acknov,'ledges receipt of the above Form 86 Notice:

2. Waives the ten day psnod of notice required under Sectioh 244 or the Bankruptcy and Insolvency

Act; and

3. Consents to the immediate enforcement by Business Development Bank of Canada of the
Security referred io In the above Form 86 Motios.

DATED at ., this clay of . 2018.

101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd.

Per-

Authorized Signatory

y

y fi ■' O "j
L J o



bj

taJ

I

J

w

%^.x>

August 23. 2013

101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd.

Choice Quality Inn
2- Kelsey Bay
Yorkton, SK. S3N 405

u-.

2018 - 03-

"! 'r-.'-'SaTr.-.- —7

'•' •-••. ■•••IT • - .

■ \r RN 314 6?0 9-1S?8 912 CA

y

y

Subject: EDO Loan, Account No. 089712-01

Dear Sir/Madam;

You are In DEFAULT under the terms of the security for the subject loan and BOG hereby
invokes the acceleration ciause contained in the security and demands the repayment of the
loan in fuil.

The amount due and payable cn the date of this letter is:
Loan No. 01

i Principal
i  Interest

$2.540.960.00 !
$93,373.96

I Held in Pseserx^e Account without Interest 1
j TOTAL
1 D^^ily interest

$2,633,265.67
3434.48 !

Daily interest is required up to and Including the date of payment, interest is compounded
monthly and the daily interest amount will increase as a result.

if the sum is not received within 10 days from the date of this letter, BOG snail taice such action
as may be necessary to enforce its rights as set out in the security.

We enclose the 66 Notice of intention to Enforce Security pursuant to Subsection 244(1) of
the Bankn.jp(cy"an3fns;:)lx^ency Act.

Yours truly,

\  Harciesp bingh
•Senior Account Manager, Special Accounts
T (403) 232-4945
E hardeep 5inghi@bdc.ca

End. Form 86
August 23. 2018

Ad rian e^ira b a re vie
Area Office Manager, Special Accounts
T 604-666-4266
E Adriane.grabarevic@bdc.ca

(01235461 Saskatchewan Ltd.

A  1:
4 J U
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FORlVi 86

Notice of Intention to Enforce a Security
(Rule 124)

To: 101285461 Saskatchewan Ltci. an insoivenl person.

Take nolice that:

I Business Deveiopment Bank of Canada, a secured creditor, intends to enforce its security on the
insoivent person's property described below:

Land and building located at 2 Kelsey Bay Yorkton, Saskatchewan {Lols11-12)

Ail personal property of Ihs Insolvent person except consumer goods.

The security that is to be enforced is in Ihe form of a iVlortgage and General Security Agreement.

The total amount of the indebtedness secured by the security is 62,638,265 67 as at August 23,
2018 with interest thereafter at the Bank's floating base rate per annum compounded monthly and
alt costs and charges of enforcement.

The secured creditor will not have the right to enforce the security until after the e;<piration of the
10-day period after this notice Is sent unless the Insolvent person consenis to an earlier
onforcement.

Dated at Calgary AB , this 23rd day of August, 2018.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT BANK OF CANADA

Adriane Grabarevic. Area Manner, Spec^l Accounts
-v

■'TU'r
Hardeeii Singh. S^/or Account Manager. Special Accounls

h-

CONSENT AND WAfVER

THE UNDERSIGNED hereby:

1. Acknov/iedges receipt of the above Form B6 Notice;

2. Waives the ten day period of notice required i./nder Section 244 of the Bankruptcy and Insoivency
Act; and

3. Consents to the immediate enforcement by Business Development Bank of Canada of the
Security referred to in the above Form 36 Notice.

DATED at day of ., 2018.

101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd.
Per:

y

y

y

Auihcrizsd Signatory

Pr • O T,*
0
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August 23. 2018

101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd.

Choice Quality Inn
5002-34 Avenue

Dray ton Valley, AB. T7A 006

'JOiViSSTIC 8E61IVlFnMTEnigcTr. I J;

O'^rUUU 1

i  V7\NC0Dvgrv V-F> i.. Rf-^ 314 57Q gjjg

Subject: BOG Loan, Account No. G89712-01

Dear Sir/Madain;

You are in DEFAULT under the terms of the security for the subject loan and BOG hereby
invokes the acceleration clause contained in the security and demands the repayment of the
loan in full.

The amount clue and payable on the date of this letter is:
1

Loan No. 01

Principal $2,640,960.00

Interest 593.373.96

Held in Reserve Account vvithout interest (S96.Q63.29)

TOTAL $2,638,265.67
Daiiv interest $434.48

Daily Interest is required up to and including the date of payment. Interest is compounded
monthly and the daily interest amount vyil! increase as a result.

If the sum is not received within 10 days from the date of this letter, BDC shall take such action
33 may be necessary io enforce Its rights as set out in the security.

We enclose the Form 86 Notice of Intention to Enforce Security pursuant to Subsection 244{1) of
the Bankruptcy and insolvency Act.

Yours truly, y"

d
\\ Hardesdeep Sing

z.
■'/

h
/C.

Seiner Account Manager. Special Accounts
T (403} 292-4945
E hardeep.singh@bdc.ca

End. Form 86

/  V ^

Adriane Grabarevic
.Area Office Manager, Special .Accounts
T 604-566-4265
E Adriane.grsbarevic@bdc.ca

y

y

y

MVi

C.J'-'Wfv A" irJi "a". ■I'.'.'-i.sC-: l-'v-J-jSiru'

C}:C6
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 Intention to Enforce a Sscurliy
(Rule 124)

To; 101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd. an insolvent person.

Take notice thst;

1. Business Development Bank of Canada, a secured creditor, intends to enforce Us sacurily on the
insolvent person's property described below;

Lanrj and building located at 2 Kaisey Say Yorkton, Saskatchewan (Lols11-12)

All personal property of the insolvent person except consumer goods

2. The security that is to be enforced Is in the form of a Mortgage and General Security Agreement.

U 3. The total amount of the indebtedness secured by the security is S2.633,265 67 as at August 23.
2018 with interest thereafter at the Bank's floating base rate per annum compounded monthly and
all costs and charges of enforcement.

^  4 The secured creditor vviil not have the right to enforce the security until after the expiration of the
10-day period after this notice is sent unless the insolvent person consents to an earlier
enforcement.

j-ated 3l Calgary AB.. this 23rd day of August, 2018.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT BANK OF CANADA

C  a

Adriane Grabarevic, Area Special Accounts

1 1 Hardeep^ Singh, Se/i^Accounf iV/a7?ager. S..OGcrar/Af:cat.'nfs

l1
CONSENT AND WAIVER

THE UNDERSIGNED hereby

1  Acknowledges receipt of the above Form 86 Notice;

2. 'vVaives the ten day period of notice required under Section 244 of the Bankruptcy and jnsoivencv
.Act; and

3. Consents to the immediate eniorcemeni by Business Development Bank of Canada of the
Security referred io in the .above Form 86 Notic-e

DA I ED at , , this day of , 2018.

101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd.
Per:

.Aulhorized Signatory

C 7 2. j f
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August 23. 2018

1119658 Alberta Ltd.
155 Fountain Creek Way
Shervvoou Park. AB. T6B 1C9

v'r:e';:n:rci:-7 c-J

o4DUU'i

Xfflii -yo- "2 3"
:  • : BF-- G,0.

AA«.--r i./cr> • ••

-  I ■ - RN 214 578 885 CA

Subject: BDC Loan, Account No. 089712-01 -101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd.

Dear Sir/Madarn:

We enclose iierevvitii a copy of our notice of our demand addressed to the above named
borrower, which you wiil find self-expianatory.

As you are aware, BDC holds a guarantee as underlying security for the above loan. We
remind you that pursuant to the terms of the guarantee, BDC is not required to realize on the
assets of the borrower mohgaged to BDC before making demand for payment upon you as the
guarantor.

This letter constitutes demand upon you for the satisfaction of your guarantee obligation,
concurrent with BDG's demand upon the company, and, if the indebtedness to BDC is not
settled within 10 days from date of this lener, we propose to take such action as may be
necessan/ for collection thereof.

: Loan Mo. 01
Guarantee Detail
Guarantee Amount Now ^e _

'!y interest on the guarantee amount

^ij loan Qulstandin2_
52,638,265.67
S434,48

Daily interest is required up to and including the date of payment. Interest is compounded
monthly and the daily interest amount wiil increase as a result.

We enclose the Form 66 Notice of intention to Enforce Security pursuant to Subsection 244(1) of
the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act.

Yours truly,
/

// -'7

Hardeep Singh ^
Senndr Account Manager, Special Accounts
T (403) 292-4945
E hardeep.si.ngh@bdc.ca

Adriari^ Grabarevic
Area Office Manager, Special Accounts
T S04-6S6-4266
E Adnane.grabarevic@bdc.ca

hncl.

5 j B.iiik of C.'iOjC'O
Jpocoi Ar/;;:ijn;r>
:  A'.c-'.c'f-JS ■■■<:-; )CD

AA T VQy r i '.vav/!;,tcr.g

n  ̂ q



!  FORM 85
Ud

,  Notice of Intention to Enforce a Security
[J (Rule 124)

To: i1*IS658 Alberta Ltd. an insclveni person.
1

U  T?.ke not!v*:G ( a I:

U 1 Business Deveiopmeni Bank of Canada, a secured creditor, intends to enforce its security on the
insolvent person's property described below:

u

u

Li

U

U

U

Land and building located at 5002-34 Avenue. Drayion yaiiey. Alberta

All personal property of the insolvent person except consuiner goods.

The security that is to be enforced is in the form of a Mortgage and General Sscurily .Agreement.

The total amount of the indebtedness secured by the security is 52,633.265.67 as at August 23,
2018 v/ith interest thereafter at the Bank's floating base rate per annum compounded monthly and
all costs and charges of enforcement.

The secured creditor will nol have the right to enforce the security until after the expiration of the
ID-day period after this notice is sent unless the insolvent person consents to an earlier
enforcement.

Dated at Calgary AB., this 23rd clay of August. 2018

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT BANK OF CAN.ADA

Adriane Grabarevic, Area^ffice k^nager. JSpocia! Accounis

Hardef^ Singb/Seniar Account Manager. Speas! Accounts

CONSENT AND WAIVER

THE UNDERS!GNL=D hereby:

1. Acknowledges receipt of the above Form 86 Notice;

2  Waives the ten day perio-d of notice r-equired under Section 244 of the Bankruptcy and Insolvency

Act; and

3. Consents to the immediate e.nforcement by Business Development Bank of Canada of ttie Security
y  referred to in the above Form 33 Notice.

DATED at , , this day of . 2018.
i  I
J  1119658 Alberta Ltd.

Per

Li

LI

y

AI uhorized Sign a lory

^  JO



August 23, 2018

1119658 Albarta Ltd.

1- 52319 Range Road 231
Shepvvood Park, AB. T8B 1A8

1

■ ■• =^•'25112 !AT::R:PL2 " Hi
i. it"iii) 'nfcueciv

s: 64560^
!L

-flsF "2^-
"  :. SIF' ' ■ ^ i. '^O '

i : i ! ;/7" ■

•]■ H"' ' ■ .
■JA - 314 673 S90 CA

Subject: BDC Loan, Account No. 089712-01 -101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd.

Dear Sir/Madam:

We enclose herewith a copy of our notice of our demand addressed to the above named
borrower, which you will find self-explanatony.

As you are aware, BDC hoids a guarantee as underlying security for the above loan. We
remind you thai pursuant to the terms of the guarantee, BDC is not required to realize on the
assets of the borrower mortgaged to BDC before making demand for payment upon you as the
guarantor.

This latter constitutes demand upon you for the satisfaction of your guarantee obligation,
concurrent v/ith BDC's demand upon the company, and, if the indebtedness to BDC is not
settled within 10 days from date of this letter, vva propose to take such action as may be
n9ces.sary for collection thereof.

:  . Loan No. 01 I
1 Guarantee Detail Full loan outstanding '
1 Guarantee Amount Now Due .$2,638,235.57 j
i Daily interest on the guarantee amount S434 48 i

Daily interest is required up to and including the date of payment. Interest is compounded
monthly and the daily interest amount will increase as a result.

We enclose the Form 86 Notice of l.ntention to Enforce Security pursuant to Subsection 244(1) of
the BankruptpK-^^;)d Insolvency Ac/.

/

Yours truly. / n

y  i / A i' ' '>.'V / A 1/ f'^ y / /
Ha^deep bingh

^Si^ior Account Manaaer, Soecia! Accounts
T (403) 292-4945
E hardeep.singh(®bdc.ca

H,d
Aoriarre Grabarevic
Area Office Manager. Special Accounts
T 604-666-4266
E Adrian2.grabarevic@bdc.ca

J
End.

'■H'.'ii ~ A'"' Avon;-; ICC

n n ' i i
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FORM 86

Notice of fntsntion to Enforce a Security
(Rule 124)

To; 1119653 Alberta Ltd. an insoivent person.

Take nc-ice that:

,  1. Business Development Bank of Canada, a secured creditor, iniends to enforce its security on the
jj insolvent person's property described below:

Land and building located at 5002-34 Avenue, Draylon Valley, Alberta

All personal property of the insolvent person e>:cepl consumer goods.

2. The security that is to be enforciad is in the form of a Mortgage and General Security Agreement.

3. The total amount of the indebtedness secured by the security is S2.638,265 57 as at August 23.
2018 With interest thereafter at the Bank's floating base rate per annum compounded monthly and
all costs and charges of enforcement.

4  The secured creditor v/ill not have the right to enforce the security until after the expiration of the
10-day period after this notice is sent unless the Insolvent person consents to an earlier
enforcement

Dated at Cainary AS,, this 23rd day cf August. 2018.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT BANK OF CANADA

fl (
AdrlanelSrabarevlc. AreajQItpe Manager, Special Accounts

figV , y/yd,
Harciee^ Singh^Sbnior Account Manager, Special Accounts

CONSENT AND WAIVER

THE UNDERSIGNED hereby;

^  1 Acknowledges receipt of the above Form 86 Notice;

"2. Waives the ten day period of nolics required under Section 244 of the Bankruptcy and Insolvency

Act; and

3  Consents io the immediale enforceinent by Business Development Bank of Canada of the Security
referred to in the above Form 86 Notice.

IDATED at , . this day of , 201o,

1119858 Alberta Ltd.

Per

Au'thorized Signalory

0 ;I7
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August 23, 2018

KulrJsep (Keliy ) Kaur ivlaan
523919 Range Road, APrtI
Shepvvcod, AB, T8A 1A8

ni-c-rsTrnRSD ::iiCDr2i\'5Ar.fDE

" _r

2Q18 -08"' ?; i,, . 1

rs

■  aeNtALLp:a"

.  v'\^CQUV£B-V7A-;aq_: R.N 314 -378 943 CA

Subject: BDC Loan, Account No. 08S712-01 -101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd.

Dear Sir:

We enclose herewith a copy of our nolice of our deinand addressed to the above named
borrovyer. which you will find seli-exp!anatory.

As you are aware, BDC holds a guarantee from yourself as underlying security for (lie above
loan. We remind you that pursuant to the terms of the guarantee. BDC is not required to realize
on the assets of the borrower mortgaged to BDC before making demand for payment upon you
as the guarantor.

This letter constitutes demand upon you for the satisfaction of your guarantee obligation,
concurrent with BDC's demand upon the company, and, if the indebtedness to BDC is not
settled within 10 days from date of this letter, we propose to take such action as may be
necessary for collection thereof.

:  Loan No. 01

Guarantee Detail Full loan outstanding
Guarantee Amount Now Due S250.000.00

Daily interest on the gu.arantee amount S39.73

Daily interest is required up to and including the date of payment, interest is compounded
monthly and I he daily interest amount will increase as a result.

Yours truly.
■  /

l-t|! rd 8 e p ,8 i ng h
Senior Account Manager, Special Accounts
T (403) 292-4945
E hardeep singh@bdc ca

End.

Adriane Grabarevic

Area Office Manager Special Accounts
T 604-666-4266

E Adriane.grabarevic(a)bdc.ca

j

niii:n,^S5 Deve'cr-n;-:n: n.:--. C.-'-acJii
:>peci?'l Account'j

i'i35- .I,. '' Avon.".' r j ■; "
O.i'g^ir/ m J2E'CC~ : S v-;;U

.0 n • .-i
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C!i(>ni Muiribiir

C/A Number ..

a;i9"12

03971201

Dtisoipiion

• PRINCIPAL EXCLUDING ARREARS

. PRINCIPAL ARREARS

i  ILJTOREST

j ACCRUED TO
j PROTECTIVE DISBURSEMENT
i  INTEREST ON PROTECTIVE DISBURSEMENT

v.!,®

2.RI3.-35Q 00 .

i  27,510.0!) !
"  "03373VaiV! V- ■

22/03/20111

Total

0.00

0.00

2,731,333.96

Dt^wnpunn

TAX ACCOUNT

DEPOSIT ACCOUNT WiTM IMTF.RLSTS

DEF^OSrr ACCOUNT WriHOUT INTERESTS

DAILY !N FEREST ACCRUAL

DAILY 101 .ACCRUAL

INTEREST RAFE PLA.N

EFPtCnVE EASE RAI E

VARIANCE RATE

INTEREST ADIU.STMHNT iOATE

PROT.DISB. - DAILY INTEREST ACCRUAL

OPTION EXPIPV DATE

Vali.i^

Total Deposit

Total Net

000 •

i}.00 I
96.05S29 I -«/'
96,068.29 i

I 2.638,265.67 i
v' -I

.■119.65 :
M'r  i z \

.  i-i .83 J-
0.~ii!v Host

s acQooo';:-. i

0.000000% I
r

0 00

::2/08/2013

D!;:c:;;imefs:

: C'.'\ns'i '.io roi inciudtr. ("leyo'/nie'V innenini^/ micrt-i; (•.•h'ef.j-rv.j-ji. . "^-t . ri.'..{'nl v!-:; .ia 'A and rc/airte^ and tiv?
..•n.Mn' o.a'ioM c^sk saiadon? -o the letter >)f C;Zt ije-:/'! ot Ai^enu-n^nt, C:rc;ii:;:5 aitd thi;; 'sviseti
CoiiAjiuv ;'i;:v;ijra

.;. E-JCi'O.v acccii::; bri.r.-'.re-i = ' JSt be -.in-iiyzeci MV.erriai!-/ b.?!or.:: rnnlirniin!.} tn-*-:! 'iriMrp.*; to the-born-.-.-.c-r
3 riouhntj Pian D.-isiy ..'tcrvj: i.iibjed "n un{/radon;!' r ue rhanne

y

y lMMv,.'ahc.su-vvcb,corn.biic.ca'cii/()R97in.'0I.''(m'rieil)eiail/tl4()c'>77h-2ric--l:iad-;i56()-a7... 23/OH/2(0f?'I 7.3
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Ciifint Nun^ber 0S9712 ©

Ffoin 01/08/2017 To 22/03/2013

C/A Mumbgr.... 08971201 UOI285461 Saskatch-nvan Ud.

"  Tfons-

1 action

: Data

Pr;riC!p5! Interest

i

L5 Royalties ree.'

i

^ Otiior

; 23/03/2017 -5,170.00 -11,523.84 0.00 0.00 •J.000.00

i 25/09/2017 9.170.00 11,7/7.95 000 •V50.00 ■3,000.00

!  23/10/2017 ■9,170.00 -11,624.25 O.QO o.no ■i.OOO.GO

, 23/11/2017 ■5,170.00 ■11.570.45 0.00 0.00 •3.000.00

j 27/12/2017 •5470.00 -i 1.594.39 O.CiO 0.00 -] 7.610.05

-  29/12/2017 5,1?0.{10 11,594.39 0.00 000 •6,104.36

;  12/01/2013 •9 .170.0-0 -11,544 41 O.CO 0.00 20,714.41

; 23/01/2018 -9,170.00 12,014.76 f'.OO 0.00 -;:0.610.0.5

!  25/05/2018 9.170.00 12,014.75 o.co 0.00 3,458.24

1 23/02/2013 0.00 -.13,017.57 Q.OO 000 23,610.05

• 25/02/2018 0.00 43,017.57 0.00 o.co 23,610.05

i 27/02/2013
i

0.00 C.OO O.CO -i.aoo.oo -12,300.00

j 23/03/2018 0.00 ■36.086.39 O.OG ■4,0.25.00 . -26.610.05

I 27/03/201S 0.00 35,086.89 0,00 4.02.5.00 '■ 14.] 10,05

i 24/04/2012 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,500.00

i 25/05/2018 0.00 •6,r<.19.95 0.00 i; ■4,050.00 ' V-''' -2.UO.OS
-

'
Total -45.850.00 -64,780.33 O.GD ""^oo^oo -73.578.34

LI

U

u htl.D://ahesa-\veh.corD.bdc.cn/en/{)S9712/0 i /(')07/( ie{DeUni/0S971201 22/08/20 nj: 74
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This is Exhibit "O" referred to in the Affidavit of
Hardeep Singh sworn before me on the ^
day of November, 2018.

)
A Commissfoner for Oaths in and )
for the Province of Alberta )

A/

3  ̂

00184182 --4I39'5361-5384 v.l
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TOWN OF DRAYTON VALLEY
BOX 6837, 5120-52 STREET
DRAYTON VALLEY, AB T7A 1A1

Phone: 780.514.2200 Fax: 780.542.5753

Website: www.draytonvalley.ca

Rol I Number:

TAX CERT I F I CATE

53107700 Certificate Number: 1154

Legal Description: Lot -Block
8  -151

Muni ci pal Address: 5002 34 AVENUE
Property Area;

-PI an

0720020

LINC #: 0032162174

Ti tl e #: 072004376

Tax Year: 2018 2017 2018
Tax Levy: $ 24, 320. 36 19,623. 52
SuppI ementary Tax Levy: $ .00 .00
Local Improvement Levy: $ 12,918.62 12,918.62
Local Improvement Expiration Date: 2022

Current Taxes Outstandi ng: S
Arrears Taxes Outstandi ng: $

Total amount of taxes payabi e at thi s date: $

37. 423. 46

37, 423. 46

Thi s certi fi cate i s bi ndi ng on the muni ci pal i ty onl y to the date bel ow and
does not include taxes on bui ldings that are under construction but not yet
assessed, and that may be added to the tax rol I by the muni ci pal i ty as
provi ded for i n the Muni ci pal Government Act, and does not i ncl ude any money
owi ng to the muni ci pal i ty but not to thi s date added to the tax rol I of the
muni ci pal i ty under the provi si on of any statute.

For an abstact of encumbrances other than taxes, appiy to:
The Registrar, Land Title Offices. Edmonton, Alberta

Tax payments returned by the bank after the date certi fi ed wi I I make thi s
certi fi cate voi d.

Your Fi I e ID. 184182

MCLENNAN ROSS LLP
600 MCLENNAN ROSS BUILDING
12220 STONY PLAIN ROAD
EDMONTON AB T5N 3Y4

cto/M)
Mai ri 3m\ Xrv
Revenue Manager
Town of Drayton Val I ey
2018/11/16 16:28:07

I' ̂  11 b
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This is Exhibit "P" referred to in the Affidavit of

Hardeep Singh sworn before me on the
day of November, 2018.

Ml

i  1 )
A Commissioner for Oaths in and )
for the Province of Alberta )

J  l^eA.3

i
001841S2 -4139-5361-5384 v.]

/  t



I CITY OF YORKTON
^ P.O. BOX 400

YORKTON, SK S3N 2W3
!  Tel.:(306)786-J736 Fa.x: (306) 786-6880

Cdiyof gA
¥)]itpn

TAX CERTIFICATE

Tax (Folio) No.: 000 0515100300

Name of Registered Owiier(s): 101285461 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.

PARKLAND INN

BOX 79202

SHERWOOD PARK AB T8A 583

Date: 16-Nov-18

CertlHcate No.:26663

Property Address: 2 KELSEY BAY

Legal Description: LOT: 11-12

ZONE: C-3

Extra Legal ISC PARCEL NOS. 142833685/142833674

2018 Assessments Property

Gross Exempt Net G

BLOCK: 7

YEAR BUILT: 1999

ross

- Land ~

Exempt Net

Lot Size; SEE FIELD SHEET

PLAN NUMBER: 99Y06931

Improvements

Gross Exempt

Assessed Value

Taxable Value

Utility Billing

Account No.

7567000

7567000

7567000

7567000

Billing
Period Amount Owing

0

0

Last Levy

0

0

Billing Period

Net Total NET

Due Date

I

U

035-0001190-000

035-0001190-001

035-0001195-000

035-0001195-001

Tax Information

BIMTH2

BIMTH2

BIMTH2

BIMTH2

2018 Tax Levy:

i Balance as of 16-Nov-18
Current;

Total Due:

1602.04

0.00

1110.71

0.00

198558.09

203522.04

406656.80

1602.04

2061.17

1110.71

1819.65

Penalty:

Arrears:

Interest:

01/09/2018

01/07/2015

01/09/2018

01/07/2015

4963.95

203134.76

0.00

31/10/2018

31/08/2015

31/10/2018

31/08/2015

30/11/2018

17/09/2015

30/11/2018

17/09/2015

This )tl

X HEREBY CERTIFY that the above information is correct.

Dated at YORKTON^ Saskatchewan

day of at o* clock

J
OIVEH UHDBR AUTHORITY of

SSCT20E 246.1 of the CITIES ACT of the PROVOilCE OF SASEATCHBS9AN

EXCL0DIH6 AHY POSSIBLE SUPPLEMENTAL BILLINGS

U J Ji / 0
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This is Exhibit "Q" referred to in the Affidavit of
Hardeep Singh sworn before me on the
day of November, 2018.

U  )
■  A Commissioner for Oaths in and )

for the Province of Alberta )
J

_  Sio

00184182-4139-5361-5384 v.l

r»
•- 1. t



bdc'
May 18, 2017

DOMESrlc^ ^^COMIMANDE
"Efucucuwr

_pettJfi3t3rfg
Worn

33-0a6-SW U4-06)

Ms. Kuldeep (Kelly) Maan
1119658 Alberta Ltd.

155 Fountain Creek Way
Sherwood Park, AB.. TBS 109

Subject: BDC Loan Account No.089654-01

''X

^'^0 /

Ms. Maan:

Further to our discussions please be advised that if the defaults on your account set out below
are not satisfied within 15 days of the date of this letter the Bank will be obliged to demand full
repayment of your loan.

ARREARS

Amounts in arrears:

Principal
TOTAL

Mult no. 01

$64,120.00

$64,120.00

Your cheque for the arrears set out above must be received within 15 days of the date of this
letter. Please ensure there are adequate funds in your account to cover the upcoming regularly
scheduled payment as well.

TOTAL CARE PROGRAM

We enclose the Total Care Program brochure for your information.

CONTACT

Please contact the undersigned as soon as possible so that we can address these Issues.

Yours tri

l^nd^p Singh
Senior Account Manager, Special Accounts
T (403) 292-4945
E hardeep.singh@bdc.ca

Adriane Grabarevic

Area Office Manager, SA
T 604-666-4266

E Adriane.grabarevic@bdc.ca

CC: 101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd., & Kuldeep (Kelly) Kaur Maan

Business Development Bank ol Canada

Special Accounts
Sovereign Building. 250 • 6500 MacLecd Trail SE
Calgary, AB T2H 0L3 1 683 Inlo-BDC www bdc ca

n  ' o



Aoacus v^ueries - [nummary oi caiances ̂ueiaiijj rage i ori

Client Number

C/A Number

089654

08965401

LV

I Description

PRINCIPAL

INTEREST

Outstanding (Includes payments In arrears) Arrears
I

2,683,880.00 64,120.00 i
I

8,661.98 0.00 i

Total 2,692,541.98 64,120.00 1

Description

UNDISBURSED

INTEREST RATE PLAN

EFFECTIVE BASE RATE

SPREAD RATE

INTEREST ADJUSTMENT DATE

BILLTVPE

FREQUENCY

NEXT PAYMENT DATE

NEXT PRINQPAL DUE

TARGET IRR

AaUALIRR

! Value

Daily float

0.00 I

4.700000% I

0.000000 % j
1

I

PRINQPAL ONLY

MONTHLY

23/05/2017

9,160.00 ;

0.000000% I

-0.890450 %J

Vittn"//nHr>cn-i*;pK r>r>m hrlr rn/p'n/nROARd./ni /OnT/r*f»tnptail/nSQASiini iR/nR/9ni7

n  " Q
-  .L j



Aoacus ̂^uenes - [L^ustomer raymencs vueiaiijj rage i oi i

J

M Client Number

From

089654

01/03/2017 To 18/05/2017

C/A Number._. 08965401 1119658 Alberta Ltd.

tpU

Trans

action

Date

01/03/2017

Principal !  Interest $

0.00 -10,716.17

Royalties $

0.00

Fees

0.00

23/03/2017 -54,960.00 -9,682.19 0.00 0.00

27/03/2017 54,960.00 9,682.19 0.00 0.00

29/03/2017 0.00 -9,682.19 0.00 0.00

24/04/2017 -64,120.00 -10,718.44 0.00 0.00

1  i
26/04/2017 64,120.00 10,718.44 0.00 0.00

Im
11/05/2017 0.00 -10,718.44 0.00 0.00

Total 0.00 -31,116.80 0.00 0.00

O

lA
U-s

ther

0.00

0.00 j
0.00 I
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Kttrk'//oIvcn_i»;#aK nrtm KHr» r»n/#*r»/n20^^4/n 1 /r^n7/n#*rr\#»tall/n20/\'^a.n 1 ia/n^nai7

f! * P
•- .1 J



bdc'
registered recommande
DOMESTIC REGIME INTERIEUR
CUSTOMER RECEIFT REfU JJU CUEHT

pertinataife
Nofn

May 18. 2017
CiP//PtBK/Poml Code Viiic/p(ov.;a[ii.poiiji j

Ms. Kuldeep {Kelly) Maan ""7^ -—\g, ̂  'A.—S
101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd. ^ f^\
PO Box 79202 RPO Nottingham ~ ^ ̂  ̂t\
Sherwood Park, AB. TBA 583 ' Wy ̂  \

;  >^ 9 ̂
Subject: BDC Loan, Account No 089712-01 \>l

RN 232 473 546 CA

Ms. Maan:

Further to our discussions please be advised that if the defaults on your account set out below
are not satisfied within 15 days of the date of this letter the Bank will be obliged to demand full
repayment of your loan.

ARREARS

Amounts in arrears:

Principal
Tax Reserve Account

TOTAL

Mult, no. 01

$27,510.00
$3,000.00

$30,510.00

TOTAL CARE PROGRAM

We enclose the Total Care Program brochure for your information.

CONTACT

Please contact the undersigned as soon as possible so that we can address these issues.

Yours truly,

H^l^ep Singh
Senior Account Manager, Special Accounts
T (403) 292-4945
E hardeep.singh@bdc.ca

Adriane Grabarevic

Area Office Manager, SA
T 604-666-4266

E Adriane Grabarevice@bdc.ca

CO: 1119658 Alberta Ltd., & Kuldeep (Kelly) Kaur Maan

Business Development Bank of Canada
Special Accounts
Sovereign Building. 250 • 6500 MacLeod Trail SE
Calgary, AB T2H 0L3 1 086 Info-SDC wwv bdc.ca

,ri O •*}
jO



/\oacus - [auniiimry oi oamnccii vi^eiaii;j rage 1 ui i

Client Number

C/A Number ....

089712

08971201

n
«i-d

Description

PRINQPAL

INTEREST

DEPOSIT WITHOUT INT.-OVERDUE INSTALMENT

Outstanding (Includes payments in arrears) Arrears

2,723,490.00 27,510.00

8,789.81 0.00

3,000.00 3,000.00

Total 2,735,279.81 30,510.00

Description

DEPOSIT ACCOUNT WITHOUT INTERESTS

UNDISBURSED

INTEREST RATE PLAN

EFFECTIVE BASE RATE

SPREAD RATE

INTEREST ADJUSTMENT DATE

BILLT7PE

FREQUENCY

NEXT PAYMENT DATE

NEXT PRINQPAL DUE

TARGET IRR

ACTUAL IRR

Total Deposit

Total Net

Value

Daily float

17,000.00

17,000.00

2,718,279.81

0.00

4.700000 %

0.000000 %

PRINQPAL ONLY

MONTHLY

23/05/2017

9,170.00

0.000000 %

-0.957880 %

httn*//nhp<;n-\vf»h mm hrir rn/pn/OROVl9/01/nni/.Gp.tnetail/nRQ71701 iR/ns/9ni7

p. o ■
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This is Exhibit "R" referred to in the Affidavit of
Hardeep Singh sworn before me on the SLo
day of November, 2018.

)
A Commis^ner for Oaths in and )
for the Province of Alberta )

u
00184182.4139-5361-538-1 V. I

n  « r
^ . J. J O
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1119658 Alberta Ltd.

(Operating as: Westwood Inn)

Financial Statements

June 30, 2017

(Unaudited)

V' ■, „ J vj
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Allan J. GiykuIiak.CP.4.
Scoft T. Moc.kford, CPA,

.Allen Lee. CPA, CM1A'=

Jason Bondarewch, CPA, (lA*

® OperalK a<i a rrofe.«ional Corporation

nOYUE &rQMPANY
jL-/cHA RT£BEI>\^M?OFESS10\At

accoontakts

1J 210 -107 Avenue N.W., 2ud Fir

Edmonuin, Alhena T5H OVl

Tel (7S0) 452-2300, Pax (780) 432-2335

J

REVIEW ENGAGEMENT REPORT

To the Shareholders of 1119658 Alberta Ltd.

We have reviewed the balance sheet of 1119658 Alberta Ltd. (Operating as: Wesfrwood Inn) as at
June 30, 2017 and the statements of deficit, earnings, and cash flows for the year then ended. Our review
was made in accordance with Canadian generally accepted standards for review engagements and
accordingly consisted primarily of enquiiy, analytical procedures, and discussion related to information
supplied to us by the company.

A review does not coiisiilute an audit and consequently we do not express an audit opinion on these
financial statements.

Based on our review nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that these financial
statements are not, in all material respects, in accordance with Canadian Accounting Standards for
Private Enterprises.

Edmonton, Alberta

October 31,2017 Chartered Professional Accountants

r. " ? O
v' . .1 J o
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1119658 Alberta Ltd.

(Operating as: Westwood Inn)

Balance Sheet

As at June 30, 2017

(Unaudited)

J 2017

s

2016

(Note 12)
S

:  i
hJ ASSETS

i
u

!
u

Current

Cash

GST receivable

Corporate taxes recoverable
Due from related parties (Note 3)
Inventory for consumption
Prepaid expenses

20,463

23,059

2,935,151
3,000
12,610

632,843
996

53,752
2,816,307

5,069
25.719

2,994,283 3,534,686

Investments 796,317 783,365

U Capital As.sets (Note 4) 1,733,302 1.821,281

5,523,902 6,139,332

ij
l.lABILriTES

Current

Accounts payable (Note 5)
GST payable
Shareholders loan (Note 6)
Current portion of lone-temi debt (Note 8)

39,306
1,638

789,151

127.812

35,470

1,167^15

99,510

u 957,907 1,302,295

LonR-Term Debt (Note 8) 2,608,628 2,674,504
1

bMi
3,566,535 3,976,799

RETAINED E.ARNINGS

1 Share Capital (Note 9) 100 100

Retained Earnings 1,957,267 2,162,433

1.957,367 2,162,533
1

u 5,523,902 6,139,332

1

u

Approved by the Board of Directors:

Director

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

r. 0 c\
^ ^ j j
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I  1119658AlbertaLtd.
^  (Operating as: Westwood Inn)

Statement of Retained Earnings

J  For the year ended June 30, 2017
(Unaudited)

J

J

J

2017

$

2016

(Note 12)
$

Balance, beginning of year

Net loss for the year

2,162,433

(205,166)

2,434,129

(271,696)

Balance, end of year 1,957,267 2,162,433

I  The accompanying notes form part of tJiese financial statements.
J  3.

fJ ' n /"!
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1119658 Alberta Ltd.

(Operating as: Westwood Inn)

Statement of Earnings

For the year ended June 30, 2017

(Unaudited)

2017 2016

(Note 12)
$ $

Revenue 226,101

Expenses
Advertising and promotion 2,657 3,902
Amortization 77,489 116,665
Bu.siness ta.xes & dues 4,870 3,196
Property (axes 37,037 55,676
Insurance 23,264 "26,499
Interest and bank charges 6,050 9,239
Interest, long-terra obligations 126,740 119,672
Office 225 589

Professional fees 2,528 45,264
Management fees 14,550 19,744
Repairs and maintenance 14,641 11,819
Hotel taxes 8,224 6,337
Supplies 20,227 19,763
Telephone, utlitites and internet 61,372 59.861

Travel 10,133 2,861
Wages and employee benefits 51,291 54,230
Workers compensation board 120 -

461,418 555,317

Loss before Other Income (234,381) (329,216)

Other Income

Interest 2,502 3.768

Loss before Income Taxes (231,879) (325,448)

Income Taxes

Current (recovery) (26,713) (53,752)

Net Loss for the Year (205,166) (271,696)

J
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

4.

( n

I. :>■



u

1119658 Alberta Ltd.

(Operating as: WestTVood Inn)

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended June 30,2017

(Unaudited)

2017

$

2016

(Note 12)
$

Operating Activities
Cash received from customers

Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Interest paid

227,037

(163,583)
(126,740)

226,101

(487,321)
(119,672)

(63,286) (380,892)

Financing Activides
Advances to related parties
Advances (to) from shareliolders
Proceeds Irom long term debt
Repayment of long term debt

(118,844)
(378,164)

(37,574)

(2,176,858)
69,447

2,750,000
(679,585)

(534,582) (36,996)

Investing Activities
Increase in investments

Additions to capital assets

(12,952)

(1,560)

(7,819)
(7,696)

(14,512) (15,515)

Increase in Cash during the Year (612,380) (433,403)

Cash, beginning of year 632,843 1,066,246

Cash, end of year 20,463 632,843

J

Tlie accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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1119658 Alberta Ltd.

(Operating as: Westwood Inn)

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30,2017

(Unaudited)

Nature of Operations

1119658 Alberta Ltd. (the "Company") is a privately owned company incorporated in July 26, 2004 under tlic
Business Corporations Act of the Pro\'ince of Alberta. The Company's principal business activity is the provision of
operating a motel in Drayton Valley, Alberta. The Company operates as a Westwood Inn.

L  Significant Accounting PoHcies

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian Accounting Standards for Private
Enterprises. The significant accounting policies are described below;

(a) Cash

Cash consists of funds on deposit at a Canadian financial institution.

(b) Inventory for consumption

Inventory consists of hotel room supplies and is valued at tlie lower of cost and net realizable value.

(c) Investments

Investments consists of land and is recorded at cost.

(d) Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost. Tlie company provides for amortization using the decling balance
method at the following rates to amortize the cost of the capital a.ssets over their estimated useful lives.

The annual amortization rates arc as follows:

Land 0%

Automotive 30%

Building 4%

Computer equipment 30%

Equipment and furniture 20%

Parking and paving 4%

Signs 20%

It is management's policy to only recognize capital asset additions which are over a minimum cost of
$500.

(e) Income taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using tlie future income taxes method. Under this method,
future income tax assets and liabilities are recorded based on temporary differences between the
carrv'ing amount of balance sheet items and their corresponding tax bases. In addition, the future
benefits of income tax assets, including unused tax losses, are recognized, subject to a valuation
allowance, to the extent that it is more likely than not that such fiiture benefits will ultimately be
realized. Future income tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates
and laws expected to apply when the tax liabilities or assets are to be either settled or rcaiiz-ed.

(0 Revenue Recognition

Revenue from hotel services and products are recognized at the point of sale.

6.
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1119658 Alberta Ltd.

(Operating as: Westvvood Inn)

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30,2017

(Unaudited)

Measurement uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian Accounting Standards for Private
Enterprises requires management to make estimates and assumptions that effect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of reveriue and expenses during tlie reported period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Due from Related Parties

2017

S

2016

$

101285461 Sa.skatchewan Ltd.

1058205 Alberta Ltd.

2,303,492
631,659

2.178,759
637,548

2,935,151 2,816,.307

10J285461 Saskatchewan Ltd. is related by common control and 1058205 Alberta Ltd. is related due to
being controlled by related persons.

The amounts due from related parties, are non-interest bearing, unsecured and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

J

Capital Assets
2017 2016

Accumulated Net book Net book

Cost

$

Amortization

$

Value

$

Value

$

Land 278,949 278,949 278,949

Automotive 94,212 76,146 18,066 25,809

Building 2,352,947 983,471 1,369,476 1,426,538

Computer equipment 7,576 7,437 139 199

Equipment and furniture 173,825 129,081 44,744 54,174

Parking and paving 47,322 28,855 18,467 31,286

Signs 22,921 19,460 3,461 4.326

2,977,752 1,244,450 1,733,302 1,821,281

5.

I
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Accounts Payable

2017

S

Trade

Vacation payable
CRA - .source dedtictions payable

35,089

663

3,554

39,306

2016

$

31,813

2,662

995

35,470

C  • O /,
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1119658 Alberta Ltd.

kJ (Operating as; Westwood Inn)

Notes to the Financial Statements

u  June 30,2017

(Unaudited)

6. Shareholder Loan
!

^  Amounts owing to the shareholder are unsecured, non-interest bearing, and liave no set terms of repayment.
The shareholder loan is held as collateral for the BDC mortgage.

:  (

UJ 7. Related Party Transactions

During the year, the Company received $18,781 (2016 - nil) from 101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd. for
I  supplies.

u

I

/
!

bJ

1  I

hJ

Tliis transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at tlie exchange amount, which is
the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

8.
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1119658 Alberta Ltd.

(Operating as: Westwood Inn)

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30,2017

(Unaudited)

u

u

8. Long-Term Debt
2017

$

2016

$

1
1

u

BDC Mortgage bearing interest at 4.8% per annum, repayable in
monilily principle payments of $9,160 and maturing in January 2041.
The mortgage is secured by the land and building with a net book value
of $ 1,666,892 (2016 - $ 1,736,773), 2,659,877 2,680,380

1

u

BMW loan bearing interest at 4.9% per annum, repayable in bi-weekly
payments including interest of S317.36, and matures in April 2019. The
loan is secured by tlie automotive with a net book value of $29,249
(2016-$41,784). 14,437 21,793

LJ

1

Draylon Valley loan bearing interest at 4.6% per annum, repayable in
semi-annual payinents including interest of S6,459.3I, and matures in
December 2022. The loan is secured by the land and building with a net
book value of $1,666,892 (2016 - $1,736,773). 62,126 71.841

(

2,736,440 2,774,014

Amounts payable witliin one year (127,812) (99,510)

2,608.628 2,674,504

:  1
hMl

The BDC Mortgage is also secured by a general security agreement, a guarantee from 101285461
Saskatcliewan Ltd., a personal guarantee of the shareholder, and by assignment of the shareholder loan.

bJ

Future principal repayments are approximately:

$

1

u

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

Thereafter

127,812
127,276

121,059

121,579
122,124

2,116,590
kJ

2,736,440

9.
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1119658 Alberta Ltd.

(Operating as: Westwood Inn)

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30,2017

(Unaudited)

9. Share Capital

Authorized:

Unlimited Class A common voting shares
Unlimited Class B common voting shares
Unlimited Class C common non-voting shares

2017 2016

$  $

Issued:

100 Class A common votine shares 100 100

10. Financial Instruments and coneeDtration of risk

The financial instruments of the Company consist of cash, corporate taxes recoverable, due from related
parties, accounts payable, GST payable, shareholders loan, and long-term debt. Tlie fair value of these
financial instruments approximates their carrying values unless otherwise noted.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations. The company is
exposed to credit risk from customers. In order to reduce its credit risk, the company reviews a new
customer's credit history before extending credit and conducts regular reviews of its existing customers'
credit performance. As allowance for doubtful accounts is established based upon factors surrounding the
credit risk of specific accounts, historical trends and other information. The company has a significant
number of customers which minimizes concentration of credit risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument might be adversely affected by a change
in tlie interest rates. The company is exposed to interest rate risk primarily through its long term debts. In
seeking to minimize the risks from interest rate fluctuations, tlic company manages exposure tlu^ough its
normal operating and financing activities.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The majority of the company's assets are in capital assets. The substantial capital assets arc not easily
liquidated. The company is exposed to liquidity risk through its significant current and long term debt
obligations. The company seeks to reduce its liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash flow to meet its
liabilities when due, under both normal and challenging conditions.

10.
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1119658 Alberta Ltd.

(Operating as: Westwood Inn)

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2017

(Unaudited)

11. Going Concern

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization
of assets and tlie payment of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. Should the Company be unable to
continue as a going concern, it may be unable to rea!b.e the carrying value of its assets and to meet its
liabilities as they become due.

The Company's ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon its ability to operate profitably,
generate positive cash flow.s and obtain funds from third panics as required to meet its obligations. These
financial statements do not reflect the adjustments or reclassification of assets and liabilities which would be
necessary if the Company were unable to continue its operations

12. Comparative Figures

Certain comparative figures have been restated to conform to the current year presentation. The
comparative figures have been prepared on a notice to reader basis.

11.
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This is Exhibit "S" referred to in the Affidavit of

Hardeep Singh sworn before me on the
day of November, 2018.

)
A Comrrrfssioner for Oaths in and )
for the Province of Alberta )
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101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd.

(Operating as: Qualitj' Inn)

Financial Statements

June 30,2017

(Unaudited)
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1«:VIEW ENGAGEMENT REPORT

To the Shareholders of 101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd.

We have reviewed the balance shed of 101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd. (Operating as: Quality Inn) as
at June 30, 2017 and the statements of deficit, earnings, and cash flows for the year then ended. Our
review was made in accordance witli Canadian generally accepted standards for review engagements and
accordingly consisted primarily of enquiry, analytical procedures, and discussion related to information
supplied to us by the company.

A review does not constitute an audit and consequently we do not express an audit opinion on these
financial statements.

Based on our re\dew nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that these financial
statements are not, in all material respects, in accordance with Canadian Accounting Standards for
Private Enteiprises.

Edmonton, Alberta
October 11,2017 Chartered Professional Accountants

Ul
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101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd,
(Operating as: Quality Inn)

Balance Sheet

As at June 30,2017

(Unaudited)

2017

$

2016

$

Li

i
i

Current

Cash

Accounts receivable

future income taxes

Inventory for consumption
Prepaid expenses

ASSETS

66,245
46,965
118,713

3,047

31,934
58,667
58,143

3,966
22,452

1

Capital Assets (Note 3)

234,970

4,929,548

175,162

5,029,557

5,164,518 5,204,719

u

u

LlABnjTIES

Current

Accounts payable (Note 4)
GST payable
Shareholders loan (Note 6)
Due to Related Parties (Note 5)
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 8)

176,430
15,343

227,493
2,398,492

661,321

173,126

1,592
199,084

2,263,489

164,190

i Long-Term Debt (Note 8)

3,479,079

2,595,110

2,801,481

2.807,557

taut

6,074,189 5,609,038

Share Capital (Note 9)

Deficit

CAPITAL DEFICIENCY

100

(909,771)

100

(404,419)

(909,671) (404,319)

5,164,518 5,204,719

Approved by the Board of Directors:

Director

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
2.
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j 101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd.

(Operating as: Quality Inn)

Statement of Deficit

For the year ended June 30,2017

(Unaudited)

2017

$

2016

$

1
1 Balance, beginning of year (404,419) _

Net loss for the year (505,352) (404,419)

1
Balance, end of year (909,771) (404,419)

J

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
.3.

P. ■■
•' J



101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd.
(Operating as; Quailt}' Inn)

Statement of Earnings

For the year ended June 30, 20J 7

(Unaudited)

2017

$

2016

S

■  1 Revenue 1,146,112 1,016,244

u
Cost of Goods Sold

Continantial breakfast 87,018 89,753
I Room tax 53,505 37,612

Royalty fees 106,389 37,571

Wages and benefits 559,265 461,400

806,177 626,336

hni Gross Profit 339,935 389,908

1 Expenses
Advertising and promotion 22,898 27,489
Amortization 185,774 94,158
Business taxes & dues 7,059 480

,  f Equipment rental 4,603 -

1  i Insurance 21,604 18,904

Interest and bank charges 21,965 14,787
Interest, long-term obligations 136,219 123,580

! Office 3,287 10,201
t Professional fees 2,717 2,860

Property taxes 230,549 228,529
Repairs and Maintenance 41,582 51,017

i Subcontractors - 1,000
(
W

Supplies 64,098 44,744
Telephone, utlitites and sanitation 137,031 122,756

Travel 16,959 24,434

Workers compensation board 7,162 6,574

w
903,507 771,513

Loss before Other Expenses (563,572) (381,605)

Other Expenses
Start-up costs - 33,952

Union grievance 2350 47,005

w 2,350 80,957

Loss before Income Taxes (565,922) (462,562)

1 Income Taxes
u Future (recovery) (60,570) (58,143)

, Net Loss for the Year (505352) (404,419)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

n
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101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd.

(Operating as: Quality Inn)

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended June 30,2017

(Unaudited)

20 J 7

S

2016

$

Operating Activities
Cash received from customers

Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Interest paid

1,099,147

(1,238,509)

(136,219)

957,577

(1,112,768)
(123,580)

(275381) (278,771)

Financing Activities
Advances from related parties
Advances from shareholders

Proceeds from long term debt
Repa^Tnent of long term debt

135,003
28,409

400,000
(136,680)

2,263,489
199,184

2,979,917
(8,170)

426,732 5,434,420

Investing Actl\ities
Additions to capital assets (116,840) (5,123,715)

Increase in Cash during the Year 34,311 31,934

Cash, beginning of year 31,934 -

Cash, end of year 66,245 31,934

The accompanying notes form part of these fmancial statements.
5.
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101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd.

(Operating as: Quality Inn)

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30,2017

(Unaudited)

Nature of Operations

1012S5461 Saskatchewan Ltd. (the "Company") is a privately owmed company incoiporated on July 17,
2015 under the Business Coiporations Act of the Province of Saskatchewan. The Company's principal
business activity is the provision of operating a Quality Ion hotel in Yorkton, Saskatechwan.

1. Significant Accounting Policies

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian Accounting Standards for Private
Enterprises. The significant accounting policies are described below;

(a) Cash

Cash consists of fiinds on deposit at a Canadian financial institution.

(b) Inventory for con.sumptlon

Inventory consists of hotel room supples and is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

(c) Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost. The company provides for amortization using the dealing balance
method at the following rates to amortize the cost of the capital asset.s over their estimated useftil lives.

The annual amortization rates arc as follows:

Land 0%

Building 4%
Computer equipment 30%
Equipment 20%
Franchise fees 10%

Signs 20%

It is management's policy to only recognize capital asset additions which are over a minimum cost of
$500.

(d) Income taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the future income taxes method. Under this method,
future income tax assets and liabilities are recorded based on temporary differences between the
carrying amount of balance sheet items and their corresponding tax bases. In addition, the future
benefits of income tax assets, including unused tax losses, are recognized, subject to a valuation
allowance, to tlic extent that it is more likely than not that such future benefits will ultimately be
realized. Future income tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates
and laws expected to apply when the tax liabilities or assets are to be either settled or realized.

(e) Revenue Recognition

Revenue from hotel services and products are recognized at the point of sale.

6.

^ '\ ir\ ff
-  -S J »



101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd.
(Operating as: Quality Inn)

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30,2017

(Unaudited)

2. Measurement uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with Canadian Accounting Standards for Private
Enterprises requires management to make estimates and assumptions that effect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reported period. Actual re.suiis could differ from those
estimates.

3. Capital Assets

2017 2016

Cost

S

Accumulated

Amortization

$

Net book

Value

S

Net book

Value

$  .

Land 1,000,000 _ 1,000,000 1,000,000

Building 4,030,070 226,707 3,803,363 3,793,592
Computer equipment 16,584 6,639 9,945 19,220
Equipment 77,738 21,096 56,642 110,490

Franchise fees 30,044 4,382 25,662 28,666

Signs 50,250 16,314 33,936 77,589

5,204,686 275,138 4,929,548 5,029,557

4. Accounts Payable
2017 2016

$  $

'

Trade 135,968 141.626

Royality fees 30,085 22,000

BDC reserve 5,000 5,000

CRA - source deductions payable 5,377 4,500
]

176,430 173,126

7.

f>. -x rt fy r>

V . . J O



I

u

5.

101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd.
(Operating as: Quality Inn)

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30,2017

(Unaudited)

Due to Related Parties

2017 2016

$ $

1119658 Alberta Ltd. 2303,492 2,168,489
1058205 Alberta Ltd. 95,000 95,000

2398,492 2,263,489

1119658 Alberta Ltd. is realted by conunon control and 1058205 Alberta Ltd. is related due to being
controlled by related persons.

The amounts due from related parties, are non-interest bearing, unsecured and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

6. Shareholder Loan

Amounts owing to the shareholder are unsecured, non-interest bearing, and have no set terms of repayment.

The shareholder loan is held as colieratal for the BDC mortgage.

7. Related Party Transactions

During the year, tire Company paid $ 18,781 (2016 - nil) to 111 9658 Alberta Ltd for supplies.

This tnmsaclions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange amount, which is
die amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.



101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd.
(Operating as: Quality Inn)

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30,2017

(Unaudited)

UJ

uJ

8. Long-Term Debt
2017

S

20J6

$

!

bJ

1

BDC Mortgage bearing interest at 4.70% per annum, repayable by
interest only until commencraent of monthly principle payments Of
$9,170 starting in December 2016. The mortgage matures on April 23,
2041 and is secured by the land and building with a net book valiie of
the land and bulding is'$4,347,925 (2016 - $4,864,328). 2,705,150 2,341,830

J

1

U

1621804 Albeirta Ltd. Mortgage bearing interest at 4.50% per annum,
repayable in one payment of $100,000 on August 14, 2016 aud a
second payment of $500,000 plus all interest on August 14, 2017. The
mortgage matures on August 14, 2017 and is secured by the land and
building with a net book value of the land and bulding is $$4,347,925
(2016 - $4,864,328). This mortgage has second rights to tlie assets after
the BDC Mortgage. 551,281 629,917

1
3,256,431 2,971,747

Amounts payable within one year (66U21) (164,190)

2,595,110 2,807,557

kJ

1

The BDC Mortgage is also secured by a general seceurity agreement, a guarantee from 1119658 Alberta
Ltd, a personal guarantee of the shareholder, and by assignment of the shareholder loan.

Future principal repayments are approximately:

bJ

1

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

Thereafter

661,321
110,040
110,040

110,040
110,040

2,154,950

3,256,431

u

9. Share Capital
1

Authorized:

Unlimited Class A common voting shares

2017

$

2016

$

Is.sued;

100 Class A common voting shares ICQ 100

J

j
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101285461 Saskatchewan Ltd.
(Operating as: Quality Inn)

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30,2017

(Unaudited)

10. FiDandal Instruments and concentration of risk

The financial instruments of the Company consist of cash, accounts receivable, future income taxes,
accounts payable, GST payable, shareholders loan, dtje to related parties, and long-term debt. The fair value
of these financial instruments approximates their carrying values unless othenw'se noted.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party uill fail to perform its obligations. The company is
exposed to credit risk from customers. In order to reduce its credit risk, the company reviews a new
customer's credit history before extending credit and conducts regular reviews of its existing customers'
credit performance. As allowance for doubtful accounts is established based upon factors surrounding the
credit risk of specific accounts, hLstorical trends and other information. The company has a significant
number of customers which minimizes concentration of credit risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the ri.sk that the value of a financial instrument might be adversely affected by a change
in the interest rates. The company is exposed to interest rate risk primarily tlurough its long term debts. In
seeking to minimize the risks fi"om interest rate fluctuations, the company manages exposure through its
normal operating and financing activities.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The majority of the company's assets arc in capital assets. The substantial capital assets are not easily
L'quidated. The company is exposed to liquidity risk through its significant current and long term debt
obligations. The company seeks to reduce its liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash flow to meet its
liabilities when due, under- both normal and challenging conditions.

11. Going Concern

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization
of assets and the payment of liabilities in tire ordinary course of business. Should the Company be unable to
continue as a going concern, it may be unable to realize the carrying value of its assets and to meet its
liabilities as they become due.

The Companys ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon its ability to operate profitably,
generate positive cash flows and obtain funds from third parties as required to meet its obligations. These
l^ancial statements do not reflect the adjustments or reclassification of assets and liabilities which would be
necessary if the Company were unable to continue its operations

12. Comparative Figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to tJie current year presentation.

10.
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This is Exhibit "T" referred to in the Affidavit of

Hardeep Singh sworn before me on the oLo
day of November, 2018.

)
A Commissioner for Oaths in and )
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COURT FILE NUMBER:

COURT

JUDICIAL CENTRE

PLAINTIFF/APPLICANT

DEFENDANTS/RESPONDENTS

DOCUMENT:

ADDRESS FOR SERVICE AND

CONTACT INFORMATION OF

PARTY FILING THIS DOCUMENT

1803-

COURT OF QUEEN'S BENCH
OF ALBERTA

EDMONTON

IN THE MATTER OF THE BANKRUPTCY AND

INSOLVENCY OF 1 119658 ALBERTA LTD. and
101285461 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT BANK OF CANADA

I I19658 ALBERTA LTD. and 101285461

SASKATCHEWAN LTD.

CONSENT TO ACT

McLENNAN ROSS LLP

#600 McLennan Ross Building
12220 Stony Plain Road
Edmonton, Alberta T5N 3Y4
Lawyer: Charles P. Russell, Q.C.
Telephone: (780) 482-9115
Fax:(780)733-9757
File No.: 184182

CONSENT TO ACT

HARDIE & KELLY INC. HEREBY CONSENTS to act as Receiver, or

Receiver and Manager, pursuant to section 243 of the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act,
R.S.C. 195, c. B-3, section 13(2) of the Judicafure Act, R.S.A. 2000, c. J-2, section 99(a)
of the Business Corporations Act, R.S.A. 2000, c. B-9, and section 65(7) of the Personal
Property Security Act, R.S.A. 2000, c.P-7 each as amended, of all of the current and
future assets and undertakings and properties of every nature and kind whatsoever, and
wherever situate, including all proceeds thereof, of 1119658 Alberta Ltd. and 101285461
Saskatchewan Ltd.
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Dated at the City of Calgary, in the )
Province of Alberta this day of )
November, 2018 )

HARDIE & KELLY INC

Per:

Kevin Meyler, CA, CIRP, LI'
Senior Vice President
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